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GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

31 March 2017
20173 H31H

1,429 (1365
MAINLAND CHINA
PEIRIHD

NORTHERN CHINA 4t
Self-operated B & J& 48 (30)
Licensed A K& J& : 427 (429)

EASTERN CHINA # &
Self-operated B & J& : 29 (26)
Licensed fh k& /& 173 (163)

No. of shops JE#E B : 475 (459)

SOUTHERN CHINA £
Self-operated H % /& : 1(1)
Licensed fh k& /& - 479 (456)

No. of shops /E & #X B : 202 (189)
CENTRAL CHINA #

Self-operated B % 5 : 55 (48)
Licensed fh k& /& : 217 (212)

No. of shops /E & #1 B : 480 (457)

No. of shops /& & & B : 272 (260)

KOREA
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CANADA %
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THE UNITED STATES
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2um5E41,496 (1,428
Worldwide total number of shops
@ HONG KONG
MACAU &
MALAYSIA BPY 47 4
* Figures as at 31 March 2016 are shown in brackets oY N 10 (0
FEER A FRN20165E3A31H 2 & F
** This network included Lukfook shops only SINGAPORE AUSTRALIA
AR R B EN RIS A N0 SN
1 1T
NUMBER OF SHOPS | =
— 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 Y-0-Y Change
Lukfook Shops 7X# & & 2017%3A31H 201643731 A REB(
Hong Kong &% 47 47 -
Macau 2 F9 10 10 =
Self-operated & & J&
- Tier | —#&3 M 28 27 +1
— Tier | Z&W ™ 54 40 +14
—Tier Il & IV =& K [0 4R T 51 38 +13
Maintang China. 842t Nt 133 105 +28
A Licensed & i &
FER “Tier | — &I 199 214 15
- Tier I| Z &3 ™ 402 398 +4
— Tier Il & IV = £& & MU &2 38 695 648 +47
Sub-total /)N 1,206 1,260 +36
Sub-total /J\EF 1,429 1,365 164
Other locations ~ Self-operated B % & 9 6 +3
H i@ Licensed & k& 5 1 - +1
Total & £ 1,496 1,428 +68
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 Y-0-Y Change
3D-GOLD Shops £ £ B &4 201743A318 201643318 RESI
. ; Self-operated H & &
Meand chna— “ier | = i \ 5 5 -
= — Tier Il & IV = 4 Fz 10 48 354 4 4 -
Total & 3t 9 9 =

Remarks: During the year under review, the Group operated 9 3D-GOLD self-operated shops established by a joint venture (the Group held 51%
equity) with a licensee in Mainland China. As at 31 December 2016, total number of 3D-GOLD points of sale operated by China Gold
Silver Group Company Limited through self-operating and franchising models was approximately 360.
G REBEFEAN AEELESEQR (AEEE51%Ee) KR EEHEEEAEE - M2016F12A318 PESREEGRARNUAE
R EEALRRLBC0ECZEETER -



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income

HE = A - mIEEBRA

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income
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& Revenue by Market & Revenue by Business
WA (L&) WA (LA &5 )
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Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2016 are 1
shown in brackets
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Remarks: Lukfook self-operated shops only
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For the year ended 31 March

HESASIALEE
2017 2016
Y-0-Y Change
REEL

-12% -13%
-18% -11%

-1% -16%
-18% -15%
-24% -13%

-6% -19%
+27% +7%
+20% +2%
+47% +29%

2017 2016
SSSG*

A5 $H &8 =

-18% -19%

-25% -17%
-6% -24%

-20% -20%

-26% -17%
-7% -25%
-5% -8%
-8% -13%
+5% +9%

Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same self-operated shop having full day operations in the

comparable periods and such data did not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland China’s e-commerce business.
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2 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TIPSR IR

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS A B2 R B IR

(Opening Inventory + Closmg Inventory - 2 = Cost of Inventories Sold* Number of Days for the Year

(BVGFE+ BRFE) ~2 + EETEEZ$*¢WEI%(

(Long-term Bank Loans + Short—term Bank Loans + Bank Overdrafts + Gold Loans — Cash and Bank Balances) =+ Capital and Reserves Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Company

(RERATER+ BHRTER+ fTE X+ BE2EE R RBTEH) T AARAEERHE ABREERRFEE
(Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities) <+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(REBE+ BHARB) - ARAERFEABREERNRFES

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders = Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

B AEABEERN - ARAREHE ARIGERRER

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders —+ (Long-term Assets + Short term Assets)
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. The Group principally engages in the
sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing
of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products, with a total of over 1,500 shops in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Singapore, Korea, Malaysia, the United States,
Canada and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

ANEEE (BEBR)BRAR ([AAR]) REMBAR (5[
E@ATMF  BEERTFENBEBHRESTER 2 —-
AEBFENESEFNCEMMKEEHER ZKE 50
e HERRERTEER AEERKEEE R -PEA
o FThNY BE - BRAD - ER-NEARMEELEBA
1,500 /5 4 °

ARRRI7ES AT BB AR BHERARER L -

CORPORATE VISION
TXB=

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

[BERIEBERER] RAKENEEBE e EE
AEE-—HEEFIH BOBNENERAERAMNLEEN
mige FREEMBEZME AEERN/ERETRMEE
HEM WE—PRIHERNBERTS LOBE-
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (“FY2017” or the “Year under review”).

With the gradually improving retail sentiment and a relatively low
base in the second half of the Year under review, the revenue
for the second half of the financial year improved significantly
comparing to its first half. The Group’s revenue for FY2017
therefore recorded a slight drop only.

Furthermore, the Group’s gross profit increased despite the
decrease in revenue, attributable to the improved gross margin
of both gold and gem-set jewellery products. Together with the
much narrowed loss in the investments and operating activities in
relation to Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited and
its subsidiaries during the Year under review, profit attributable to
equity holders for FY2017 therefore increased when compared to
last year.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year under review amounted to
HK$12,807,277,000 (2016: HK$14,031,302,000), representing
a decrease of 8.7% over last year. Profit attributable to equity
holders increased by 6.1% to HK$1,016,838,000 (2016:
HK$958,692,000), with earnings per share of HK$1.73 (2016:
HK$1.63). The board of directors of the Company proposed
a final dividend of HK$0.40 per share (2016: HK$0.34) and a
special dividend of HK$0.15 per share (2016: HK$0.21), totaling
HK$0.55 per share. Together with the interim and special
dividends of HK$0.55 per share in total (2016: HK$0.55) paid
in December 2016, the total dividend for FY2017 amounted to
HK$1.10 per share (2016: HK$1.10 per share). The dividend
payout ratio reached 63.5% on a full year basis (2016: 67.5%).

Despite the slowing economic growth in Mainland China, its GDP
growth was amongst those at the top of the world. Given the
considerable growth potential of the middle-class population, the
Group still actively pursued further development in the Mainland
China market. During the Year under review, the Group opened a
net total of 64 Lukfook shops in Mainland China and there were 4
shops opened in Korea, Malaysia and the United States as well.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 1,496 “Lukfook”
shops globally (of which 1,296 were licensed shops and 200
were self-operated shops). Together with our 9 “3D-GOLD” self-
operated shops in Mainland China, there were 1,505 shops in
total globally, spanning over Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China,
Singapore, Korea, Malaysia, the United States, Canada and
Australia.

BRIAR :

RAERERANEEER (BE)BRAR (AR
A REMBAR (4fEAE®])ELRSE
NEBEE2017FE3A31H (L E (201784
FlH[OBEFE]) 22 FEE-

MRTERAESNE MELDBEFEZTF
FEERE STHYENRAELE E¥F
RIEBE AN 5 B 7201 781 F 9 YA B 1tk R %
1S ERHIOR R ©

BE e hREEMERNENEREGME
T REMNEMERATH®ROBERTHETT
oM EEBERERERATAMEFRAALZ
REREEEB N OBEFE R EE T ARR
- 2017TH EMRERFE ARG SN RS EF
RmExiS R & -

AEBEROEBEFEMNBINAR12,807,277,000
7 7T (20164F 1 14,031,302,000/ 7T) * 8 £
FRIBBD8.7% - #mFE AEAL T A
#916.1%%1,016,838,000/% 7T (20164 :
958,692,000 7T) - B A F| B1.73F T
(20165 1638 TL) c AR A EESEZ K
RERAR B8 JR0.4078 7T (20164F : 0.8347%8 70 ) &
5B IR B EA%0.15/8 7T (20164F : 0.2187T)
A HERR0.558 T - R B R2016F12 A IR
B HA K 4 R IR B A H B AR0.557 It (2016
F:055%87T) ' 2017 FIREA £ AEETR1.10
BT (20164 : %1108 L) * 2F REL X
#63.5% (20164 : 67.5% ) °

HEA R B A A IR R AR R B R A ELR
ERFERDENERATS  EFEADRBN
BEENT AEBe#EERARTER
T 55 o B RE S E - 5 R B O 3 % 3 2R 64T
ARG WHETRE - BRI G REBEME
HARJE# - 201793 A31H - REB N 2 IR
HAE1,4960 [7512 ) B (K H1,206/ B h#
J& - 200 BB &) - i1 ERFIOMMNH B A
MIe2E | 525 2HAAF1,505HEH @ B
NEERFT P ERM - #ng - EE - FK
PaE - EE - MEAREM -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OUTLOOK

During the Year under review, the same store sales of gem-
set jewellery products in the Group’s retail business recorded a
notable narrowing decline. Besides, there was great improvement
in sales for the second half of the financial year, and the fourth
quarter same store sales resumed growth. The market sentiment
is improving, and this sentiment extends to the new financial year.
In view of this, we remain cautiously optimistic about the business
prospect for the new financial year. The Group will endeavour
to uphold the Group’s business development via focusing on
product offering enrichment, China network expansion and
market-oriented branding strategy in the coming year, and
through offering more fashionable yet affordable products to cater
for the trend of trading down consumption and to target at the
mass market covering middle-class customers as well as kids.
We therefore expect business for the coming year to restore a
growth track.

As the policies in Mainland China still emphasise on actively
pushing forward urbanisation and increasing the per capita
income, the Group will focus on expanding into the sub second-
tier cities and the Group’s net shop additions in Mainland China
will not be less than 50 in the new financial year. Moreover, since
young consumers have strong spending potential on online sales
platforms, the Group will continue to develop the e-commerce
business and to further strengthen cooperation with e-commerce
platforms in Mainland China. During the Year under review, the
number of the Group’s online sales platforms in Mainland China
was 12, including Tmall.com, VIP.com and JD.com. The Group
will continue to promote sales of good-value-for-money jewelleries
on online platforms to attract more young consumers, thereby
raising the Group’s brand awareness. The Group targets to grow
e-commerce revenue by 50% in the coming year.

By understanding customers’ spending habits, the Group will
adopt comprehensive initiatives to penetrate into the markets for
middle-class, wedding and kids. We will also continue to attract
customers and boost local consumption by enhancing product
displays, cross-promotional campaigns and VIP promotional
activities so as to improve sales and profit. The Group will
also showcase, promote and market its products on mobile
applications and social media platforms such as Facebook and
WeChat.

In addition to broadening the sources of income in different
ways, the Group will strive to enhance productivity and reduce
expenditure in different operational aspects, including the ongoing
negotiations with landlords about reducing rents, improvement
of service quality control, enhancement of support to licensees,
promotion of a continuous improvement culture and full
automation of operational processes, so as to enhance efficiency
and reduce costs in the hope of delivering better results to our
shareholders.

AR

REBFE ARETEXHTREGHEM
B[R] JE 35 5 A 0R AR5 U = BR UL DASI - T B
FOHERNERZ INEONFEREHES
RigR MHERAEZRLHES WA EH
—HE-BR R ROYHF M FOEHH
RERLB -AKEKEEEBETNEEE
A B RS EOR & T 5 & A K fm b
HERE BRESBAEERENES 1
HEBETHEMZEMBNARTS #HH
FEHRAHA BEREENER HAIE
FRERBAER I

E R B A BOR DR B e - WK
NRFAANGRA REERSEBRET N K
AN e ESR - ST R B A S i 2 0F
BRGNPV RE0HE - o ERFEHBER
BLHEFAREBERERINLEAES &
SEREEETRAMBNERETFEAKE
B UM REFRAEFENAIE-REBEF
ER AEEEFEANMNE LHETFE /12
X EREERH- REEUES - It
S AEBEREEN B LT REDEELSH
KEEMZHE RIAIEZFEHREE UiE
HRAREEHRENEE - AEERRFE
FREBWANIE R B IR R50%

O &
s[al=]

REBREBETHRERNHEEEE KRE2E
MEENZEFE BERZEMS  BFTR
SHEFBINEEDMRY - XX HFVIPHE
JEE) IRSIEER HEIALTHE  LIREHEERN
FE o RE B LA F I E AR A MBPELRF
A tAFacebook MM (E  #ETEMER - SE K
HE-

BRARRITEARRIN REE N ER N ERE
BEARNRAEENRER HhBElE
AXEFHORM - ERGEEMNENT - IR Y
mIEEH R HBREES UL B ERE
2H BB FHE LIRTT R FORE KA
HE ARG REEESE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In the long run, there will still be solid customer demand
for jewellery products driven by the unique geographic
and tax advantages of Hong Kong and Macau, cumulative
brand awareness over the years, extensive retail network,
management’s effective sales strategies plus various cost-
effectiveness enhancement measures, and increasing per capita
income in Mainland China. The outlook for jewellery industry
remains promising, which will be conducive to the sustainable
business development of the Group.

This year is the 20th anniversary since the public listing of the
Group on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. This was an important milestone to the Group. Looking
backward, the Group has made significant achievements. The
Group’s business has been progressing steadily, with the number
of shops increasing continuously. In the past 20 years, the
compound annual growth rate (‘CAGR”) of the revenue was 11%
while the CAGR of the profit for the year was 14%. As at 28 June
2017, the Group’s market capitalization reached HK$14.9 billion
which was 33 times of that at the time of the initial public offering
(“IPO”) and the net asset reached HK$8.9 billion, which was 41
times of that at the time of the IPO. Besides, the average dividend
payout ratio was 47%. Except for FY2003 which was affected by
SARS, the Group has achieved double-digit return on equity every
year since its IPO, which was a remarkable performance.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group wil
still adopt pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen
its competitive advantages and further enhance its leading
position in the market so as to generate sustainable returns to
our shareholders and establish a new benchmark for corporate
excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017

REME BELRBHNVMERRBES -
FEFERRBNMENLE RANTERS
EIEEAMOHEERE N ERBERSKAR
miEhE MR E A ABRAZREE L
BEUNKEERDBERNOBIET R HKE
TEMRMALE BNARERBORFER
B

SEREAEENEBSHARIITARARE
RETZ+RF AAEERREZTERE-
EIBE AEBEEEAN SEEKE
SR EREEETEEMN - BE-TF KA
FEAERE([FEAEREE]) B11% MF
Wi M FES R KRE14% - R20174F6 528
A AEENTEE49EBTT 2B QA
B (T BT ) B EY336E - M E B EEES9EE T
B ETIRA416E - AN FEIR B R BAT% o
BR200381 FF 52 JE B AU R 2 B LASN - NEE H
E AR IR SO R T F R E

AEBFEOKY) 2REMANET KR
BE EBEHNEMSNENR IFNE
Bl AABEBAROHE | KE - RNEED
BABERROBEREE MRRFEY £
—FEREAREER TS EOREEHA - BIR
KRS R A ST R (R R

EEEED
FERITEARE
RER

EF# - 20176 A29H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R W MDA
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

A

HK$12,807M B E # T
-8.7%

2

Operating Profit
wERd

HK$1,289M B B & T
+6.4%

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
RSB ARGETR

HK$1,017M BB & T

+6.1%

Mainland China’s Segmental Profit Mix
hEM S EEFIEL

54.4%

+10.4p.p. & & 7 Bh

Results

With the gradually improving retail sentiment and a relatively
low base in the second half of the financial year, Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded
slight revenue drop of 8.7% only to HK$12,807,277,000 (2016:
HK$14,031,302,000) for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the
“Year under review”). Nevertheless, the sales mix of gem-set
jewellery products which were at a relatively higher gross margin
increased, as a result of slowdown in demand for gold products
due to the relatively high gold price. Together with the improved
gross margin of both gold and gem-set jewellery products, the
Group’s overall gross margin improved by 2.4 p.p. to 25.6%
(2016: 28.2%). Gross profit therefore still improved by 0.7%
to HK$3,277,061,000 (2016: HK$3,254,111,000) despite the
decrease in revenue. The total operating expenses to revenue
ratio increased to 16.8% (2016: 15.2%). Moreover, the much
narrowed loss in the investments and operating activities in
relation to Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(‘HKRH") and its subsidiaries contributed to the improvement
in the Group’s business performance. Therefore, the operating
profit increased by 6.4% to HK$1,289,317,000 (2016:
HK$1,212,152,000) and the operating margin was 10.1% (2016:
8.6%), restoring to a double-digit level; the net margin was 8.0%
(2016: 6.9%). The profit attributable to equity holders increased
by 6.1% to HK$1,016,838,000 (2016: HK$958,692,000). Basic
earnings per share were HK$1.73 (2016: HK$1.63).

MBRBR

Basic Earnings per Share
BRESRT

HK$1.73 #7T

+6.1%

Proposed Dividend per Share
HkSRERR

HK55 Cents #{ill

Final Dividend per Share: HK40 Cents
BACRHAR S 407810

Special Dividend per Share: HK15 Cents
BRREFRIRE: 15810

Overall Net Shop Additions
BREIRIENER

+68

Mainland China & B Ay ith: +64
Overseas &1 +4

E
EZERABRTHE UL TETFEHER
ERBRT ~NEEE (BER)ARAA ([AK
AR REWNBAR (G AEE] &S
201743ASIHLEFE ([HEFE] )M A
R HOR 8.7%%12,807,277,000/8 7T (2016
£ :14,031,302,000/ 70) A ®md & KE
SERYSAM P UWBRESEMNEHK
EEMiERBEEMLEA NEESRKEY
HEmEMEREEMES SEEBEMNE L
F2.AE B D 2 E25.6% (20164 : 23.2% )
BEFMEWATEABE R TELT EA0.7%
£3,277,061,0007% 7t (20164F : 3,254,111,000
PETT) o MBS B AR WAL K IS 2£16.8%
(2016%F 1 15.2% ) * BN HR BB EIRIE R
ERAR ([EEBRERDRETAGZHE
ENEEBENEBEEABRE EPNEAR
SEEERBE A RN EAGA%E
1,289,317,000/% 7T (20164 : 1,212,152,000/8
TT) B IR B10.1% (2016%F : 8.6% ) -
EREAETKF FFE B8.0% (20164 :
6.9%) -z IFHE AEMNGF B EFA61%E
1,016,838,000/8 7T (20164F : 958,692,000
7C)  BREKREF A1.73%8 T (20164 1 1.63
EIT) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group added a net total of 68
new shops worldwide, including a net addition of 64 Lukfook
shops in Mainland China, 1 self-operated shop in New York,
the United States and 2 self-operated shops in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia, as well as re-opening of 1 licensed shop in Seoul,
Korea. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a global network of
1,505 shops (2016: 1,437 shops), including 1,496 Lukfook shops
(2016: 1,428 shops) and 9 3D-GOLD self-operated shops (2016:
9 shops) operated in Mainland China, with business spreading
across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Korea,
Malaysia, the United States, Canada and Australia.

& Revenue by Business
LONCE =S (b))

9,619
112.1%

Retailing
FE

75.1%
(78.0%) 516

4.0% 12.2%
(3.8%) - Licensing
JTYEES

20.9%

2,672
(18.2%)

14.3%
Wholesaling
#Ex

The retail business was the Group’s primary source of revenue.
During the Year under review, its revenue declined by 12.1%
year-on-year to HK$9,618,677,000 (2016: HK$10,940,712,000)
mainly because of sales decline in Hong Kong and Macau;
it accounted for 75.1% (2016: 78.0%) of the Group’s total
revenue. With improved gross margin, segmental profit in the
retail business dropped by 4.4% only to HK$690,021,000 (2016:
HK$721,645,000), representing 48.6% (2016: 55.5%) of the total;
its segmental profit margin was 7.2% (2016: 6.6%).

Benefited from the increase in sales of scrap gold and rough
diamonds, the wholesale business revenue increased by 4.3%
over the corresponding period last year to HK$2,672,459,000
(2016: HK$2,562,697,000), accounting for 20.9% (2016: 18.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue; its segmental profit, because of the
improved gross margin as well, increased substantially by 55.8%
to HK$438,891,000 (2016: HK$281,637,000), representing
30.9% (2016: 21.6%) of the total, while its segmental profit margin
was 16.4% (2016: 11.0%).

439
55.8%1

Wholesaling
il

s

REEBEFER ANEER2KFIER68ME
o BER P B A F R4 NG R
E R 491 AR 1 R P B SR PE 2 5 PR 3 7 RR o
ANEAEE WHREREHERIEREE- R
201793 A31H  KEB R 2K H 1,505 /5
4 (20164F : 1,437f) + Edh 8 451,496/ 7~ 18
JE 48 (20164F : 1,428f8) + F7E /R B (4 b 48 &
HOREEE B 4L (20164 : Of) - ¥iE KR
EB R -PERM MK EE- 5K
g0 EE - AR KRN o

& Segmental Profit by Business

2P (AKES)

690
14.4%

Retailing
FE

48.6%
(55.5%)

30.9%
(21.6%)

20.5%
(22.9%)

Licensing

R

TEXBAAEBEZRARIER RO
FER BRBRBEETHR TEWRAKRF
A 12.1%%29,618,677,000/% 7T (20164F ¢
10,940,712,000/ 7T ) G AN KB AW AT5.1%
(20164 : 78.0% ) "EEFEM N Z TEXE
T H D 8655 Al 2 N B4.4% £690,021,00058 7T
(20164 : 721,645,000/ 7T ) * {h Lt A48.6%
(20164 :55.5% ) ' E D & mFl X B7.2%
(2016%F : 6.6% ) °

TERESEHNMORNEEIER X
U AR & F R H_E F4.3% % 2,672,459,000
7 7T (20164 : 2,562,697,000/8 7T) * G A&
B 48 I8 A #920.9% (20165 :18.2% ) - H »
B35 A IR R E R R B B E AR _EFH55.8%
%438,891,0007% 7T (20164 : 281,637,000/
JC) {5 A30.9% (20164F : 21.6% ) * E 4o &6
R 516.4% (2016%F : 11.0% ) °
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Due to depreciation of Renminbi, licensing income decreased
by 2.2% to HK$516,141,000 (2016: HK$527,893,000),
accounting for 4.0% (2016: 3.8%) of the Group’s total revenue;
its segmental profit dropped by 2.5% to HK$290,384,000 (2016:
HK$297,797,000), representing 20.5% (2016: 22.9%) of the total,
while its segmental profit margin was 56.3% (2016: 56.4%).

& Sales' by Product
S$HE' (CIERES)

7,012
114.7%

Gold &
Platinum

BEER#HE

57.1%
(60.9%)

5,279

oo, ————t
- o G -set
(39.1%) ey

" Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

Gold products remained the most favourite item; together with
platinum products, their revenue decreased by 14.7% (2016:
-10.9%) to HK$7,012,528,000 (2016: HK$8,225,319,000) due
to the relatively high gold price which had adversely affected the
demand, accounting for 57.1% (2016: 60.9%) of the overall sales
(the Group’s revenue minus licensing income). Nevertheless, the
high gold price also led to an increase in gross margin of gold
products of 1.6 p.p. to 15.2% (2016: 13.6%), gross profit of gold
and platinum products therefore decreased slightly by 2.4% only
to HK$1,094,924,000 (2016: HK$1,122,157,000), accounting
for 36.9% (2016: 38.1%) of the overall gross profit (consolidated
gross profit of the Group minus gross profit of licensing income).
On the other hand, sales of gem-set jewellery products stayed flat
at HK$5,278,608,000 (2016: HK$5,278,090,000), accounting for
42.9% (2016: 39.1%) of the overall sales. Gross margin of gem-
set jewellery products increased slightly by 0.9 p.p. to 35.5%
(2016: 34.6%), its gross profit, as a result, increased by 2.6% to
HK$1,873,848,000 (2016: HK$1,826,796,000), accounting for
63.1% (2016: 61.9%) of the overall gross profit.

mEEFRANEARBENEBEMRLD2.2%
%£516,141,000/% JT (20164 : 527,893,000
BIL) IEAEERBLRARL0% (20165 :
3.8% ) E 7 EREF T #k2.5% 2 290,384,000/5
7 (20164 : 297,797,000/ 7T ) * 1kt £20.5%
(20164 :22.9% ) + H 5 &b )& 5| X £56.3%
(2016%F :56.4% ) °

& Gross Profit2by Product

ER° (UERESD)

36.9% 1,095
(38.1%) 2.4%

Gold &
Platinum

ESRiAE
63.1% 1,874
(61.9%) 12.6%
Gem-set
HRE

TOHE = A - mEERBRA
2 EN =HFAEN — mEXBRAER

ECERARXBAOESR BEASEMRY
BEHERELAAATYE ERNASE R
HEEHETK%14.7% (20165 : -10.9% ) &
7,012,528,00058 7T (20164 : 8,225,319,000/%8
TL) hEBEEEE (AEERAREREE
UL ) BI57.1% (20164 : 60.9% ) < SR 1M &
BEtTSESERENX L1 6T D2
£15.2% (20165 : 13.6% ) ' =4 MIAS E W
E R At R BT Bk2.4% % 1,094,924,00075
7¢ (20164F : 1,122,157,0005% 7T ) " (H 2 g2 £

F(XEELGFEEFBREREEHBKAER)
#136.9% (2016 :38.1% ) e 2 — H H ' KK E
B R Gn B 85 58 RIS F - #5,278,608,000/%
7¢ (20164F : 5,278,090,00078 7T ) - 1 & 2§
E R M42.9% (20165 :39.1% ) - TR E H i E
G EEF E A& M EF0.9E B o 2 £35.5%
(2016%F : 34.6% ) ' EEF A It L A2.6%=
1,873,848,0005% 7T (20164F : 1,826,796,0007%
7o) IEEEEEFIEN63.1% (20164 1 61.9% ) °

Annual Report 2016/17 E#§ 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth*
of the Group was -18.3% (2016: -19.3%). SSSG for Hong Kong
and Macau market was -19.5% (2016: -20.1%) and that for the
Mainland China market was -4.8% (2016: -8.2%). The SSSG for
gold and platinum products was -24.6% (2016: -16.7%). The
Group’s same store sales drop of gem-set jewellery products
substantially narrowed to -6.3% (2016: -24.1%) because of the
much improved performance in Hong Kong and Macau market
under the relatively low base situation.

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to
offer customers with more choices. Since 2010, the Group
has been engaging in the mid-to-high end watch business.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group was the authorised dealer
of 36 watch brands, including ARNOLD & SON, AUDEMARS
PIGUET, BALL and its BALL for BMW series, BALMAIN,
BULOVA, BURBERRY, BVLGARI, CERTINA, COINWATCH,
CORUM, DOXA, EMILE CHOURIET, EMPORIO ARMANI,
ENICAR, ERNEST BOREL, ETERNA, FREDERIQUE CONSTANT,
GRONEFELD, HAMILTON, H. MOSER & CIE, LONGINES,
LOUIS ERARD, LUDOVIC BALLOUARD, MAURICE LACROIX,
MIDO, OMEGA, ORIS, RADO, ROMAGO SWISS, TAG HEUER,
TISSOT, URWERK, VICTORINOX SWISS ARMY, ZENITH,
WENGER and PHANTOMS. For the Year under review, the
watch business contributed a revenue of HK$211,182,000
(2016: HK$247,843,000), representing 1.6% (2016: 1.8%) of the
Group’s total revenue with 14.8% decrease when compared with
last year.

Same store sales growth ("SSSG’) represented a comparison of sales of
the same self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable
periods and such data did not include sales of licensed shops, and
Mainland China’s e-commerce business.

REBEBFEN NEBEEBREHESE
K£*%5-18.3% (201654 : -19.3% ) - & B
MEFMEHNRAEHEHEERA-19.5%
(20164 : -20.1% ) * 1 B A # T 35
Bl 5-4.8% (2016F : -8.2% ) B & &
HEeEMMNRAEHEEER AB-24.6%
(2016%F : -16.7% ) : BN R T IS A EEER
MELT HREEBMHERNREBAZENRE X
EERE &80 E @RS 3 S B IE 1S A K8 UL
EE-6.3% (2016%F : -24.1% ) ©

AEE-—ERERRZLILER AEREIR
HE 2RI B20106F#  REEIRNESE
PR ERER W2017F3A31H A&
B B A A6 ik e R RS HE - @A
PRIEE#H BERE ERLAEIEBESH
IRy -Ee ERE-BNAN BRE-
EEHMN - BHAEAXRT B BE KE-
EMPORIO ARMANI ~ 3 4 & « O 1% ~ & F
# . FFHT & - GRONEFELD KRB = FI&
B R ZE - FEEF 8L LUDOVIC BALLOUARD »
VE-ZE -BAM A FE - HLE
K& SR M HWEHEK - HEHE.
W+ B K RPHANTOMS - REIEEFE R - K
BEEEB KA AE211,182,0005% 7T (2016
1 247,843,000/ 70 ) * 1E AN B AU A1.6%
(2016%F :1.8% ) * BEF T #14.8% °

FEHEER ([[FEHEER])BRA—FEE
A LA o B F ERB R 3 SRR B - B BRI
T BT R P B A & F B a7 58 -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

P Revenue by Market
WA (UAEEl5)

8,673
114.3%

Hong Kong,
Macau &

67.7%

(72.1%)
Overseas

& RM
Kigoh

32.3%

(27.9%) 4,134

15.7%

Mainland China
hER

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

The Hong Kong market has been the key source of revenue for
the Group. Visitors from Mainland China had been the major
driver for the retail business growth in Hong Kong for the past few
years. However, under the impact of the slowdown in economic
growth in Mainland China and the changes to the Individual Visit
Scheme, Mainland tourists tended to stay shorter period of time.
Consumption expenditure per capita continued to fall with the
poor macro-economic conditions and decreased spending power
of consumers. The situation, however, has started to stabilise
and improve recently. According to the statistics on visitor arrivals
to Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong Tourism Board
in January 2017, visitor arrivals from Mainland China in 2016
decreased by 6.7% year-on-year to approximately 42.78 million.
According to the visitor arrival statistics published in April 2017,
Mainland Chinese visitors from January to March 2017 increased
by 3.8% year-on-year to approximately 10.82 million. In respect of
tourist spending, according to the figures on retail sales released
by the Census and Statistics Department of Hong Kong in May
2017, the value of sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and
valuable gifts in 2016 decreased by 17.2% when compared to
2015. The sales value of jewellery, watches and clocks, and
valuable gifts from January to March 2017 rose by 1.4% over the
corresponding period last year. It indicated a gradually improving
market sentiment.

RO

& Segmental Profit by Market
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Due to the impact of overall market performance, the
Group'’s retail revenue in Hong Kong decreased by 19.4% to
HK$6,227,060,000 (2016: HK$7,727,658,000) during the Year
under review. However, the revenue of the wholesale business
generated from the Hong Kong market increased by 45.5% to
HK$713,900,000 (2016: HK$490,646,000) due to the increase
in sales of scrap gold and wholesale of rough diamonds. As at
31 March 2017, the Group operated a total of 47 self-operated
shops (2016: 47 shops) in Hong Kong, with the number of shops
unchanged.

Macau

According to the tourism statistics published by the Statistics and
Census Service of the Macau Special Administrative Region on
4 May 2017, visitor arrivals to Macau increased slightly by 0.8%
in 2016 to 30.95 million, but GDP of Macau decreased by 2.1%
over last year; while the number of visitor arrivals from January to
March 2017 rose by 5.6% year-on-year. According to figures from
the Macau Government Tourist Office, visiting tourists’ per capita
spending on jewellery and watches increased by 3.9% in 2016.
With the better business environment in Macau than Hong Kong,
its retail revenue in the second half of the financial year turned to a
positive growth of 5.4% from a 27.7% drop in the first half of the
financial year. Therefore, the Group’s revenue generated from the
Macau market decreased by only 11.9% to HK$1,549,409,000
(2016: HK$1,758,769,000) during the Year under review. As at
31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 10 self-operated shops
(2016: 10 shops) in Macau.

Overseas

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”,
the Group has been seeking opportunities around the world in
recent years. During the Year under review, the Group added 1
Lukfook self-operated shop in New York, the United States and 2
Lukfook self-operated shops in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, and re-
opened 1 Lukfook licensed shop in Seoul, Korea. As at 31 March
2017, the Group operated a total of 10 overseas shops (2016:
6 shops), including self-operated shops of 1 in Singapore, 2 in
Malaysia, 3 in the United States, 2 in Canada and 1 in Australia
and 1 licensed shop in Korea.

XEEEMEBERIAEZENME AEERE
BEFEEEEMBENTERARD19.4%E
6,227,060,000/% 7T, (20164 : 7,727,658,000/%
TC) cHREEES AR ENEEEN £
RNEBREBTISOI B EHBIWA _EF45.5%
Z713,900,0005% 7T (20164 : 490,646,000
J0) cHR2017F3A31H  AEBEFEBLLEHN
JEEE T E A AT B & JE (20169 : 47
fE) e

1
RIBRPIRFRITREBS ST EEE RBR2017
FEA4ABRMIRERFTET - 2016F 77 BIK
B = F 812 I10.8%E30.958 & AKX B
b A E AR (B A ER K R A2.1% ¢ 201741
RESAMHRIRFEEFRLL A EFA5.6% e
RIEBPIERITHRERFRERDZEF 5
RIR B IRE FHRIB H M AT E B R2016%F
EFAT39% AMNBPIEERB L FEERR
BE ETHPFNZTERAR EFTFDN
27 7% IEEE A T IER5.4% RN EEFE
W AREEREBPITEHKRARRA11.9%
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10f8 & &5 (20164F : 10f) °
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The revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
markets decreased by 14.3% to HK$8,673,186,000 (2016:
HK$10,119,551,000) due to the decreased retail revenue in
Hong Kong and Macau, accounting for 67.7% (2016: 72.1%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Because of the improvement in
gross margin, the segmental profit declined by 11.1% only to
HK$647,637,000 (2016: HK$728,696,000), accounting for 45.6%
(2016: 56.0%) of the total; their segmental profit margin was 7.5%
(2016: 7.2%).

The SSSG for gold and platinum products of Hong Kong, Macau
and overseas markets was -26.1% (2016: -16.9%) and that
for gem-set jewellery products substantially narrowed to -6.8%
(2016: -25.4%).

Mainland China

During the Year under review, retail revenue from the Mainland
China market increased by 26.5% to HK$1,659,391,000 (2016:
HK$1,311,807,000) due to the increase in the number of self-
operated shops. The SSSG for gold and platinum products in
Mainland China was -8.2% (2016: -12.8%) and that for gem-set
jewellery products was +4.7% (2016: +8.7%).

The wholesale business from the Mainland China market,
because of devaluation of Renminbi, fell by 5.5% to
HK$1,958,559,000 (2016: HK$2,072,051,000) after the
conversion to Hong Kong dollars, despite the around flat revenue
in Renminbi. The decline of full year licensing income narrowed
significantly from 17.8% for the first half of the financial year to a
minor drop of 2.2% to HK$516,141,000 (2016: HK$527,893,000)
for the full year. Again, due to Renminbi devaluation, it changed
from a slight rise to a slight drop after the conversion from
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 1,429 shops
(2016: 1,365 shops) under the “Lukfook” brandname in Mainland
China, including 133 self-operated shops (2016: 105 shops) and
1,296 licensed shops (2016: 1,260 shops). During the Year under
review, the Group had a net increase of 36 Lukfook licensed
shops (2016: 20 shops) and 28 Lukfook self-operated shops
(2016: 26 shops) there. 23 (2016: 14 shops) of the new self-
operated shops were opened by a joint venture (in which the
Group held a 51% equity interest) established with a licensee.
Together with 9 3D-GOLD self-operated shops in Mainland China,
the Group had a total of 1,438 shops in Mainland China.

BB CRPIREIINTHEHRARSRNTE
Ug A Bk s 2 14.3% £8,673,186,000/8
7t (20164 :10,119,551,000/8 JT) * 1h A &=
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647,637,000 7T (20164F : 728,696,000
7o) 1 EEEE H)45.6% (20164F 1 56.0% ) * H 5
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FY2017 Mainland China E-Commerce Business Performance

2017 EFBERBE FBFEBRR

‘ Revenue
e A
1 97.4% YoY Change & E# 4t

‘ Contribution to Mainland China retail revenue
LhEAEERA
11.0% (FY2016 81 4F : 7.0%)

‘ Contribution to Group’s retail revenue
HERESEEA 2
1.9% (FY2016 B4 4 : 0.8%)

2

Due to the rapid development of e-commerce, the revenue of
e-commerce business from Mainland China during the Year
under review increased by 97.4% to HK$182,198,000 (2016:
HK$92,277,000), which accounted for 11.0% (2016: 7.0%) of
the Group’s retail revenue in Mainland China. Gold and platinum
product sales accounted for 75.5% (2016: 77.7%) of its sales mix
while gem-set jewellery accounted for 24.5% (2016: 22.3%).

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, revenue from the
Mainland China market increased by 5.7% to HK$4,134,091,000
(2016: HK$3,911,751,000), accounting for 32.3% (2016:
27.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Benefited from its retail
business growth and improved overall gross margin, its
segmental profit increased by 34.8% to HK$771,659,000 (2016:
HK$572,383,000), contributing more than half of the Group’s
profit, accounting for 54.4% (2016: 44.0%) of the total; its
segmental profit margin was 18.7% (2016: 14.6%).

75.5%
(77.7%)

@ Sales by product
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Gem-set
HE
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FY2018 revenue growth target
2018 FRABR B TR
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Financial Impact in relation to Investments and

RERRFER'REMBLFHRER
EETDCHMERE

Operating Activities in HKRH* & Its Subsidiaries
& Profit/(Loss)
BRI, (&8)

FY2017

HKSm BB

20174

50% Share of Profit/(Loss) of
Associate

B A RIS0% &F, (ER) 2Rt
Valuation Gain/(Loss) on
Convertible Bond

MR ESEESE (EBE)
Wholesale Gross Profit

HBEER

Fair Value Devaluation of Option
BIREANERE
Interest Income on

Working Capital Loan
MENE @ BHA 2 MA

Interest Income on
Convertible Bond
AR E A A

Total
B

The loss on investments and operating activities in HKRH and its
subsidiaries substantially improved by 59.1% to approximately
HK$36,000,000 (2016: HK$88,000,000 loss) during the Year
under review.

# HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brandname of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China.

FY2016 Y-o0-Y Change

201681 & BEBL
®1) 27

1) 24

13 @)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were approximately HK$1,862,000,000 (2016: approximately
HK$2,432,000,000). The Group’s net gearing ratio at the
year-end was 0% (2016: 0%), which was concluded by
using the ratio of total bank borrowings and gold loans
of approximately HK$437,000,000 (2016: approximately
HK$711,000,000) less cash and bank balances against total
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$8,873,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$8,674,000,000). Net cash was approximately
HK$1,425,000,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,721,000,000).
The debt-to-equity ratio was 19.1% (2016: 21.5%), being the
ratio of total liabilities of approximately HK$1,699,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$1,861,000,000) against total shareholders’
equity of approximately HK$8,873,000,000 (2016: approximately
HK$8,674,000,000). The Group’s income and expenditure
streams are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Inventory

y

FY2017
201784 5

Gold =%
Gem-set TR E

Overall & §2

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s inventory increased by 9.9%
to approximately HK$6,973,000,000 (2016: approximately
HK$6,345,000,000) due to increase in number of self-operated
shops. The average inventory turnover days were 261 days
(2016: 238 days) with inventory turnover days of gold products
being 152 days (2016: 119 days) and that of gem-set jewellery
products being 436 days (2016: 469 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of approximately HK$168,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$113,000,000), including the costs of
properties, leasehold lands, land use rights, leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipments.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to approximately HK$13,000,000 (2016: approximately
HK$12,000,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had outstanding financial
guarantees amounting to approximately HK$764,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$673,000,000) issued to several banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to an associate.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2017, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 7,400 (2016: approximately 7,100). The
management reviews and examines the remuneration policies on
a regular basis to ensure that employees are offered fair rewards
and compensation. Remuneration packages are structured to be
comparable to the market rate while bonuses and other rewards
are linked to the performances of the Group and the employees.
This policy aims to motivate employees with monetary incentives
to work together to achieve the objective of enhancing the
Group’s business performance.
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During the Year under review, the same store sales of gem-
set jewellery products in the Group’s retail business recorded
a substantially narrowed decline in Hong Kong and Macau
market. Together with a relatively low base in the second half of
the financial year, sales of gem-set jewellery products stopped
its declining trend from the past year and extended to the first
two months of the new financial year. Based on the continually
improving market sentiment, the Group expects its business to
restore growth in the coming year. The Group continues to be
optimistic about the prospects of the mid- to long-term business
development and will endeavour to focus on enriching the
product offerings, expanding its network in Mainland China and
implementing market-oriented branding strategy in the coming
years, with a view to optimise the business development of the
Group.
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Product Focus

It was stated at the Fifth Plenary Session of the Eighteenth Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China that China would
maintain medium to high economic growth during the Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan period (2016-2020) and that China would double
its 2010 GDP and per capita income of urban and rural residents
by 2020 as planned to build China into a moderately prosperous
society in all respects. The per capita disposable income of
all national residents and urban residents are both increasing.
Furthermore, the annual number of marriages in Mainland China
remained stable, and the annual number of births is increasing,
which are conducive to the long-term development of the mass
luxury sector. The demand for luxury products for kids will
increase gradually as well. Accordingly, the Group will offer more
fashionable yet affordable products to cater to the trend of trading
down consumption and target at the mass market covering
middle-class customers as well as kids.

China Focus

Based on the confidence in the long-term development of the
Mainland China market, the Group will continue to focus its
expansion in the sub second-tier cities. The net shop additions in
Mainland China were 64 during the Year under review, while the
target net addition of shops in the coming year is at least 50. The
Group will also continue to develop the e-commerce business
and to further strengthen cooperation with online platforms in
Mainland China. During the Year under review, the Group had 12
online sales platforms in Mainland China, including Tmall.com,
JD.com and VIP.com.

According to the report on internet spending trends in China
jointly published by Taobao and CBNData at the end of 2015,
80% of consumers aged between 20 and 40 learnt about gold
and jewellery products through the internet and 60% of them had
spent money on the internet. The proportion of spending on gold
jewellery under RMB1,600 was 64%, while that on gold jewellery
over RMB3,000 was 15% only. Currently, the products priced
at around RMB1,000 are prevalent in the internet spending on
gold jewellery, while the products priced under RMB2,000 are
the major market for the internet spending on gem-set jewellery.
Since young consumers have enormous spending potential on
online sales platforms, the Group will endeavour to promote sales
of good-value-for-money jewellery on online platforms to attract
young consumers group. The Group targets to grow e-commerce
revenue by 50% in the coming year.
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Branding Focus

By understanding customers’ spending habits, the Group
will adopt comprehensive initiatives to penetrate into the
markets for middle-class, wedding couples and kids. It will also
continue to attract customers and boost local consumption
by enhancing product displays, cross-promotional campaigns
and VIP promotional activities so as to improve sales and profit
performance. The Group will also showcase, promote and market
its products on mobile applications and internet social media
platforms such as Facebook and WeChat.

Productivity Enhancement

In addition to broadening the sources of income in different
ways, the Group will strive to enhance productivity and reduce
expenditure in different operational aspects, including the ongoing
negotiations with landlords about reducing rents as appropriate,
improvement of service quality control, enhancement of support
to licensees, promotion of a continuous improvement culture and
full automation of operational processes, in order to enhance
efficiency and reduce costs in the hope of restoring business
growth and therefore obtaining better performance, with the
improving retail sentiment.
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(All financial years achieved double digit return, except for
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The date of 6 May 2017 marked the 20th anniversary since
the public listing of the Group on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This was an important milestone
to the Group. Looking backward, the Group has made significant
achievements. The Group’s business has been progressing
steadily, with the number of shops increasing continuously. In the
past 20 years, the compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of
the revenue was 11% while the CAGR of the profit for the year
was 14%. As at 28 June 2017, the Group’s market capitalization
reached HK$14.9 billion which was 33 times of that at the time of
the initial public offering (“IPO”) and the net asset reached HK$8.9
billion, which was 41 times of that at the time of the IPO. We
always strive for the best interest of our shareholders. We have
had a generous dividend policy, with the average dividend payout
ratio of 47% for the past 20 years. Except for FY2003 which
was affected by SARS, the Group has achieved double-digit
return on equity every year since its IPO, which was a remarkable
performance.
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TH{EZE149E B TT (50201746/528H)
33 times since IPO

L TR EY33E

Net asset reached HK$8.9 billion
BEEESEETT
41 times since IPO

L4165

67.5%

Average Dividend
Payout Ratio
FRBLLE
47%

20175 A6 AAKBEREBHAEZSHFBR
REIER T T AFEE  TALAEEER
EZERE DAL AEBRSENKR
EEEBESER  EHBETEHE M- BX
ZHF IRAFEREBRER ([FEAERE])
B11% MEREBEFFESGEREIEI4% R
201756280  REBEM T EE149BE T -
RERAFABRK ([ ET])EMNISE mEEE
ESOEB L B EMREA4ME - B MURER
A AEKE RMZEEMNIKREEE B
E20F TR B L R BAT% ° Br20035 F 5 3k
AR RL B LASN - AN B E _E T A RAIARER
BRORRGEEEENHT EEB-

Annual Report 2016/17 4R 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB B ED

As a traditional retail industry, there will still be a rigid demand
for jewellery products from consumers. The outlook for jewellery
industry is promising. In the long run, apart from the exceptional
business environment shaped by the unique geographic and tax
advantages of Hong Kong and Macau and increasing per capita
income in Mainland China, the Group’s sustainable business
development relies on its brand awareness established over
the years, constantly expanding retail network, management’s
effective sales strategies and cost-effectiveness-oriented
measures. Therefore, the Group will sharpen its competitive edge
and consolidate its leading position in the jewellery retail market
through its pragmatic and prudent business strategies, proactive
response to market challenges and a firm grip on opportunities.
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In order to align with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”,
the Group has been building a brand image that is welcoming
and warm-hearted, and strengthening customers’ emotional
attachment to the brand through outstanding marketing
campaigns and excellent service programmes.

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management, and are meticulous
from product design, quality assurance to sales services. To tie
in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture, we are dedicated to
fulfiing customers’ need with a caring heart and offering sincere
quality services, aiming to provide the most enjoyable shopping
experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental well-
being in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster a
corporate culture of Lukfook Family.

To Customers

HER

NIDBRFE
Six Heartfelt
Services

4
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To Employees
HET

To Public
HAR
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Love is Beauty
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MARKET ORIENTED STRATEGY

Targeting the mid-to-high end consumer markets in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and overseas, the Group has
implemented comprehensive marketing strategies, and launched
diversified product offerings with exquisite designs, together
with outstanding marketing campaigns, to seize the business
opportunities arising from the middle-class, wedding and kids
markets.

MIDDLE-CLASS MARKET

To cope with the brand’s positioning of mass luxury sector, we
have endeavoured to further penetrate the middle-class market
through various channels. During the Year under review, the
Group held the “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday” featuring the theme
“Crown Beauty with Love”, and invited Miss Hong Kong Pageant
title winners to showcase a series of glamorous diamond jewellery
to the guests and audience, so as to raise our brand awareness
among the middle-class population. In the light of the popularity of
fashionable diamond jewellery suitable for daily wear among this
group of customers, the Group stepped up the marketing efforts
on the “Love is Beauty” and “Convergence of Love” Collection.
We also introduced the “Love Forever” Collection in collaboration
with our celebrity endorser Mr. Lam-Fung, which turned out
to be well received by couples, thus attracting this group of
sophisticated, chic middle-class customers.

Nowadays, marathon running has become one of the most
popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of a healthy
lifestyle. Therefore, the Group sponsored the medals set with
gold and diamonds for the Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai and
Wuhan marathons to honour over 118,000 marathon finishers.
Apart from that, the Group also rolled out marketing programmes
jointly with the popular brands among the middle-class, such
as the privileges offered in partnership with ZALORA, manicure
services provided in collaboration with “Helijia”, free air tickets
and hotel accommodate promotion launched in cooperation with
“Tuniu.com”, and the “Love Car” promoted jointly with “CAR Inc.”,
with a view to boosting brand awareness and seizing the business
opportunities from the middle-class market.
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WEDDING MARKET

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, there have been over 11
million pairs of newlyweds per year in the past 6 years. In order to
seize this valuable business opportunity of the wedding market,
the Group has participated in wedding expos in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, and held large-scale wedding shows with
high-end hotels and other wedding related partners. Besides,
the Group launched a wide range of Chinese and western
wedding products. In the traditional Chinese culture, people
like to purchase gold jewellery for gifts and wear. Accordingly,
the Group introduced the “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding
jewellery, which integrates the traditional Chinese wedding culture
into trendy gold jewellery design. Nowadays, diamond jewellery,
a symbol of promise of eternity, is also a popular choice among
wedding couples. To cater for this trend, the Group launched the
Wedding Collection of diamond jewellery and the Platinum Bridal
Collection which was introduced in cooperation with Platinum
Guild International. Moreover, we have a wide array of wedding
rings with complete range of sizes and complimentary engraving
services for wedding couples at our shops, aiming to increase our
share in the wedding market by leveraging our diversified wedding
products and caring services.

KIDS MARKET

In response to the implementation of the two-child policy in
Mainland China, the Group has introduced a variety of kids’
products, including the “Hugging Family” Collection and the
Rilakkuma™ Collection which has been well received by
both adults and kids. To boost sales strategically, the Group
launched an array of jewellery accessories featuring the adorable
Rilakkuma, and the baby gift sets that came with the accessories
invoking blessings for peace, safety and health as well as the
exquisitely designed gift boxes, making them the best choice for
gifts or personal use.

The Group also organised a series of promotional activities, such
as arranging members of the “Hugging Family” to interact with
customers at famous amusement parks, so as to build a brand
image of warm family.

MR R
RiIpFEARAMBERBE RN BIBR
T BECFEFEREBBII00BHALE &
EERABEGMENEERK AREKR2HE
BAERBENEEEE S  HBEmEESREK
BERzZAaERHRITRBEEHI BEHHS
RPN EGER TEAERZEERER
TEMERREME R AEERBLITEN
[ EEESHRY SERBELTER
ARBEHESEMER BEPREE RS
MAMERERBEMEGE A RERHE
AFGENE R - E NS B IR (1545 ]
Z5- I EEERAD S & T HE L AP e
REIEERD - RN [EHERBBESRRBER
HEIR AT AR UM AR BRI ZF
FIRERD  PAZ T B E an BB O B AR
BEBEREETISNME-

BRETH

AR BERETHN —ZBX AEEED
TRAMZEER MIBBRE] R FRZ
RN/ R BB B Rilakkuma™ [ 8 52/ R | 5
Fle BB IMEIRSHE  ARBEIAT B A
ROREMNRFTHERENHER LHELEE
BREX ELEEVL BENHME ARG
BENER ERERIBEANREEE

AEEERER - ZINNERTS B
REREKREFHZRERXERTRES U
BIURBREZMETER -

Annual Report 2016/17 R 25



BRANDING
Oh R 2R R

BRANDING ACTIVITIES

To increase brand awareness more strategically and secure our
market share in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and beauty
in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”. The Group not
only sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery pieces
for the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for nineteen consecutive
years, but also served as the exclusive sponsor of the diamond
crown for the “Miss Universe China Reignwood Pageant” for six
consecutive years.

Furthermore, the Group also made good use of various
promotional channels, such as public relations activities, media
advertising and various kinds of sponsorships, to enhance our
brand exposure. Moreover, the Group has captured the trend of
rapid growth of online marketing by placing advertisements on
major social media platforms, portals, video websites and search
engines and promoting products through mobile applications and
Internet celebrities. Inter alia, the cross-platform collaboration
with the classic game “Richman 9”, incorporated the Lukfook
Jewellery elements into the game under the theme of “Lukfook
Richman”, placed advertisements on the popular social media
platforms Weibo and NetEase, and launched the H5 mobile
phone interactive game, which successfully attracted the attention
of game players and the participation of the game was up to 2.5
million players. To step up promotion, the Group also distributed
the limited edition game-themed gold lucky coins in various
regions during the Chinese New Year to increase local traffic,
which helped attract more potential customers to our offline
physical stores and thereby boost sales.

As online interactions became the new trend in promotion,
the Group utilised the brand-new promotional channels of live
broadcast by cooperating with the e-commerce live broadcast
platform of — VIP.com. We invited Mr. Lam-Fung, celebrity
endorser for our “Love Forever” Collection, to participate in the
live broadcast of our new product launch press conference, which
attracted up to 2.1 million viewers. Apart from that, the Group
also launched the “Fabulous Offers” promotional campaign,
allowing more than 300 customers to spell out the messages for
their loved ones through words displayed on the large billboards
in various areas, thus strengthening customers’ emotional
attachment to the brand.
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PRODUCT DESIGN

Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group.
To enhance innovation capabilities and broaden design team’s
horizon, we arrange overseas trips for the team from time to time
to explore and apply different design concepts to jewellery. Our
outstanding design team has actively participated in various local
and international jewellery design competitions, and won over 180
awards up to now, further raising Lukfook’s brand image.

During the Year under review, our design pieces “Auspicious
Bird” and “To Rejoice with Your Heart” won the “Best of Show
Award (Open Group)” in “The 18th Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition”, and the design piece “Auspicious Bird” also
received the “Craftsmanship and Technology Award”.

BRANDING AWARDS

During the Year under review, Lukfook’s continuous efforts in
brand building have resulted in numerous awards and recognition.
These included:

o “Retail Asia-Pacific Top 500 Awards” for five consecutive
years and “Top 10 Retailers in the Hong Kong Market”

o “Hong Kong Star Brand Award — Enterprise” for five
consecutive years

o “15-year QTS Merchant Recognition” from the Hong Kong
Tourism Board
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QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from raw
materials procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems
Laboratory Limited (“CGL”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, was established for the purpose of providing services
including authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication
of jadeite jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment
for jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute Limited
principally engaged in jewellery authentication and professional
training. With branch offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
the institute provides services for the jewellery sector and
customers. The institute has passed the accreditation of the
Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B) of the United States,
and is authorised to issue internationally recognised reports that
conform to ISO/IEC 17025 in diamond grading and fei cui (jadeite
jade) testing.

To further boost consumers’ confidence, the Group cooperated
with The International Institute of Diamond Grading and Research
(IDGR) to provide an additional report for any Hearts & Arrows
diamond sold at our shops in Hong Kong and Macau, so as
to give customers a more comprehensive understanding of the
diamond products purchased.
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EXCELLENT SERVICE

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the “Delivering the Beauty
of Love with Six Heartfelt Services” excellent customer service
programme was introduced to fulfil customers’ need with a caring
heart and offer sincere quality services for customers with a view
to relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt Services to each customer
all over the world.

SHOPPING EXPERIENCE

To deliver the most enjoyable shopping experience to customers,
the Group has established the Member Zone in the shops for
our privileged members to enjoy special offers, leisure space
and caring services. In addition, featuring warm, romantic pink
decoration, the Western Wedding Zone and Chinese Wedding
Zone at our shops display different collections of wedding
jewellery products. New couples and their families can select
wedding jewellery in a comfortable and spacious environment.

Besides, the Group creates a gentle yet noble shopping
environment by using luminous materials such as mirrors and
metal steel, with leather interspersed throughout our shops to
create a more distinct three-dimensional and multi-layered effect.
Moreover, we offer a wide selection of jewellery and superior
shopping services for customers to enjoy unparalleled shopping
experience and pleasure.
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This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”)
report prepared by Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “We”, “Lukfook”, the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), according to the ESG Reporting
Guide published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). This report presents our sustainability
performance in the financial year 2017 (“FY2017”) which is from 1
April 2016 to 31 March 2017. It covers the operations of offices,
factories, showrooms and self-operated shops across Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

With cumulative brand awareness established over the years, we
seize the opportunities to consolidate our leading position in the
jewellery retail market. We understand our responsibility is not
limited to providing quality products and services to customers.
Therefore, we are very pleased to publish the ESG report which
provides information on environmental and social issues that
is relevant to the Group and details our efforts in sustainable
development.

We would like to hear your feedback on our ESG report, feel
free to post to Luk Fook Jewellery Centre, 239 Temple Street,
Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong with attention to Corporate
Communications Department or email us at ir@lukfook.com.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We believe that the voices of our stakeholders are valuable to our
business and sustainable development. In order to understand
the concerns of our key stakeholders and to identify the
material topics of the Group, a stakeholder engagement activity
was conducted via online questionnaire by a third party. The
questionnaire acted as a tool for us to communicate with our
stakeholders and obtain their opinions. A materiality assessment
was then conducted to provide us insights into the formulation of
our ESG reporting and upcoming Corporate Social Responsibility
(“CSR”) strategies.

During the materiality assessment, we engaged both internal and
external stakeholders from Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China to rate on 20 ESG topics.
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These ESG topics were generalized from the key performance #ZZERIE - HE@RERZERMNARE e
indicators of the ESG Reporting Guide. Their valuable feedback K& AREIESIMBRETUEZ -HFHENE
helps us identify the priority of material topics as shown below: EERBHEMY TINERERETHF:
Materiality Matrix
EEMEE Legend
AR
1 Air Emission BERHER
2 GHG Emission BEREELER
3 Hazardous Waste BEEEY
4 19 4 Non-hazardous Waste EEREEY)
B 13 2 16 5 Energy Consumption BEIRUHFE
L] 11 17 6 Water Consumption AKERE
% 2 D © 14 10 18 7 Packaging Consumption BEMEERE
s 1 5 15 3 20 8 Impacts on Environment RGOV E
He
E 8 7 9 Employment (=
o 6 10 Occupational Health and Safety BtERERLTE
3 11 Training bl
9 12 Child Labour ET
R 13 Forced Labour RIS T
©
"g 14 Supply Chain Management R s E R
° 15 Customer Health and Safety BEEREERZE
Q 16 Customer Satisfaction BEREE
8 17 Intellectual Property FHEE
% 18 Customer Privacy BEEE
@ 19 Anti-corruption k&S
20 By B By 0 20 Community Investment HERRE

Significance to Lukfook ¥i7<i@M&E 214

“Significance to Stakeholders” are shown on the vertical axis of
the materiality matrix, while “Significance to Lukfook” are shown
on the horizontal axis. The topics considered to be of greatest
importance are shown in the top right hand quadrant of the
graph.

Based on the above analysis, we prioritize 10 topics which
are the most material to us: 19. Anti-corruption, 16. Customer
Satisfaction, 18. Customer Privacy, 17. Intellectual Property,
10. Occupational Health and Safety, 12. Child Labour, 11.
Training, 14. Supply Chain Management, 20. Community
Investment and 7. Packaging Consumption.

The result is affirmed by the senior management of the Group
and is considered significant to the sustainable development of
Lukfook. With the result in mind, we will continue to improve its
ESG performance and work on the direction to sustainability to
respond to the expectations of our stakeholders.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ VOICE

Our CSR initiatives were commended by our stakeholders,
including awards and sponsorships in large-scale events that
could build up a positive corporate image and reputation.

Despite environmental issues not being rated as material to
the Group in the assessment, many of our stakeholders paid
high attention to environmental issues. As our operation is
mainly confined to offices, retail shops and processing plants,
stakeholders showed their concern about wastewater treatment
from the processing plant, and thought that environmental
protection was everyone’s responsibility in the community.
Preserving the environment was vital to good health and state of
mind to each individual, which could eventually benefit the whole
society including Lukfook. Our stakeholders proposed that the
Group could consider paperless operation, workplace indoor
greening, energy efficiency and even environmentally friendly
decoration materials in shops.

Our staff reflected that they were aware of the community
programme such as: marathons and voluntary services. They
supported red packet and mooncake box recycling. Many
also said that they hoped to receive more training on product
knowledge and sales technique. Staff outside of Hong Kong
hoped that they could receive training certificates as recognition.
In addition, our staff also indicated that the Group could further
enhance the two-way communication channels for conveying
their suggestions more effectively.
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS TABLE EERSN—EBF
The table below shows the material issues to our business and ~ FRIIHE RN EFEEE AN EEALEEH S
their impact within and outside of Lukfook. B R IAINE R 2 o
Level of Materiality Within Lukfook Outside Lukfook
EEEE i M EB 77 Lo
Environmental
BiE
Air Emission Low
BE R s X v
GHG Emission Low
EELL P IR X v
Hazardous Waste Low
BEERY I8 X /
Non-hazardous Waste Low
EEREY IR X v
Energy Consumption Low
BB i X v
Water Consumption Low
KT i3 X X
Packaging Consumption Medium
G h v X
Impacts on Environment Low
HEANYE I5 X v
Social
it &
Employment Low
1%113% ’ 1K X v
Occupational Health and Safety High
BERBRZE = 4 7
Trainin High
Al 5 v v
Child Labour Medium
BT q: v v
Forced Labour Medium
@45 T mh X v
Supply Chain Management Medium
HEEE D o X v
Customer Health and Safety Low
BERERRE i3 X v
Customer Satisfaction High
BEREE = v v
Intellectual Property High
HBEE = v v
Customer Privacy High
BEELE = v v
Anti-corruption High
RAE = v v
Community Investment Medium
HERE i v v
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TO CUSTOMERS: SIX HEARTFELT SERVICES
Following the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality Services
and Customer Orientation”, we are committed to maintaining the
high standard in daily operation, and remaining meticulous from
supply chain management, quality assurance, to product and
service responsibility.

Supply chain management

Selection process

A well-established procurement procedure and systematic
process is in place that new suppliers or subcontractors have to
be evaluated before being approved and adopted. In addition, the
Group has established strict tendering guidelines. All approved
suppliers and subcontractors have to fulfil the Group’s internal
approval processes and enter into the Supplier Agreement to
ensure that products and services provided are up-to-standard.
Ongoing and regular inspections and assessments are conducted
as regulatory monitoring.

Apart from quality and price, CSR performance is also an
important factor to be considered during the selection process in
order to manage the environmental and social risks of the supply
chain. Guideline for environmental procurement stipulates that
4R (reduce, reuse, recycle and renew) method must be applied
to the whole product life cycle. Under the same conditions, we
give preference to non-allergenic, energy efficient and durable
materials during the selection process.

Responsible sourcing

All our diamond suppliers are required to fulfil the Kimberley
Process Certificate Scheme which ensures that the rough
diamonds supplied are not “conflict diamonds”. To ensure that
the sources of gold raw materials are legal, we select suppliers
with integrity which are recognised within the industry, such as
member of The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society and
Shanghai Gold Exchange.
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Business ethics

The principles of integrity, fairness and justice are always the
foundation of operation. The Group obtained formal management
policies to prevent bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
All of our suppliers and subcontractors are required to sign the
corruption prevention policy in accordance with the guidelines
laid down by the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC”) which sets out relevant code of integrity,
mechanisms for declaration of interest and whistle-blowing to
prevent and curb conflict of interests and corruption issues.

A strict approval system is in place for transactions monitoring
and there are different kinds of internal control to ensure the
compliance by all stakeholders. Apart from employees, we also
expect that all our business partners including customers adhere
to the policy. We do not have any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices during FY2017.

Quality control and assurance

The Group exercises tight quality control and is meticulous from
raw materials procurement, production to sales and after-sales
services.

For our procurement practice, to ensure a reliable supply of quality
diamonds and enhance customer confidence, the Group is a
sightholder of De Beers, the world’s largest diamond producer. At
the same time, our diamond passed the “Natural Diamond Quality
Assurance” Mark scheme accredited by the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, which assures that our diamond products sold are
natural diamonds.
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For our production process, the Group wholly owns a large-scale
jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou, which enables
the Group to offer stable quality supply and carry out quality
control effectively. The production plant will also help the Group
to cope with its growing distribution network and provide stable
jewellery supply to its jewellery shops. Our jewellery processing
plant is warranted on ISO 9001:2008 quality management system
and I1ISO 14001:2004 environmental management system by an
external certification body.

In terms of sales services, a “Six Heartfelt Services” ambassador
was nominated in every retail shop to execute the spirit
thoroughly. “Six Heartfelt Service Voices” has been implemented
as an enhancement of the service programme. Video clips and
service standard are available on the intranet so our staff can
review anytime. The Group have been recognised with a wide
array of awards for management excellence and high-quality
products and service. These include:

o Won “Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” for ten consecutive years and
“Outstanding Award” by “East Week Magazine”

o Awarded “Consumer Caring Company” by GS1 Hong Kong
for five consecutive years

o “Smiling Enterprise Award” by Mystery Shopper Service
Association

Concerning our after-sales services, we have a systematic
process for handling recycled products and quality issues.
Recycled products would be passed to our laboratories after
preliminary identification from retail shops for further verification,
test report would be issued if necessary. Quality issues would be
examined and followed up by relevant department.
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Product and Service Responsibility

Intellectual properties

Intellectual properties committees were set up in Hong Kong
and Mainland China to handle tasks in respect of intellectual
properties, including trademark registration, design patent and
combating of infringement. The Group also actively monitors any
infringement by free-riding brands across the country to safeguard
customers from losses caused by misleading brandnames.

Customer privacy

The Group endeavours to respect and safeguard the
confidentiality of customer privacy, and to strictly observe the
requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. We have
formulated this Policy to set out how the Group collects, uses,
discloses, and maintains customers’ personal data. We have
implemented reasonable measures to protect these data in terms
of monitoring facilities, electronic system and staff management.

Advertisement and labelling on product and service

We have a team of experts to take care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate product information
is provided. Our legal team and legal advisor interact actively with
relevant government departments to safeguard the compliance
on Code of Advertising Practice in overseas and Advertisements
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Provisions on the
administration of advertising language in Mainland China, as well
as other relevant laws and regulations. In Hong Kong, appropriate
training is provided to our frontline staff with monitoring measures
to govern the compliance of Trade Descriptions Ordinance.

Customer satisfaction

Adhering to “Six Heartfelt Services” motto, it is our core values
to maintain high quality standards and to fulfil customers’
requirements, however, complaints are still received in some
cases, which we see as a driving force for our growth. Procedures
regarding customer complaints handling and product returns are
established to respond to our customers in a timely manner and
as an input of continual improvement. During FY2017, we confirm
that there is no product recall due to safety and health reasons.

As for striving for excellence, a customer satisfaction survey has
been carried out to collect feedback and as a channel to keep
abreast of market trend. Seasonal mystery shopper assessment
was conducted by an independent agency to assess Lukfook'’s
quality of products and services.
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TO PUBLIC: LOVE IS BEAUTY

In response to the commitment towards CSR, continually
endeavours to contribute to the society by taking care of the Earth
and making use of our expertise in community engagement is our
strategy to sustainability.

Environmental protection

As a luxuries manufacturer, we crave for different resources
extracted from the planet and the community in which we serve.
It is, therefore, our responsibility to protect the environment by
reducing the impacts within our operations — from factories, retail
stores to offices.

Factory

Certified with the international ISO 14001:2004 standard, an
environmental management system has been developed at
our jewellery processing plants. Our mission is to minimise the
pollution to the environment, make continuous improvement, and
comply with relevant laws and regulations. To achieve so, we have
identified the opportunities to reduce air emission, wastewater,
water use, waste, and energy consumption by analysing the
environmental risks within our operations, and conducted regular
monitoring to ensure the issues were well managed.

While air emissions are inevitably generated as part of the
manufacturing process, we place emphasis on limiting the
emissions from our operations and complying with relevant
laws and regulations. To achieve this, we have implemented
our emission guidelines for cleaner production. For instance, a
filtering system was installed to treat air pollutants — mainly fugitive
emissions and volatile organic compounds — meeting the legal
emission standard before releasing to the atmosphere. We have
also upgraded to laser welding machines which can not only
effectively reduce the air emissions but also protect our workers’
health.

We produce a wide range of waste across the operations;
therefore, we have established comprehensive procedures to
manage waste — no matter whether they are recyclable, non-
recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous waste such as waste
solvents and lubricants generally requires more efforts and clear
guidance is provided for clear labelling, careful storage, transport
and treatment. To promote waste reduction and recycling
practices, we encourage our employees to recycle and reuse
useful parts of the waste such as jewellery pieces and packaging,
helping to divert the waste from landfills.
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Water and energy are used in many of the manufacturing
processes. For water, we place emphasis on not only reducing
the consumption through installing water-saving faucets, but also
exploring ways to optimise its use through reclaiming wastewater
for different purposes such as greening or toilet flushing. For
energy consumption, various initiatives are implemented such as
replacing lighting with energy efficient LEDs and T8 light bulbs.
Maintenance is also regularly carried out to ensure the equipment
is in good condition to conserve resources.

Retail store

Having more than 1,500 stores in different cities around the globe,
we realise that we have a great responsibility and opportunity to
make positive impacts to the environment by making more efforts.

External lighting is used in many ways such as decoration,
advertisement or promotion, and even after midnight when the
stores are closed. As such, we continue to support the “Charter
on External Lighting” initiated by the Hong Kong Environment
Bureau, reducing not only the electricity costs but also lowering
the energy use during off-hours.
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Office

Office operations, in general, do not pose significant impact on
the environment. Still, it is of high importance to encourage green
practices in the office and reduce our footprints by focusing on
the use of water, electricity and paper.

ml
MAELE—RITEHRBEREATE - T
B B E RN BRK - BHRER R
HRBEFE IRZWER-

D >
i

Water e We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.

X BRZ B KESEIRKAIER  EA AKX

Electricty e We encourage switching off the equipment such as computers when they are not in use.
EWi] SR AR AR BN ERE-

Paper e We encourage using electronic communitcation over paper.

i SENEREFBARRAAE X e

e We encourage wise use of toilet paper.

SEERRIAR

e We opt for recycled paper for everyday printing.

EEARERRAEER-

e We encourage using double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing.

o B & [ ET R T 3F 88 [ EN R -

With our great efforts, our environmental performance was
recognised by several organisations in FY2017. For instance, we
won the “EcoPartner” and “5 Years+ EcoPioneer Companies” in
the “2015 BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”
organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank
of China (Hong Kong), recognising our efforts in combatting
pollution and climate change. We were also awarded the “Hong
Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners (Manufacturing)”
in recognition of our dedication in both Hong Kong and China’s
environmental protection.

Corporate citizen

It is always our top priority to fulfii our corporate citizenship
and strive to create long-term values for the communities in
which we operate. As a socially responsible corporation, we
are actively participating in community investment programmes
through donation and volunteering in four main areas: protecting
the environment, caring for community wellness and health,
supporting local arts and culture, and empowering the youth. In
addition, our Lukfook Volunteer Team has been established not
only to build cohesion and a sense of belonging in the Group,
but also to raise employee awareness by encouraging them to
participate in voluntary activities and make contribution to the
communities.
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In FY2017, we supported a wide range of charitable activities and
some of them are highlighted as below:

Environmental Conservation

Climate change is a big challenge that needs to be tackled.
During the Year under review, we partnered with the non-
governmental organisations (“NGOs”), which include The
Conservancy Association, Greeners Action and Green Power,
to promote “bring your own shopping bag” at our retail stores
and improve local waste reduction issue. All the levy we received
on plastic shopping bags was donated to the abovementioned
charity groups. At the same time, we have carried out a number
of programmes at the Group, such as the used red packets
recycling, to raise employees’ environmental awareness.

Community Wellness and Health

Making positive impacts to the community is important to us.
During FY2017, we uphold the spirit of giving back to the society
by playing a part in a series of activities. Our volunteer team has
been supporting Food Angel by preparing hot meal boxes in the
kitchen to provide food assistance for the people in need.

The Group took part in the “Walks for Millions” held by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong once again, and encouraged the
participation of employees and their families to help the needy in
our community.

In FY2017, the Group once again donated HK$1,000,000 to
support the development of medical and community services
provided by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

In Mainland China, we sponsored “Free Lunch for Children”
organised by China Social Welfare Foundation for three
consecutive years, offering nutritious free meals for the
underprivileged school children.

Arts and Culture

We believe that arts and culture are intangibly precious in our
communities. We supported various events such as traditional
Bak Mei martial arts, Cantonese opera and Bun Carnival for the
artistic and cultural development in Hong Kong.
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Youth Empowerment

To empower the young people, we have been partnering with
different organisations to nurture our future leaders in pursuit of
their personal development. For instance, we provided support
for the talented young chess players in the Hong Kong Youth
Chinese Chess Competition 2016, and sponsored the VTC
Design Education Fund for encouraging the designers of the next
generation in Hong Kong.

The Group received a number of awards as recognitions of
its continued efforts in fulfiling CSR. Below are some of the
highlights:

° Awarded “Corporate Citizenship Merit (Enterprise Category)
in the 7th Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Award
scheme”

o Won the First Runner-up in “Ordering Oxfam Rice
(Organization Category)” and “Award for Five Consecutive
Years of Support” in “Oxfam Rice Event 2016”

o Awarded the “SE Supporter 2016” logo under the “SE
Supporter Award Scheme”
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TO EMPLOYEES: LUKFOOK FAMILY

We strive to promote a caring culture and create a friendly and
harmonious working atmosphere to extend the concept of “love”
to our employees. We treat employees as our family members
and care for their physical and mental well-being in order to
enhance their sense of belonging and foster a corporate culture of
the Lukfook Family.

Labour standard

The Group has zero tolerance towards child labour or forced
labour and strictly follows major human rights declaration. We
have procedures, which were established in accordance with
relevant national and local laws, regulations and international
standard, to ensure that our recruitment process as well as daily
operation were in line with the standard. During the Year under
review, we did not identify any issue with child labour and forced
or compulsory labour, indicating positive results from our efforts in
practice.

Equal opportunity employer

We are an equal opportunity employer committed to fair and
impartial treatment of all our staff. As an equal opportunity
employer, diversity in the workplace and in our recruiting practices
is crucial for us. We do not tolerate any discrimination based on
race, religion, disability, family status, sex, marital status, age,
national origin, or other considerations deemed inappropriate by
local laws.

Remuneration packages are based on job responsibilities,
performance and contributions to business results as well as
the employees’ professional and managerial competency. Staff
undergo annual appraisals and are rewarded appropriately
according to their performance and contributions to the Group’s
development, as outlined in our staff handbook.

Employment standard

Staff handbooks are distributed to all new staff members when
they join the Group to ensure that they understand their rights
and obligations. In addition to hard copy, the content of staff
handbook is also available on the intranet for staff access.

The Group provides staff with competitive remuneration and
benefits, including paid leave, paternity and maternity leave
and marriage leave, medical insurance and retirement plans,
staff discount as well as performance-based incentives and
bonuses. Meal allowance, bonuses and other merit payments are
provided to retail staff. Remuneration policies are reviewed and
approved by the management regularly to ensure fair rewards
and compensation for employees. Remuneration packages are
structured to be comparable to the market while bonuses and
other merit payments are linked to the performances of the Group
and the employees.
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We won the “Good MPF Employer Award 2015-16" from the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority for placing a high
value on their employees’ retirement needs.

Anti-corruption

Appropriate measures were set up to maintain the integrity of
our staff all the time. All newly employed staff are required to sign
the corruption prevention undertaking and comply with the code
of conduct and discipline as set out in our staff handbook and
relevant ordinances with respect to prevention of acceptance of
advantages between suppliers and staff. In addition, refreshing
training held by the ICAC was arranged regularly for new and
existing staff to reaffirm the importance of integrity.

Grievance mechanism

Grievance mechanism was established for the Group to enhance
the competitiveness and management policies. Grievance and
suggestions can be directly delivered to the Group via emall,
telephone or face-to-face interview. Whistle-blowing channel is
addressed in staff handbook; grievances raised would be treated
confidentially to protect the whistle-blower.

Work-life balance

We offer different kinds of leisure and sports activities such as:
yoga class, Japanese class, charitable mah-jong competition and
marathon to energise the working atmosphere as well as achieve
a work-life balance. We have achieved the “Happiness-at-work”
Label organised by the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation
and the Hong Kong Productivity Council for three consecutive
years.
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Development and training

The Group encourages continuous learning in our employees and
puts emphasis on their holistic development; we highly regard
nurturing talents as one for our key strategies. The Group has
established a comprehensive training system and assessment
criteria from theory, sales technique, product knowledge to
personal character. For director and management level staff,
continuous professional training is provided on topics such
as: leadership, corporate governance and updated laws and
regulations. Internal, external and electronic learning are provided
for employees in different departments to sharpen their skills and
competencies. Orientation and on-the-job training is provided for
new joiners. Apart from the Hong Kong head office and the online
training platform, four regional training centres are established
in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Wuhan, respectively, for
providing internal training programmes. Subsidies are provided to
eligible employees for studying industry related programmes.

The Group has co-organised training programmes with external
organisations, for instance: jade product knowledge training
course with the Hong Kong Institute of Gemmology; China GTC
diamond and jade inspector certificate with Guangdong Province
Jewellery and precious metals testing centre.

Qualifications Framework

The Group actively supported the “Qualifications Framework
(QF)” held by the Education Bureau of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region by encouraging and sponsoring employees
to participate in professional training. Our training department
registered the “Certificate Programme in Quality Customer
Service and Jewellery Knowledge (QF Level 2)” and “Certificate
Programme in Advanced Jewellery Knowledge (QF Level 3)” so
that employees can be qualified and benchmarked through this
hierarchy.
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Outreach training

Qutreach training was the highlight of this year. The training
combined adventure activities, experiential learning with group
and individual counselling to enhance the self-belief of staff.
Managerial staff in Hong Kong and Mainland China were invited to
join. Positive feedback was provided by our managers that they
could improve their leadership and communication skills after the
training, mutual trust and tacit understanding were also built. To
conclude, this is an effective tool for us to build an outstanding
team.

The Group has obtained “Manpower Developer” by the
Employees Retraining Board in 2016 for the outstanding
performance in fostering new talents in the jewellery industry.

Occupational health and safety

Lukfook believes that occupational health and safety is not only
one of our core principles, but also our commitment to every
employee. Safety and health management are incorporated into
our operation by complying with relevant safety regulations and
standards. During the Year under review, the number and ratio of
work fatality for the Group were both zero.

Office and retail store

The Group endeavours to provide a comfortable and safe working
environment. Our occupational health and safety code, for
example, on electricity, manual handling and working with display
screen equipment, is regularly reviewed and updated on our
intranet to enhance the awareness of staff and prevent accidents
from happening.

Factory

Risk assessment on occupational hazard and disease was
conducted for our factories in Mainland China by an external
competent organisation to ensure that all workplace hazards
were identified and under monitoring. An occupational hygiene
management system was established so that relevant measures
such as: occupational health check for related employees, regular
health and safety inspection in workplace, personal protective
equipment and training were executed to ensure the physical
well-being of our employees.
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING

GUIDE INDEX

The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
BXAER HERERRERSIN—REE

A. Environment

A BE

A1 Emissions

A1 HERRY)

A2 Use of Resources
A2 BRFER

A3 The Environment and
Natural Resources
ASIRERAAER

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas

emissions, discharges into water and

land, generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous wastes, etc

BRERREREHER  RKRL

MEHT  BEREEEEYNEE

S1:0k

@B Rk

b) ETHETABERTENIEH
HE R BIEE R

Policies on the efficient use of
resources including energy, water
and other raw materials
ARERER (BEER
[RFTR) BB SR

KR EAM,

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources
REBEITAHRERRAREREK
BAFENHE

BZFRIBE T e

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Air Emission Management Guideline

R E R

Solid Waste Management Guideline

ElRRE Y B R 5|

Wastewater Emission Management
Guideline

FEKBERE B4R 5|

Green Office Guideline

ISR

Environmental Procurement Guideline
RIREBI{ERES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
PAERTH—MEETERES
Green practices on the use of
resources are implemented. We
are in the process of setting up the
environmental policies in retail store
BB REREIRREKE - BIMHEE
HIETEEFRRER

The Group’s operations do not have
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources
AEEEEHRERARERLE
ENEATE
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Reference Section
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To Public: Love is Beauty —
Environmental Protection

AR BRE —RAERE

To Public: Love is Beauty —
Environmental Protection
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING

GUIDE INDEX

A

B /A $&%

The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
BXAER HERERRERSIN—REE

B. Social
B.it®

B1 Employment
B1 Ef®

B2 Health and Safety
B2 @R 2

B3 Development and Training

B3 ZE Kl

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and

dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare

BRE R EE BEREF T

BE R FERE Sl Rk

18 DA B B A 5538 T AR A1) 9 -

(@) BUR: |
L) ETHEITABERT ENIEH
FERAGIMER

Information on:

() the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting

employees from occupational

hazards

BEARBR2IHERERRERES

BEBEMEEN:

() BR: I

L) BFHBETABEAY ERIHH
HE R E R

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities
BHRTHES BT IIERE MM
BB - f LB R B

BiZFRIRIR I E R EiaHEESIR5]

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Staff Handbook
& 8 Ff

Occupational Health and Safety
Guideline for Office and Retail Store
RAZRTEENBERRRRZ
3l

Training Key Performance Indicator
I BRERIEE

Reference Section

BEEH

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Employment Standard, Work-
life Balance, Equal Opportunity
Employer

HET "BARE — ERFER
X TERAFNTE - TS5
gEE

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Occupational Health and
Safety

HET REARE —BER
BRZ®

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Development and Training
HET: "BARE —ZERR

&l
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING

GUIDE INDEX

The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
BXMBR HEREIREESIN-—RES

B4 Labour Standards
B4 & T %8|

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 et E 12

B6 Product Responsibility
B6 EmE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 k&S

B8 Community Investment

B8 ft &1 &

50

Information on:

() the policies; and

() compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced

labour

BRMIEZE TSGR TH:

(a) B3R : &2

(o) BTHETAREAT EHNAH
EE R E R

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of supply chain
ERHEGERIRE Rt g B RECR

Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of
redress
BRMREERNRBNERER
2 BE BERLEEEUARER
a0k

() R |
L) BETHBEITABEATYEMNIEH
FEERAGINER

Information on:

() the policies; and

() compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud

and money laundering

BN IEHE DR BEFRERE

#:

(8) B3R %
O ETHETABEATZ RN
EERAPINER

Policies on community engagement
to understand the community’s
needs where it operates and
to ensure its activities take into
consideration communities” interests
BRNHEL2ERT BEEMEL

FENRREEBEDGZBM
I M) 5 B R

BiXFRRE it &
Policy/Procedure
BEEF
Staff Handbook
& 8 5

Anti-bribery Trade Policy; Engineering
and Operation of Goods Approval
Process; Financial Authorization and
Signing Approval Procedure
RERZZBE BmIiEREES
WREF: BERENRFEURRERF

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure

BERFREER

Staff Handbook
EEF

We are in the process of setting up
the community investment policies

HAHEHELRRERR
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Reference Section

BEZEM

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Labour Standard

HET "BARE —4T%
Al

To Customers: Six Heartfelt
Services - Supply Chain

Management
HER : SORB — HEEE
i

To Customers: Six Heartfelt
Services - Product and Service
Responsibility

HEX: SORB —ERRR
BEE

To Employees: Lukfook Family
- Anti-corruption, Grievance
Mechanism
HEL:ABARE —
75 B

RE

To Public: Love is Beauty -
Corporate Citizen

HAR ERX—ERR
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
EFERESZRENENR

* Executive Director $117# %
# Non-executive Director JE$/TE %
A Independent Non-executive Director 37 3EE11TE =
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises that sound and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures, with an
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interest. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) through the year ended 31 March 2017, except for
the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear division
of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland China market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company will
further enhance the business development of the Group in the
Mainland China market due to the norms in the Mainland China
market on “status parity” when future business negotiations are
conducted in Mainland China. Besides, members of the Board
also include qualified professionals and other prominent and
experienced individuals from our community. The Board considers
that the existing Board composition, with the support of Board
Committees and two Deputy Chairmen, can ensure a balance
of power and authority. The Board will nevertheless review this
structure from time to time and will consider the segregation of
the two roles at the appropriate time.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or was not for any part of the year ended 31 March 2017, in
compliance with the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, it is confirmed that all directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

() Board Composition
The Board currently comprises six executive directors,
four non-executive directors and five independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, general trading, securities industry, banking
industry and legal profession. There is a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The composition of our Board
complies with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The current composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 86 to 96 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(ii) Attendance Records at the Board, Committees

and General Meetings

The attendance records of the individual directors at
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meetings for the year

ended 31 March 2017 are set out as follows:

EET @)
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No. of Meetings Attended/Held

= &
BEEE®

BEggs R4

&N

HE/ STEERE
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors EX Esw ERZAY REZAE FHMZRE BRRBEXE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & =B & %4 (TEH 4/4 N/A T i@ 1/1 2/2 1/1
Chief Executive) (Note 1) TBAEE) (HiE1)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HMBEE 4/4 N/A A 1/ N/A N A 11
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) (BIZE) (Hi2)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung InBrt 474 N/A T8 N/A T8 F 2/2 1/1
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy LR 4/4 N/A T N/A 73 F N/A T i F il
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BEKZL 4/4 N/A 138 N/A 7~ F N/A 13 F il
Dr. CHAN So Kuen BRxBELT 4/4 N/A i F N/A i N/A N 11
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny HERAE 4/4 N/A B N/A & A N/A RE A il
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 3) (BIEE) (K##3)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BERZT 4/4 N/A 138 N/A 7~ F N/A i 11
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FRAATaT 4/4 N/A RNEA N/A iE A N/A @A il
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP FEBMHA T4+ 4/4 N/A N F N/A TN N/A TR 11
Independent Non-executive BiUkpfTER
Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander BEREE 4/4 2/2 il 2/2 il
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP 35 GBS A T + 444 2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BXHEE 4/4 2/2 il 2/2 il
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BERERFET 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 il
Mr. HUI King Wai FRELE 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 11

Annual Report 2016/17 4R 55



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

flaES

_LLL/‘\-/-\-\

/I:lilﬁ&l:l

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

56

Attendance Records at the Board, Committees
and General Meetings (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 17 August 2016.

2. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the

Company with effect from 17 August 2016.
3. Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman
of the Company with effect from 17 August 2016.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others are understood and met.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation (Continued)
All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina
and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and, having taken into account the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, will have served as an
independent non-executive director of the Company for
more than 9 years after 24 July 2017. He will retire at the
2017 annual general meeting of the Company held on 23
August 2017. Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the
Code, his re-election as Director should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. The
Company’s circular to be despatched to shareholders on or
about 20 July 2017 will contain the biographical information
of Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander and the reasons why
the Board believes he is still independent and should be re-
elected.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

58

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Board had at
all times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during
their terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors were encouraged by the Company to participate
in the relevant continuous professional training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has also arranged for consultants to provide training
programmes. The average training hours that the directors
received were not less than 10 hours.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
arranged a seminar covering updates on Accounting
Standards and Cybersecurity. Directors’ training records
during the Year under review are summarised as follows:

EFEg W
(vii EEMIFERRE (])

HE2017FE3A31H I FE » A ARG
TR e ARER G ERNES
MPiE L2 - NEIEFEN  EERE
oBEBEaian T

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

TREERRE ETTXIRAR
Directors EE 3 fth 46 B8 5% RE A0 B Bl
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung HEELE v
(Chairman & Chief Execultive) (F/EFTHAEZ)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmETE v
(Deputy Chairman) EHEY
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung Tkt v
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy B v
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BBkt v
Dr. CHAN So Kuen PRERE L v
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny =R AE 4
(Deputy Chairman) (BIZE/E)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER L v
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SRR R4+ v
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP FEEMHAKF 4L v
Independent Non-executive Directors HILJEHITESE
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander BERLTAE 4
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP B GBSA T+ v
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BRI A v
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BN T v
Mr. HUI King Wai B B 5 v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive is delegated with the authority and responsible for
running the Company’s business, implementing the Company’s
strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive positions are currently held by Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board believes that the
current governance structure, with a combined Chairman and
Chief Executive and a vast majority of non-executive directors,
provides an effective balance of power and authority for the
management of the Company in the best interest of the Company
at the present stage.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander,
with four other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and
Mr. HUI King Wai. Al Committee members are independent
non-executive directors, a higher majority than that required
by the Listing Rules. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, majority of the members possess appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the Code and the internal audit
plan and functions of the Group.

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditors
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external
auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to the
Group’s financial statements and evaluating the Group’s
system of internal controls, to the extent that they
consider necessary to support their audit report. The Audit
Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire process.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

62

Audit Committee (Continued)
The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

° reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

° approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
internal control matters;

o reviewing the financial control, internal control and
risk management systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

° reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2017, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with six
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI
King Wai, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors. The Chairman of this Committee
is an independent non-executive director and five out of
seven Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, a higher majority than that required by the Code.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

64

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members
of the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit
and contribution which would be brought by the candidates
to the Board if he/she was selected as a director. The
Nomination Committee is of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set
out in the above board diversity policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director, with
six other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr.
HUI King Wai, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors. The Chairman of this Committee
is an independent non-executive director and five out of
seven Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, a higher majority than that required by the Listing
Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2017, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2016 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the Head Office.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of the
senior management by band during the Year under review
are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements on pages
180 to 184 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Board is composed of members from a diverse background.
The Company excels in gender equality as female Directors
account for two-fifth of the whole Board. The chief financial
officer, an executive director and three independent non-
executive directors are qualified accountants. There is also an
independent non-executive director who is a qualified solicitor.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee was the Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Seven Directors
have experience sitting on the boards of other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Directors have
extensive experiences in the retail jewellery business, finance and
accounting, taxation, business strategy, securities and investment,
public relations, communications and marketing, branding, and
exposure or experience in various countries including China, etc.
They are members, or committee or panel members of various
industry bodies, public service or government bodies or charities.
The Directors bring a wealth of diverse experience to the Board,
which is conducive to the growth of the Company over the years.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, were as
follows:

ZREN N &

EF'EJ’?I\HE“ 12 BUED 78 FLRUOKGE & AR A5 P (8
SETED) RREER MIREF R 2 17

s

2017

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services Ei AR 5,353
Non-audit services EFET R

— Review service —EZ MRS 546

— Tax related service — TS A8 A AR S 380

Total @t 6,279

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the result and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects. The
published financial statements adopt, and consistently apply,
suitable accounting policies complying with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest
and the Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the
assistance of the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Head
of the Internal Audit Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the directors,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Team. The reports summarised information relating to the work
carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (Continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the
risk management system and an examination of the internal
control system have been adequately executed by the Internal
Audit Team during the Year under review. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management has been progressively
implementing adequate and effective risk management and
internal control systems in order to ensure the effective functioning
of the Company’s operations.

Risk Management Committee

As our commitment to establishing and improving the risk
management system, ensuring timely identification and
management of risks for the achievement of corporate objectives,
the Risk Management Committee was set up in 2016, comprising
the Chairman and Chief Executive, four executive Directors
and a senior executive of the Group. The duties of the Risk
Management Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review
the Company’s compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules regarding risk management requirements;
(i) coordinate staff training, including risk management principles,
assessment methodology and its implementation; and (i) assign
personnel to support departments to perform risk assessment
for newly established business or projects, if necessary. This
committee reports directly to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL REEERMEBESEE (&)
CONTROL (Continued)

Risk Management Framework R EEREE

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is A QABIHER EIZEEB NN THIFR
shown as below:

Risk Management Framework
B EEEE

Policy

B
Report

EiR

Risk Management Committee

EhEEEES
Report Procedures &
é%% Standards
’ Departments & Management BFEREE
AR EEE

Objective Setting Risk Risk Risk Effectiveness Monitoring
and Categorisation W Identification W Analysis B Treatment B and Reporting
BERRERGE B BB R REE EERRERRN

Board of Directors EFY
e Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management o B EEEKEEHEHER ML
across the Group;

e Approving the criteria of risk assessment; o FHLEMRFTMAER:

e Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profle o  FHtHEEE SR RBEXAEEATE

or exposure; HRE ;

e Approving changes to key elements of the risk management o FEHLE B EIRRE FEEEHRIRE
procedures;

e Approving the Group’s risk management policy; and e FHEBERBREERE: R

e Monitoring significant risks o  ERSAEE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Audit Committee

° Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

° Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management

Risk Management Committee
o Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;

° Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

° Approving risk registers;

° Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules regarding risk
management requirements;

° Appointing risk owners;

° Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

° Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

° Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner; and

° Coordinating staff training
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)
Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Departments & Management

Departments and management are responsible for the
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of

responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation
o Strategies;

° Operation;
° Financial reporting; and
° Compliance

Risk ldentification
° The Group provides examples of risk factors; and

° Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives

Risk Analysis
° Considering existing control measures;

o Using a consistent scoring criteria; and

° Assessing the residual risks

Risk Treatment
° Choosing a risk treatment strategy;

o Establishing a treatment plan; and

° Appointing risk owners

Effectiveness Monitoring and Reporting
° Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and

° Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management Committee review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Internal Audit Team also conducts independent
audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee for its review and appraisal.
A final report will be submitted to the Board for accessing the
effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Team will follow up and/or re-classified as “severe” risk in
the risk management system for further formulating measures to
resolve or prevent such defects.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the
Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s
management and reporting functionally to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Team is authorised to obtain all information
necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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INTERNAL AUDIT (Continued)

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Team. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly to
closely monitor business or operation changes. Regular audit
tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation. The
Internal Audit Team also conducts other projects and investigating
work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with
respective department heads to have actions agreed and
subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory
control is maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of
the internal audit activities and audit results are also submitted to
the Audit Committee twice a year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring an
SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene an SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of
three months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. An
SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be
convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less
than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (i)
give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (ii)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavours to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation in
certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official website
serves as a handy communication channel for the shareholders.
Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at Luk Fook Jewellery
Centre, No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also make proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EREHRE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 (“the Year
under review”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) is investment holding. The subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling,
trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum
jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 22;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 77 to 105;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 22;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 22;

(e) Information about the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) policies and performance — ESG
Report on pages 30 to 50 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 77 to 105;
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

® Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 51 to 76 and “Report of the Directors” on pages 77
to 105; and

(@ An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “ESG
Report” on pages 30 to 50 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 77 to 105.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the global or
Mainland China’s economy affects the retail market sentiment as
a whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the spending of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, close branches with
low profitability and search for suitable locations in other areas, for
new shops.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging ratio of around 20% which
mitigate the impact on the profit due to the drop in gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to increase brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 23
to 29.

Inventory Turnover
Owing to the impact of volatile macroeconomic environment in
Asia especially Mainland China, our inventory turnover bears the
risk of slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their consistency with the Group’s image and operation
standard. We maintain a close working relationship with our
licensed shops as well as provide one-stop support to them, such
as shop-opening training, the provision of operation manuals and
regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitored the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control; Product Quality Control; Distribution Network
Control; Pricing Control; Brand Image Control; and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out in page 80.
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Control System on Licensed Shops
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Operational Compliance Audit Team
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Regulatory Risks

Change in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could
adversely affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close
eye on the change in such laws and regulations and adjusts the
Group’s operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the
Group’s market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up
committees in both Hong Kong and Nansha of Mainland China
to handle tasks in respect of intellectual properties (such as
trademarks, design patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark
in the regions where Lukfook has a presence (such as Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia, Korea, Australia,
the United States and Canada). Our legal department has
reached a consensus with our product development department,
marketing department and design department that any new
product, collection, display prop and fitting out design should
be forwarded as soon as practicable to the legal department for
applying for design patent/copyright in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau so as to ensure the maximum protection for the
Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland China, and cooperate with the law enforcement
agencies to fight against infringement. The Group always
encourages colleagues to monitor any infringement during their
business trips and report the infringement to the legal department,
and endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s
intellectual properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective communications.
During the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The
Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training
and resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and facilitate their
self-fulfillment in their positions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 115.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.29
per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK$0.26 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$0.55 per ordinary share. A total of
HK$322,909,000 was paid on 20 December 2016.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.40 per ordinary
share and a special dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share,
totalling HK$0.55 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: HK$0.55 per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 29 August
2017. Taking into account of the interim and special dividends
paid, the total dividend for the year would amount to HK$1.10
per ordinary share, totalling HK$645,818,000 for the year (2016:
HK$1.10 per ordinary share, totaling HK$646,918,000). Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held on 23
August 2017, the final and special dividends will be paid on or
around 7 September 2017.
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DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the Year under
review amounted to approximately HK$1,805,000 (2016:
HK$2,016,000).

SHARES ISSUED
Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2017,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$998,771,000 (2016: HK$947,756,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FET FET
Results 4
Revenue WA 12,807,277 14,031,302 15,922,708 19,214,930 13,411,691
Profit attributable to equity KRR ERFEA
holders of the Company JEAh % F 1,016,838 958,692 1,614,805 1,864,928 1,242,951
Assets and liabilities HSERAE
Total assets BEE 10,679,250 10,629,499 11,511,237 9,586,156 7,561,875
Total liabilities BEE 1,699,310 1,860,580 2,910,730 1,887,001 1,084,282
Shareholders’ funds BEES 8,873,350 8,673,796 8,536,363 7,640,769 6,424,748
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF BA -HeEsXEOSES

SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2017 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Mr.
LI Hon Hung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander and Ms. WONG Yu
Pok, Marina, shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM. All the
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM. Details of the proposed directors to be re-elected are
set out in the circular sent together with this Annual Report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 66, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Group. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. WONG has over 50 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is the Honorary Life
President and the Associate Director of The Kowloon Gold Silver
and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association, the Honorary Permanent
Chairman of Hong Kong Jade Association, the Chairman of
Supervisory Committee of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones,
Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, the
Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary
Chairman of the First General Committee and Vice President of
Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association, the
Honorary Vice-president of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association
of China, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Small and
Medium Enterprises Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association, Founding Member
and Vice-president of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative
Industry Association, Honorary Consultant of H.K. Gold & Silver
Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union, the President
of Hong Kong Precious Metals Traders Association Limited as
well as the elected member of General Committee of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council. Mr. WONG is the father of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Company and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy,
Executive Director and Deputy Business Director of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 66, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 44 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
merchandising and production functions of the Group. Mr. TSE
is an Executive Committee member of the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a Vice President of The Chinese Gold
& Silver Exchange Society, the Vice-chairman of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, a Life Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and Commerce Association Limited,
the President of The Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing
Committee, a member of the Kwun Tong District Junior Police
Call (JPC) Honorary President Council, a Vice-chairman of Macau
Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director of Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan
and Zhaoqging Friendship Association, an Honorary President
of Tsuen Wan Committee for Celebration of Reunification of
Hong Kong with China, an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan
Preparatory Community of National Day, a Vice President
of Zhaoqing Overseas Friendship Association, an Honorary
Consultant of Shatin Friends Society, an Executive Committee
member and Vice Director of Finance of Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association, a Vice-chairperson of Tsuen Wan
District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association,
an Honorary President of H.K. Gold & Silver Ornament Workers
& Merchants General Union, an Honorary President of The
Residents Association of Tsuen Wan Hoi Bun District, an Honorary
President of Hong Kong New Territories District Adviser Alumni
Association, a 12th Term Executive Director of Guangzhou
Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers Association and an Honorary
Consultant of Hong Kong Precious Metals Traders Association
Limited. Moreover, Mr. TSE was awarded the “Chief Executive’s
Commendation for Community Service” by the Government of the
Hong Kong SAR.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 44, is the Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Group and a member of
the Remuneration Committee. She is also a Director of China
Gold Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the
Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brandname of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994
and served various departments for about 7 years until 2002.
She rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible
for the Group’s operations and development of the retail and
licensing businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for the
human resources, administration and training functions of the
Group. She holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from University of Southern Queensland. Ms. WONG is a
member of Guangzhou Panyu District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing Director of
Gemmological Association of Fujian, a member of The Jewellery
Industry Training Advisory Committee, the Honorary Life President
of Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and Commercial Fellowship
Association, the 5th Term Standing Director of Guangzhou Panyu
Overseas Friendship Association and the First Term Committee
Member of Hong Kong Federation of Guangzhou Associations
Women’s Committee. She has over 23 years of experience in the
jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 36, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Business Director of the Group. She joined the
Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing the
Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications and e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds
a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce from the University of Toronto,
Canada and a Master’s Degree of Science in China Business
Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also
a Certified Public Accountant of the United States of America.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international
professional accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed
auditing and accounting assignments for a variety of business
organizations including listed companies. She received the GIA
Diamond Graduate title in 2007. She is a Co-opted Member of
the Marketing Activities Committee of the Quality Tourism Services
Association, a member of Jewellery Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council and a member of Young
Diamantaire Group of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong. Ms.
WONG is the daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s
Chairman, Chief Executive and Executive Director and the sister of
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 47, is the Executive Director and
Deputy Product Development Director of the Group. She has
over 29 years of experience in the jewellery industry. She joined
the Group in 1990 and is responsible for the product design and
development functions of the Group. Ms. CHUNG frequently
visits jewellery exhibitions worldwide for product exploration
and sourcing the finest jewellery and jewellery parts for the
Group. In 2001, Ms. CHUNG won the Best of Show Award for
her design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition. She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in
2004. Ms. CHUNG is an Executive Committee member and Vice
Director of General Affairs of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’
Association, a Director of the 5th Congress of Gemmological
Association of Fujian and a fellow of the Professional Validation
Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector Limited.

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 57, has been appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group
since September 2012 and an Executive Director of the Group
since 21 August 2015. Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City University
(the United States of America), with a doctorate degree and a
master’s degree in Business Administration, respectively. She is
also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Dr. CHAN had been the Director of Finance &
Company Secretary and the Deputy Chairman of the Board
of Directors & Chief Executive Officer of Bossini International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0592) for approximately 3 and
4 years respectively during the period from 2003 to 2010. Dr.
CHAN has substantial financial and management experiences in
vast varieties of businesses for more than 31 years. Dr. CHAN
is currently responsible for the overall financial management,
corporate finance, information technology, investor relations and
company secretarial matters of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 40, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a member
of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a Permanent President of Sze Wui and
Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong) Limited, the
President of Sihui Dasha Town Clansman’s Association (Hong
Kong), an Executive Committee member of Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Limited, a Supervisory Committee
member of Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths’ Association, a
Supervisory Committee member of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association,
a Vice President of Executive Committee of Shamshuipo Council
For the Promotion of Cultural & Recreational Services Ltd., a
member of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong and a
member of The Association of the Hong Kong Members of
Guangdong’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Committees Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG
received the GIA Diamond Graduate title. He is the son of Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive and
Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy, an Executive Director and Deputy Business Director of the
Company.

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 50, is the co-founder of
the Group. Ms. YEUNG has over 29 years of experience in public
relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and
Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the 4th Runner-
up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms. YEUNG was
the President of the Wai Yin Association for the year 1995-1996.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 70, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 46 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council
Member and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, a Director of
the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member
of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and
Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform, a member of the Committee on Real
Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission and also an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A.
Mr. HUI was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR as
a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and was also a member of the
Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017. He had also been
a member of Government “Appointees” (independent member)
of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong.
Mr. HUI also serves as Independent Non-executive Director of
Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (Stock Code: 0908),
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1212),
Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited (Stock
Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
2386), Agile Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3383) and
FSE Engineering Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0331) whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He was an Independent Non-executive Director of Asia Allied
Infrastructure Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711) and Hong
Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (Stock Code: 0388) until
his resignation effective from 1 February 2015 and his retirement
effective from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP, aged 60, has been appointed as
a Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 October
2011. Mr. LI holds a Diploma of Architectural Design from
Humber College of Toronto, Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s
of Architecture from New York Institute of Technology in 1984.
Mr. LI was awarded the Certificate of Registration Authorized
Person (List of Architects) in 1989 and the Certificate of
Registered Inspector in 2012, by the Government of the
HKSAR respectively. In professional qualification aspect,
Mr. LI is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and a
Member of Architect Registration Board. He also got the PRC
Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has extensive
architecture experience and is a Director of Li & Siu Associates
Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition, he is a
Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed as a
District Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000 to
2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For
Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in 2008.
Mr. LI has been appointed to various positions over the years
including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison
Team), Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sheung
Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 59, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
July 2008 and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria
University of Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in
Bachelor of Commerce and Administration in 1982 and became
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. TAI has extensive accountancy,
corporate finance and investment experience in Hong Kong and
overseas. Mr. TAl is an executive director of Investec Capital
Asia Limited (formerly known as Access Capital Asia Limited), a
licensed corporation under the SFO to conduct Type 1 (dealing
in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities. Mr. TAl is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (Stock Code: 0914),
Jiayuan International Group Limited (Stock Code: 2768) and
G & M Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6038) which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 65, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. IP graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Social
Sciences in 1973. He subsequently pursued further studies in
Oxford University and Harvard Business School. Mr. IP joined the
Hong Kong Government in November 1973 as an Administrative
Officer and had served various government departments. Mr.
IP was promoted to the rank of Director of Bureau in April
1997. He worked in the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a
Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions
held by Mr. IP in the past included Commissioner of Insurance,
Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic Services
and Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position
of Secretary for Economic Development and Labour on 1
July 2002. His portfolio in respect of economic development
covered air and sea transport, logistics development, tourism,
energy, postal services, meteorological services, competition
and consumer protection. He was also responsible for labour
policies including matters relating to employment services, labour
relations and employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour, Mr. IP was a member
of the Hong Kong Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Authority Board, the Hong Kong International
Theme Parks Company Board as well as the Chairman of
the Logistics Development Council, Port Development Board,
Maritime Industry Council and Aviation Development Advisory
Committee. Mr. IP retired from the Government of the HKSAR
in July 2007. Mr. IP received the Gold Bauhinia Star award from
the Government of the HKSAR in 2001, and is an unofficial
Justice of the Peace. Mr. IP is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1313), Synergis Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2340), Lai
Sun Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488) and
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888) which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 64, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor
of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank for over
26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served as the
Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong, being
the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the coverage bankers. Prior to that, he also
managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of I.T Limited
(Stock Code: 0999), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1125), Hong Kong Television Network Limited (Stock Code: 1137)
and Goldpac Group Limited (Stock Code: 3315) which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong Kong Housing
Society in May 2015 and is currently a member of its Audit
Committee and Special Committee on Investment.

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 68, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. WONG joined the Company on 20 August 2013.
Ms. WONG had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 36
years specializing in the Mainland China tax and business advisory
services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the development
of the firm’s business in the Mainland China. Ms. WONG joined
Tricor Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006 after her
retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004.
Ms. WONG is currently a member of the Dental Council of Hong
Kong. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683) and Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636), which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 21 August 2015. He
is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently an Of
Counsel of Locke Lord LLP. Mr. HUI was admitted the solicitor
practising of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1981 and 1982 respectively. Mr.
HUI was a Non-executive Director of the Group during the period
from 1999 to 2013.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 56, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined
the Group in 2014. He has over 40 years of manufacturing
and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr.
WONG is responsible for the Group’s merchandising and
assembly functions of diamonds and gemstones. He holds the
titles of a Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center
and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. He is the 2nd term member of the Guangzhou
Nansha District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the Vice-chairman of Hong
Kong Guangzhou Nansha Association, the 6th term Executive
Director of Guangzhou Overseas Friendship Association,
a Consultant of Guangzhou Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers
Association, the 4th term Executive Director of Guangzhou
Panyu Overseas Friendship Association, the 3rd term Director
of Guangzhou Panyu District Overseas Exchange Association,
a Director of Guangzhou Diamond Exchange and a Director of
Guangzhou Panyu District Chamber of Commerce (Chamber).
Mr. WONG is the brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s
Chairman, Chief Executive and Executive Director.
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EETWME

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 55, is the Deputy Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997. She is mainly
responsible for accounting, finance and tax planning matters of
the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to Mainland China in search
of information on national tax policies and privileges in order to
develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She has over 31 years of
experience in financial and accounting for commercial firms.

RETIREMENT SCHEME
Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year
under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
(@) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

EERE®
ne

R2017F3A31H BRI XHEREEN NARE
ERRSTHA BB ER A A 7] 5T A 48 B
ZE (EERFEHFLRBERD ([FHEBEK
Bl 1) EXVER) 2 B D - IR RESH
B@RIEEH K HE GG E35214 R € H L %
REZAGEAT I E M kOB IEE BB AR S AT
ABRAE ([BRFT])FEHFEMAR ([ LR
Al 1) B8 10FT 8L ( EmEss /\E%Lﬁfﬁ%‘ﬁ&
SHZAESTR) ([12%SFR ) B AR
BT 2 B MR B

TRAERESZHRR

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the ZF2ATRRGRERMKHBZIFE:
Company:
Number of Ordinary Shares
FERSE
Beneficiary Controlled Beneficial Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
¢ 3.3 f_§73 L-PN (3] SRfEE BEEREA EoEE (GRHEESL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 4,044,561 404,000 240,868,176 1,511,050 246,827,787 (L) 42.04%
ERELE note (a) note (b) note (d)
fi5E() fit (o) W5 ()
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 422,344 240,868,176 241,290,520 (L) 41.10%
Bl i note (c)
fii5E(c)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung 60,000 60,000 (L) 0.01%
InBEat
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 385,000 1,511,050 1,896,050 (L) 0.32%
L B note (d)
Mz ()
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping 267,865 267,865 (L) 0.05%
gEEikat
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 80,000 5,000 85,000 (L) 0.01%
BREHLT note (e)
fit 7 (e)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 370,000 1,611,060 1,881,050 (1) 0.32%
EEREE note (d)
A3t ()
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 837,437 (1) 0.14%
TR
(L) Long position &
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 404,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was a discretionary beneficiary of the WONG’s Family Trust
(the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which controlled over
one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited. Accordingly, Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and was deemed to be
interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment
Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504
shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (c)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled (directly
or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 234,185,672
shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment
Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504
shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, were discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust. The Trust was
the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery
& Goldsmith Company Limited which in turn was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050
shares of the Company.

Note (e)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWME

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2017, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the

FERRREMREMKRGZER

R2017F3A31H BRI XHEEIN EARAF
EEZNRSTHRABME  MEEMIERAAT
EEYERTHRABZ ATRARRRSG &
EERD S - HEERIEEF R E G EXVED
FOREID PIEAMA R BHE 2 R TOK

A

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of & -
the SFO.
Number of Total
Name of Shareholder Shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BEEE B8R BB E 4] Ease ERHEDLL
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,799,022 (1) Beneficial Owner 244,669,198 (L) 41.67%
BRiELE ERfAA
2,000 (L) Spouse
(note (a)) =
(B EE(a))
240,868,176 () ~ Controlled Corporation
(note (b)) 2% E
(M)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 (1) Beneficial Owner 243,546,266 (L) 41.48%
(Deceased on 19 June 2016) ExEBA
ERELAE 240,868,176 () Controlled Corporation
(201696719 HEF ) (note (b)) SHEE
(M)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 (1) Beneficial Owner 249,825,029 (1) 42.55%
(Deceased on 14 July 2011) ExBEBA
EX b 243,454,800 ()  Controlled Corporation
(#2011 F7 B14 BEH) (notes (b), (¢) SEHEE
and (d))
(M5 0) ©
R(d)
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 (1) Beneficial Owner 234,185,672 (1) 39.89%
NE (R BR AR ERfAA
Silchester International Investors LLP 64,665,600 (L) Investment Manager 64,665,600 (L) 11.01%
REKRE
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 35,056,900 (L) Investment Manager 35,056,900 (L) 5.97%

(L) Long posttion ## &

RELE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Note (a)
Mr. CHAN Wai's spouse, Ms. NG Siu Ping, held 2,000 shares of the Company.
Note (b)

Mr. CHAN Wai, the administrator of Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator
of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or
indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and were
deemed to be interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in
the Company.

In addition, Mr. CHAN Wai, the administrator of Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the
administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment
Ltd. and were deemed to be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by Dragon King
Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (c)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (d)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.
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EETWME

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries, or
its parent company or its other associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of financial
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries by the Group exceeded 8% of the assets ratios as
defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details of advances
(including guarantee given by the Group) which were non-trading
in nature, made by the Group to the affiliated company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

ESEEBEOHRESFENERZFIR

REBEFERNERRRE ARF - HHELF -
HEENE RRMEARKEGQF sEHAM
BB AEMENSRELTHNEF—T &
FEARBNERRITHAER (BRELB N8
BRAT FR)EFARAARESEALELHE
Hp BB ERE 2 i HER M EEE R

RRSAR

RELHRANE1322(FEHZHE

R2017F3ASTHE AEER —RBBRAA R
HE2BENBARRR M BEEBEBEA LT
FAIE14.07(WEFT R EMNEELL T 28% o A
SEMZBBARIRE2ENBARIRE ZIE
BHEDF (BEAEERBEZER)ZFHE
NS

Extent of
Corporate
Relationship Corporate Guarantee
Name of Company with the Group Advances Guarantee Utilised
BEEAAR
ATEER BEEEZREE 2% LFEIER 43 ]
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHETT
3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited Associated company - 575,440 524,500
CEERE (FB)ARAHA /NS
3D-GOLD Enterprises Development Associated company - 188,604 -
(Shenzhen) Company Limited
SEREEXER ORI ARRA -k /NG|
China Gold Silver Group Company Associated company 120,000 - -
Limited
PESREBEGRAA i l/NE|
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Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, a pro-forma
combined balance sheet of these affiliated companies with
financial assistance from the Group and the Group'’s attributable
interest in these affiliated companies as at 31 March 2017 (the
latest practical date) are presented as follows:

RIE ETRBIE18.2206 RS AKE M
B rBBRARZEESHEERBREASE
ER20179F3A318 (&EA{THE) B(hZE
B AT 2 EmEunT

Pro-forma Group’s

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

wESH . 301

Interest held risiES BEARE E{EER

50%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT

Non-current assets ERENEE 586,468 293,234

Current assets MENEE 1,984,185 992,093

Current liabilities mENAE (1,423,350) (711,675)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (41,460) (20,730)

Loans from shareholders = (240,000) (120,000)

Net assets FEE 865,843 432,922
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS BHEFAEGEX

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report,
the Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors
(including former Directors) of the Company or its associated
companies. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for
in the Company’s Articles of Association and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

REBFEARBEAREAR/IL  ARF
HAEBZERN BANRARRREAHE
RAEE (BENES) AXBEANREKR -
BERFREGRHREHRN AR AASERZA
A UERRAKEREERSRTBRABRE
MEERRA FRRBRAEEHEEMEA
REEEDAR R MELRBEERMIELRE-

FEER
REEFER AEEXREFMEFRIHE
BMZBADLIMT:

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

The largest customer BAEP 3.0% 2.7%
Five largest customers combined AR EARFAR 5.5% 4.6%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

102

BEF REIBMEALTIEESHMAEAAN
RNASWIA LA Z AR - B EGEA Lt
BEP 2t

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

FEMER
REEFERN AEB T EHERMIEBEER
ZADLIT:

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

The largest supplier EAMER 33.3% 25.5%
Five largest suppliers combined hEEAEERES 64.0% 68.6%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in Notes 32 and 33 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 18 August 2017 to 23 August 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 23 August 2017, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 August 2017.

The register of members of the Company for the final and special
dividends will also be closed on 29 August 2017 and no transfer
of shares will be registered on that day. In order to qualify for
the final and special dividends, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 28 August 2017.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Company had 11.19% interest in Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Co. Ltd. (“HKRH”) as at 31 March 2017. HKRH is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2017, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of China Gold Silver Group Company Limited, a
subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Mr. TSE Moon
Chuen who were directors of the Company held certain shares in
HKRH, were also considered as having an interest in HKRH under
Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (‘HKRH Group”)
constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the Company
and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by separate and
independent management teams, the directors of the Company
believed that the Company was capable of carrying on its
business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the Year under review
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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-
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HNiERRE (BFR)BRLFKRE
HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREZEFMA L HRAA)
OPINION ER

What we have audited EMEeESNAR

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings 7~@&E (BE)GRAR ([EA7F]) REH
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the BAR ([EE£E])JEHNFEI15E216E 4R

“Group”) set out on pages 115 to 216, which comprise: el BmE B2E:
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2017; o R2017FESABIBANGALEERER:

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; HEZRALEFENGEEERE:

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for o HEZHIIFENGALENREER:
the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year o B ZEZ B IFFENGAEREER
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o HEZBLEFENGEABEERER K

ended; and
e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which o  4FABIEREMN T BETESTHER
include a summary of significant accounting policies. 2o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

AL KA B FHITE BT - B ERAR R
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter identified in our audit relates to existence and
valuation of inventories.

Key Audit Matter
REENER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FRZFEMREEE

Refer to note 3.10, 5(@) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2 e B WKMFE3.10 - 5(@) 524 °

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is HK$6,973 million
as at 31 March 2017. The Group’s inventories mainly comprised
of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products in the stores,
manufacturing facilities and distribution centres. Valuation of
inventories is at lower of cost or net realisable value. Significant
portion of value at cost includes cost of precious metals and
gems which are subject to the risk of changes in market value.
The assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast sales
performance, marketability of products and the forecast market
price of precious metals and gems used to make the jewellery
products. Furthermore, there is a higher inherent risk of theft
and pilferage given the high intrinsic value and portable nature of
individual inventory items.

201743 A31H - & & B 17 & & BR [ {8 /36,973,000,0007%
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EHREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMEANMAEERBEAE=R

Our audit procedures to test the physical
existence of inventories mainly consist of
evaluating and testing the relevant internal
control procedures, in particular, we
HEEEITEDRAR RMNETEFZE
BEMEFAE BN IZEH R - THZE
EAINE

(i) attended a selection of daily cycle
physical counts in stores throughout
the year to observe the daily count
procedures performed in retail outlets;

() Z=2FEEEUHHLS2NERNESAEYR
e UBRTEENSHREER

(i)  inspected the respective daily physical
cycle counts reports for reconciliation of
daily ending inventories to the record in
the inventory system;

(i) BHEENEGEEMRIBIRZRE UK
HEEERBFERFERARCHE
THER:

@iy inspected the in-house and external
gemological appraisal or laboratory
reports on the authenticity of gold,
platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

(i) WENBRINEFE=FEHEES HEK
KREEMERETCHRETHXERR

f:lto

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical
inventory counts at year end date and
performed “two-way” sample count procedures
in a selected sample of stores, manufacturing
facilities and distribution centres of the Group.
We compared our sample count results with
the counts performed by the Group and the
records in the inventory system.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key Audit Matter
REmIER

The above, in combination with the inventories contributing to a
significant portion of total assets of the Group, made us conclude
that existence and valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
of our audit.

BRI Mz FEEK BEEEEEENSE RIS
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMnEMMERRBENFR

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, aging
profiles and price for gemmological appraisal
carried out by independent gemmologist
engaged by the Group to verify their
authenticity and assess their conditions and
valuations. We have evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the gemmologist
and obtained an understanding of the scope of
work and the terms of engagement.
BATBERHKEAthEm (FIEERRE
TREOER  BREER) B EXEZREDN
BUYBAZEFETHKRETN G UREEAEENR

Mt EARR R EE - RPIEHEAERAOA
BE RN REEMERRT M WA TSR
N BRI

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable value and provision of inventories, we
G ER BT E A 23R HE B EERT
fE B2 - Tl

(i) compared the net realisable values of
gold and platinum inventories calculated
based on the current market price of
precious metals with their purchase or
production costs;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

MEEEHER

MEEEER (]®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMnEMMERRBENFR

(i) obtained an understanding of
management’s processes for the
identification of slow moving gem-
set jewellery products and assessed
the basis adopted by management
for determining the inventory provision
with reference to, amongst others, the
market price movement of the materials,
the aging profile and the historical sales
pattern and the subsequent selling prices
of these products.

(i) EREEEEAFHABEANHERNH
PREF U2E(HPEE)ZEEMD
MEITEEZS S RATHEERAUR
ZEEE UHEERERANTFERES
TEELENLAFT AR o

(i) compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal report of our
selected samples above to the cost
of gem-set jewellery in evaluating the
sufficiency of inventory provision made by
management.

(i) REMHEEREMMEGEERBEERER
B EX AT B AR R AR B LAE
P E S AR EIRERAEITLLR o

Based on the procedures performed, we found
that the physical existence of inventories, as
well as the estimates and judgement made by
management in respect of the net realisable
value of inventories, are supportable by the
available evidence.

ERBTHRER RMEREENEYMFENR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND

AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE201753A31H EFE

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHET
Revenue L @N 6 12,807,277 14,031,302
Cost of sales SHE K AR 8 (9,530,216) (10,777,191)
Gross profit EX 3,277,061 3,254,111
Other income RN 7 175,594 139,293
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEMA (1,994,310) (1,981,763)
Administrative expenses TRER (155,253) (148,818)
Other losses, net HibEE 58 (13,775) (50,671)
Operating profit ek N - S, 1,289,817 1212,182
Finance income B AU 23,982 41,725
Finance costs VBER (9,011) (13,689)
Finance income, net MBI R 0o 4o 28,036 _
Share of results of associates BEBEARRE 19 54273) (79,103
Profit before income tax Fx P45 8 B S 1,250,015 1,161,085
Income tax expenses Frigfif = 11 (223,047) (199,631)
Profit for the year FWm A 1,026,968 961,454
Profit attributable to: FEA & :
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEAA 1,016,838 958,692
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 2 10,130 2,762
1,026,968 961,454
Earnings per share for profit FARRAERFEE A 12
attributable to equity holders of FE(R G 2 B REF
the Company during the year
Basic HAR HK$1.73# 5T HK$1.637% 7T,
Diluted #E HK$1.73#T  HKS$1.63/5 7T

The notes on pages 122 to 216 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
/\‘/T\ = %@HQK#&%

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE201753A31H EFE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit for the year FR@sH e 1,026,968 961,454
Other comprehensive income: Hibhz2mUA -
Items that will not be reclassified to HETSETHEE
profit or loss Bz hyE B
Remeasurements of employee EEBMNEELHNENTE
benefit obligations 1,349 12,766
Items that may be reclassified to Rt @ EF 72
profit or loss Bz HyE H
Currency translation differences: e Z%E
— Group —rEH (158,405) (141,711)
- Associates NG (15,246) (12,300)
Revaluation of available-for-sale AHEESREENEEBS
financial assets (1,077) (8,977)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEEA
for the year ____ (73319 (145222)
Total comprehensive income for the year A& E 42U A 853,589 816,232
Attributable to: THA TS
— Equity holders of the Company —RAFERFEA 845,372 814,594
— Non-controlling interests —IEPE R i A 8,217 1,638
Total comprehensive income for the year A EE AU A 853,589 816,232

The notes on pages 122 to 216 are an integral part of these  F122E216 B MMt AL ER A M EHRERAN —
consolidated financial statements. oo
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

raAERE

As at 31 March 2017
#201743A31H

As at 31 March

»3A31H
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
3 TET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R&E 16 564,270 603,878
Land use rights TR 17 247,781 215,245
Investment properties "EMEE 18 35,020 24,617
Interests in associates REEERR 2= 19 85,012 154,531
Loan to an associate ERT—XBE QA 20 90,830 86,911
Derivative financial instrument TEeEmT A 21 48,979 46,135
Available-for-sale financial assets A EeREE 22 7,690 8,767
Trading licence R ZHR 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits and prepayment Heke MIEMNEKRE 23 121,204 121,828
Deferred income tax assets RIEPMSTHEE 30 45,954 36,770
1,247,820 1,299,762
Current assets N E
Inventories "B 24 6,972,770 6,344,728
Trade receivables 2 5 AR 25 217,258 214,534
Deposits, prepayments and Ze FERERER 23
other receivables H fth fE M AR TR 323,323 241,752
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMmIT A 21 9 9
Amount due from an associate FE UL — KBt N BIBRIE 19 33,340 56,374
Loan to an associate BERTF—R ’é% EW/NG] 20 20,000 20,000
Income tax recoverable AT UL B AT R 2,956 20,155
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE & 26 1,861,774 2,432,185
9,431,430 9,329,737
Total assets BEE 10,679,250 10,629,499
EQUITY a2
Capital and reserves attributable ZF2XFESFZEFA
to the equity holders of BEEIEREE
the Company
Share capital fi& A= 28(a) 58,710 58,710
Share premium f& 17 %@ B 28(b) 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves B 29 6,320,600 6,121,046
8,873,350 8,673,796
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR M = 106,590 95,123
Total equity W B EE 8,979,940 8,768,919

The notes on pages 122 to 216 are an integral part of these  F122E216 B MK L AL E4R A SRR —
consolidated financial statements. oo
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
e EERE

As at 31 March 2017
#201743A31H

As at 31 March

»3A31H
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
MRE TET FHET
LIABILITIES a5
Non-current liabilities ERBIAR
Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHRAatE 30 81,670 79,892
Employee benefit obligations EERBFEMR 31 23,754 23,918
105,424 103,810
Current liabilities mBRE
Trade payables, other payables B I EMNRIE A EN
and accruals ARIB K AT FUE 27 1,004,664 892,459
Amount due to an associate B —REE D 7 BR18 19 1,995 2,235
Bank borrowings RITER 32 - 400,000
Gold loans =5oEE 33 437,151 310,692
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS BB & 150,076 151,384
_____________________________________________________________ 1,593,886 1,756,770
Total liabilties _________________ wa@E 1,699,310 1,860,580 _
Total equity and liabilities BnkBEEE 10,679,250 10,629,499

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the #F&FBHEKIIHEEZEEHN2017F6 A298 #t
Board of Directors on 29 June 2017 and were signed on its HEWEH THEEREEE
behalf.

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER FR%IA
Director Director

EE EE

The notes on pages 122 to 216 are an integral part of these E122F216E MIHI LA I Z A M REN —
consolidated financial statements. R4 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= /\
ARE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE201753A31H EFE

== \ / —
B B)E

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARrERFE AR

Non-
Share Share controlling Total
Capital premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
R RRE i e OFEIERER  BRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 29)
(Fi3E 29)
For the year ended EE2016%F
31 March 2016 3A31ALEE
At 1 April 2015 M2015F4 /18 58,910 2,522,983 5,954,470 8,536,363 64,144 8,600,507
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit forthe year __ ________ sewh R T__ 98092 998692 2762 961,454
Other comprehensive income Hft2EEA
Remeasurements of employee EEBMEEH
benefit obligations EHFTE - - 12,766 12,766 - 12,766
Currency translation differences fE 5 =58 - - (152,887) (152,887) (1,124)  (154,011)
Revaluation of available-for-sale At HESREER
financial assets BEZ - - (8,977) (8,977) - (3,977
Total other comprehensive Hti2m#aA
income - ~ (144,008)  (144,098) (1124)  (145,222)
Total comprehensive income 2T A - - 814,594 814,594 1,638 816,232
Transactions with owners HEFAZZS
Dividends paid EmBE - - (648018) (648,018) - (648,018)
Capital injection from B AR IR A
non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries - - - - 29,341 29,341
Repurchase of shares (Note 28(c) RBEIRA (Msz28) @00 (28943 R L T ey
At 31 March 2016 201643 A31H 58,710 2,494,040 6,121,046 8,673,796 95,123 8,768,919
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREHE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HZE201743A31HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FOFHEBAAERL
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
Capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity

kx  RGRE 1 ME RS HSWEER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FiExr TR TR T FiEn FiEn

(Note 29)
(B 3% 29)

For the year ended BE2017HF

31 March 2017 3A31ALEE
At 1 April 2016 M2016F4 718 58,710 2,494,040 6,121,046 8,673,796 95,123 8,768,919
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year F R 7 - - 1,016,838 1,016,838 10,130 1,026,968
Other comprehensive income Hft2EEA
Remeasurements of employee EEBMEEDH

benefit obligations B E - - 1,349 1,349 - 1,349
Currency translation differences fEH =% - - (171,738)  (171,738) (1,913)  (173,651)
Revaluation of available-for-sale At HESREER

financial assets BEZ - - (1,077) (1,077) - (1,077)
Total other comprehensive HthiZ2E#aA

income - - (171466) (171,466)  (1,913) (173,379)
Total comprehensive income 2T A - - 845,372 845,372 8,217 853,589
Transactions with owners HEFAZZS
Dividends paid EmBE - - (645818 (645,818) - (645818)
Capital injection from ) E=YNTE S g i

non-controlling interests of

a subsidiary - - - - 3,250 3,250
At 31 March 2017 2017837318 58,710 2,494,040 6,320,600 8,873,350 106,590 8,979,940

The notes on pages 122 to 216 are an integral part of these S 122E216E MM T At 52T HHRERN—
consolidated financial statements. oo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= /AL AN =gl —1 2;
%/T\ 2% JILEE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE201753A31H EFE

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5E TET FET
Cash flows from operating activites ~~ &EEFEFH 2B EHRE
Net cash generated from operations ~ #3E&E 4+ 2 IR & F 5 34 934,926 2,057,712
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNEEFER (61,580) (54,515)
Overseas income taxes paid BEAEINTISE (152,982) (140,541)
Net cash generated from LIEERBELY
operating activities Be 5 720,364 2,062,656
Cash flows from investing activities KRERZHREERE
Purchases of property, BEYE WENREE 16
plant and equipment (94,778) (104,312)
Prepayment for purchase of EEYE WEREEZ
property, plant and equipment TEFRI8 (10,016) -
Purchases of land use right BE T FE R 17 (51,704) (8,468)
Purchases of investment properties BEREYE 18 (11,735) -
Purchases of available- BEAHLESREE 22
for-sale financial assets - (8,924)
(Increase)/decrease in short- FIEAR A=A A
term bank deposits, with FEHARITIF
maturities over 3 months (1), m (261,978) 644,458
Interest received 2HAE 18,507 56,381
Capital injection from non- MEA R FEERERTE
controlling interests of subsidiaries 3,250 29,341
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BERZE
property, plant and equipment FriS 7118 - 596
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEES (FTA) ez
investing activities R /F5 (408,454) 614,072
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEHCRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE RS RIA - 754,496
Proceeds from gold loans B EBEMBRIA - 1,731,662
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (400,000) (1,825,748)
Repayment of gold loans EEESEE (76,541) (1,637,406)
Repurchase of ordinary shares AEIR=SEl di av 28(0) - (29,143)
Interest on bank borrowings RITERRESEERNE
and gold loans (9,011) (13,689)
Dividends paid BRRE (645,818) (648,018)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ BB /EENATAE 2
e /F5 (1,131,370) (1,667,846)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HRERREEHEEM 2
cash equivalents CRA) /G (819,460) 1,008,882
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April B4 A1 2R & K
ReEEY 2,361,595 1,375,079
Exchange differences VE =R (12,929) (22,366)
Cash and cash equivalents M3H31HEZHR & &
at 31 March ReEEY 26 1,529,206 2,361,595

The notes on pages 122 to 216 are an integral part of these F122F216 B MMt At R AT HREN —

consolidated financial statements. i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

122

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as a
company with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery products.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the board of directors on
29 June 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and Hong Kong Company
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except that certain financial assets and financial liabilities are
carried at fair value, as explained in Note 4.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

—REH

NeEsE () BRAE ([A2E]) R
1996 FOHBHE AR ERBEARELNA]
EAMKZAER AR EAM#EEE
ik A& Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda °

ARRREKBERR (G [AREE]) X
ENERPRMNSEMRIAREEHERD
ZEREE RGO HB BERRRRTEX
ﬁ%o

RKATFRMGHI97FES A6EET B &
RGFABR AT ([BR])ER M-

BIEAERBPEIN HELREPBHREKII U
B ([Bxl) 2% WE R2017F6 A
P EEETHETE-

REERE

RRBZGEBMBHRERIIBEBEE R H
HEEQ ([BEEVBHREEL ) REE
NEGPIEE2ERE - ETEMEE
k@A ERAREETIR (0K E4PT
) SN SR B TS IR IR S AN E B

RAEREEMBHRELENER Y
BHRAFRRERE THRETEE R
NHEBZEREBERAARE S BRE
TELHIE - P R = EH S mE RN
8 SR GREMBHRRBEARK
A4 H B B0 - A2 HY REST MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

New amendments to existing standards that are
effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2016 and are relevant to the
Group’s operations:

@

U

(i)

(i)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure initiative”,
clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality and
aggregation, the presentation of subtotals,
the structure of financial statements and the
disclosure of accounting policies.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
“Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation”, clarify when a
method of depreciation or amortisation based
on revenue may be appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 27 “Equity method in
separate financial statements”, allows entities to
use equity method to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
their separate financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 “Investment entities”, clarify the
application of the consolidation exception for
investment entities and their subsidiaries.

Annual improvements 2014, these amendments
include changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of
the annual improvements project that affect on
HKFRS 5, “Noncurrent assets held for sale and
discounted operations”, HKFRS 7, “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” and HKAS 19,
“Employee benefits”.

2 REEE(E)

201654 A1 HFIE 2R FER
BRI AL B R 2
FIIRB A ZERTA

(@)

(i)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

2

124

B BHRRWE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 RE
(b)  Certain new standards and amendments to existing (b)
standards relevant to the Group have been published
that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 or later
periods, which the Group has not early adopted, are
as follows:
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses!"
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions®
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
and HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers®?
HKFRS 16 Leases®
m Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2017
@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2018
© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019
@ To be announced by HKICPA
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Certain new standards and amendments to existing
standards relevant to the Group have been published
that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 or later
periods, which the Group has not early adopted, are
as follows: (Continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 April 2017 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except those new standards
set out below:

- HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

While the Group has yet to undertake a
detailed assessment of the classification and
measurement of financial assets, currently
classified as available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets would appear to satisfy the conditions
for classification as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and hence there
will be no change to the accounting for these
assets.

2 REEE(HE)

)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 RH

2

126

(b)

Certain new standards and amendments to existing (b)
standards relevant to the Group have been published

that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 or later

periods, which the Group has not early adopted, are

as follows: (Continued)

-  HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
(Continued)
The other financial assets held by the Group
include:

o equity instruments currently classified
as AFS for which a FVOCI election is
available.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group does
not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses (ECL) rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured
at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. While the Group
has not yet undertaken a detailed assessment of
how its impairment provisions would be affected
by the new model, it may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Certain new standards and amendments to existing
standards relevant to the Group have been published
that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 or later
periods, which the Group has not early adopted, are
as follows: (Continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for
the recognition of revenue. This will replace
HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods
and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts. The new standard
is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

The Group is currently assessing the impact
of adopting HKFRS 15 on the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements, by identifying
the separate performance obligations in the
contracts with customers and allocating the
transactions price, if applicable, which could
affect the timing of the revenue recognition. In
light of the multi-location of operations of the
Group, the directors of the Company is currently
in the process of evaluating the full impact
of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Management will make
more detailed assessments of the impact over
the next twelve months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 RH

2

128

(b)

Certain new standards and amendments to existing (b)
standards relevant to the Group have been published

that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 or later

periods, which the Group has not early adopted, are

as follows: (Continued)

- HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,179,584,000, see
note 35(b). However, the Group has not yet
determined to what extent these commitments
will result in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group’s profit and classification of
cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a)

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised loss are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

130

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

3 FESHBREE(HE)

3.1
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(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 TESiHBFEHEHE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Associates 3.2 BRELT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence on but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’'s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
The financial statements of the associates used for
this purpose are either coterminous with the financial
statements of the Group or cover a year end not more
than three months before the Group’s year-end. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

132

3.2

3.3

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of results of an associate’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Amounts
reported by associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified collectively as
the executive directors and senior management who
make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T A

B BHRRWE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised within
‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in statement of profit or loss within
‘other losses — net’.

3 FEEHBREE(HE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BPBHRERM

T A

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

134

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

3 FEEHBREE(HE)
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(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

3 FEEHBREE(HE)
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(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

136

POLICIES (Continued)
3.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance lease
and other property, plant and equipment commence
amortisation/depreciation from the time when the
assets becomes available for their intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:
Leasehold land interests Shorter of remaining lease term of
classified as finance leases ~ 16-51 years or useful life

Buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 5 years
computer equipment

Plant and machinery 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings
are generally situated for a period from 19 to 54 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both, and is not
occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 54
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment
property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

3 FE®

3.5

3.6

3.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T A

B BHRRWE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

138

3.7

3.8

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property. At the date of reclassification, its
cost and accumulated depreciation are transferred
to investment property and become its cost and
accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.

Trading licence

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VSRR BT 5
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
1o sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
[t excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

3.11 Financial assets

3.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of the Group’s financial assets at
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

3.11.1 Classification (Continued)

140

@

®)

©

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be recovered within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise
associate’, ‘trade and other receivables’,
‘cash and bank balances’, ‘deposits’ and
‘amounts due from an associate’ in the
consolidated balance sheet.

‘loans to an

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
3.11.2 Recognition and measurement

FESHBREAE (H)

3.11 &MEE (&)
2 RERHE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
‘other gains, net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for
sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BWBHRERM

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

3.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

T A
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Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
group’s right to receive payments is established.

3.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

3.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held— to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BWBHRERM

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

T A
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(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity
and recognised in consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in consolidated
income statement, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Derivative financial instruments which do

FESHBRERE (])
S FRFERRFHASHERZ

not qualify for hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value

fTE&MmIT AR
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of any derivative financial instruments are recognised EEAR R ARG Bm R R
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
3.15 Trade and other receivables 15 S REMEIIRIE

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
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fair value and subsequently measured at amortised EER HEBFBERR R LR
cost using the effective interest method, less SHEK AN FOBR R E R BT E -
allowance for impairment.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents 16 BERBALEED
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash RixeREeRERY Re kR

and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

146

POLICIES (Continued)
3.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

3.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

3.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE®iBREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Borrowings (Continued)

3.19 B (&)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

3.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as ‘finance
cost’ in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BWBHRERM

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

T A

148

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Employee benefits

150

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

Defined benefit obligation - long service
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All
remeasurement gains/losses of defined benefit
plans are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Past service costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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B BHRRWE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 E®iBFEEE(#F)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.23 Revenue and income recognition 3.23
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
customers, retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associates
with ownership nor control over the goods sold,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been
delivered to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customers, and either the customers
has accepted the products in accordance with
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

(b) Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card. It is
the Group’s policy to sell its jewellery products
to the end customers with a right of return
within one year at a certain discount on the
original selling price. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.23 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the use
of the Group’s trademarks is recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreements.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of
technical support and consultancy services
are recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

3.24 Operating leases (as a lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease. When a component of the lease payment
which is not fixed but is based on future amount of
a factor, other than with the passage of time, such
as percentage of sales or concessionaire fees, the
amount is recognised as expenses as it arises.
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B BHRRWE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HKS$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland China, Macau, Canada, the United
States, Australia, Malaysia and Singapore.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (‘RMB”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
use foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the group companies’ functional currency,
preliminary with respect to RMB.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2017, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HKS, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$315,000 (2016:
HK$1,491,000) higher/lower respectively.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the convertible bonds subscribed and loans
to an associate which were issued at fixed
rates and interest free respectively, and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s interest rate risk also arises from bank
borrowings and gold loans. Bank borrowings
at variable rate expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Gold loans at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group does not enter into derivatives to
address these risks.

At 31 March 2017, the Group does not enter
into any bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)
(iii)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sale of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in the prices of
gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group manages commodity
price risks mainly by hedging gold price
fluctuations through certain derivative financial
instrument-trading of gold contracts and gold
loans contracts. Should the gold price go up,
the Group would charge a loss representing the
increase in gold price compared to the contract
price, and largely net against the increase in
turnover of gold products as a result of gold
price increase.

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis and
the differences between the contract price and
market price are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 March
2017, the notional value of the outstanding gold
contracts amounted to HK$168,192,000 (2016:
HK$166,148,000).

The gold loans (Note 33) are settled at maturity
which usually mature in 1 to 6 months from
date of inception and the fair value changes
are immediately recognised in the consolidated
income statement. As at 31 March 2017, gold
loan contracts of 1,410 kilograms (2016: 780
kilograms) amounted to HK$437,151,000
(2016: HK$234,649,000) are outstanding and
involved physical settlement. As at 31 March
2016, notional value of outstanding gold loan
contracts amounted to HK$76,043,000 involved
cash settlement.

At 31 March 2017, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2017, due to
changes in fair values of gold contracts, would
have been approximately HK$8,410,000 (2016:
HK$8,307,000) lower or higher respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2017, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2017, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$21,857,000 (2016:
HK$15,534,000), lower or higher respectively.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amounts of loans to
an associate, amount due from an associate,
trade and other receivables, deposits and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance
sheet, the principal amount of the subscribed
convertible bond and the amount of contingent
liabilities as disclosed in Note 36 represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets and contingent
liabilities.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults
in the past. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any,
has been made. The Group does not have a
significant concentration of credit risk. No single
customer accounted for more than 1% of the
Group’s total trade receivables during the year.

The deposits, trade and other receivables,
subscribed convertible bond, amount due from
an associate and loans to an associate are from
counterparties with good credit history. There is
no history of defaults from these counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)
(iv)

V)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, substantially
all the bank balances as detailed in Note 26
are held in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BWBHRERM

contracts represent the outstanding financial guarantee
issued to several banks in respect of bank facilities granted
to an associate of the Group as disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AT IERA BT A

A
4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 MERREE (1§)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MEREER (1)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v EEESERRE (&)
Maturity Analysis — Undliscounted cash outflows PRI ST — KRR BE B 20
HE
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years than5years  cash outflows
BiE-% BERE AUERRE
—ER EIRAE BYREE wHERE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET THT
As at 31 March 2017 R201743A31A
Trade payables and ZHRENRER
other payables Hi EHTIRIE 811,958 - - 811,958
Amount due to an associate EN—REE AARE 1,995 - - 1,995
813,953 - - 813,953
Financial guarantee contracts MHBERAL (M)
(Note) 764,044 - - 764,044
As at 31 March 2016 #201653H31H
Trade payables and BHRAERER
other payables EthERER 685,832 - - 685,832
Amount due 1o an associate ﬁ QAN 2,235 - - 2,235
Bank borrowings iﬁﬂgm 404,920 - - 404,920
Gold loans H2EE 76,702 - - 76,702
1,169,689 - - 1,169,689
Financial guarantee contracts BIBEREH (W3)
(Note) 672,845 - . 672,845
Note: B 5 -
The amount included in the above financial guarantee E/iZZZD RE B RR M 36K E - £

JORTIBLIR T A

SEB SRR MIRITRVE [FE TIRTT
BITHAREEMEER-
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, amount due from an
associate and loan to an associate and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as gold loans) are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 HMEEBEE (&)

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) AREEME (&)
The following table present the Group’s financial TREVAEEK2017F3A31H
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 March BARBEFENERHEE-
2017.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1® ok EZ] it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR Fi#x FExT Fi#xT
As at 31 March 2017 201793 A31H
Assets BE
— Derivative financial instruments  —#7T4£ & &L A
— CGS Share Option — B¢ SR RAE - - 9 9
— Convertible bond — AR ES - 48,979 - 48,979
— Available-for-sale —AHEESREE
financial assets 7,690 - - 7,690
Total assets BEE 7,690 48,979 9 56,678
The following table present the Group’s liabilities that TREANAEEKR2017F3A31H
are measured at fair value at 31 March 2017. BEARBEFENAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® ot ek Wit
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET Fi#ERT Fi#xT FT#RT
Liabilities a&E
— Gold loans with - BYREELER
physical settlement 437,151 - - 437,151
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 MERBREE ()

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) AREEME (1)
The following table present the Group’s financial TRE3AEER2016F3A831H8
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at BEAABENENETREENE
31 March 2016. g
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE—H FE_MR E=H FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FAT
As at 31 March 2016 #20166F3 4318
Assets BE
— Derivative financial instruments  —#7T4£ & &L A
— CGS Share Option — B¢ SR RAE - - 9 9
— Convertible bond - REES - 46,135 - 46,135
— Available-for-sale financial —-AERESREE
assets 8,767 - - 8,767
Total assets BEE 8,767 46,135 9 54,911
Liabilities aE
— Gold loans with cash -RHeREELEE
settlement 76,043 - - 76,043
The following table presents the Group’s liabilities that TREVAEEK20169F3A31H
are measured at fair value at 31 March 2016. EBEARBEFEMNAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—& FER E=H FOEY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FHET FHT
Liabilities a&
- Gold loans with physical - BYREELEE
settlement 234,649 - - 234,649
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and AEBRNBR RN ERER =
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date BELBEANE  BERBEALS
of the event or change in circumstances that caused BEERNEATE L -

the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3 H E2016%F K201743A31H ILF
during the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2017. ER-$F— F_HEE=HEW
BB o
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
(cash)/debt divided by total capital. Net (cash)/debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including bank
borrowings and gold loans) less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
(cash)/debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2017:

4 HMERREHE (W)

(c)

BEmpEE
AEBEEREANBRARELRE
BRAEEERE S fEMRRRER

# 1Bl ¥~ A EL A B 25 48 B SR G R
i A R AR FF IR AR B B AR SRAE DAURE

AEBEREARRRE I FELE
RENZEELFE - RRFAH
EEARE AKERHBRIMNT
BERABE - BITH B E R
RITER

AEENTNEBEEAELREREE
KeBBEEBELERZNFE (Be),/
EHEBRUBERNTE F (RE),/
BEEENERARE (BIERITER
LMESEE)RIE S RBITES
HEH - @ERTIA TR (4
REEREBERAR)ME (RE)
BEEAFEFE -

NEB HR2017E3831H 2 B ARZE
BT :

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Bank borrowings (Note 32) RITER (MIE32) - 400,000
Gold loans (Note 33) E&EE (M:33) 437,151 310,692
Less: Cash and bank balances IR MIRTTA R
(Note 26) (MI5E26) (1,861,774) (2,432,185)
Net cash FIRE (1,424,623) (1,721,493
Total equity B 8,979,940 8,768,919
Total capital WBER 7,555,317 7,047,426
Gearing ratio BEEELR N/A 7 & B N/A 7~
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Capital risk management (Continued)
As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017, the Group
maintained a net cash position of HK$1,424,623,000
(2016: HK$1,721,493,000).

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

(a) Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

MERREER (8)

(c) BEXERBEEE (#])
R201643 A31H &201743 A 31
B - 72N 2 [E 4 551,424,623,00058 7T
(2016%F : 1,721,493,000/& 7T ) K%
e ke

AEENRERBERRENEARE
BUARHEEREBERRERR
HASOHs

o 88 & At {l 51 R FER

ARSI TS R R S FTER A 2 (T Ko I -
TiBE KR LEMEAR (BRRETR
BRERKEMHEL 2 B ETER) THiE
Hetfs S EsthEREER E48
HAHERGERBEF - TXWmAEAR
REY T -WRFEEERAGBZEE
BRFLERHRZ G RER-

(@ #®W
GEMERFEAAEERTH
BETEEHRET T IRAREE
X BB - LS IRIER
BmakEEEHERUEEER
MBATKRMEL YAEBRE
HHESLHEFEHFERENIT
HEBHENTEmMEEREZE -
BIRENSEE BEHN TS
e
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and non-financial assets including property, plant
and equipment and land use rights, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

5 MaEgwst R (&)

(b)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland China are
recognised based on the undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China generated since 1
January 2008 which is expected to be distributed
in the foreseeable future. When the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities and taxation charges in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

5 MaEgwst R (&)

(c)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”) have been
identified as the executive directors and senior management
collectively. The CODM review the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
operating segments are reported in accordance with the
internal reporting reviewed by the CODM.

CODM consider the business by nature of business
activities and assess the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland China
ii.  Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland China
V. Licensing

CODM assess the performance of the operating segments
based on segment results. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses and share of results of
associates are not included in the results for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M AR
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEPEHE ()
Year ended 31 March 2017
BE017F3A3ALER
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter- Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total
SE-F#. $6- #E- HE- DES
RFIR &5 hEMH L] hER BEEE  SDMHES S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TR THT THT THT THT
Revenue KA
Sales to external customers HHRFHE 7,959,286 1,659,391 117,712 1,958,559 - - 11,604,948
Sales of scrap gold and platinum ~ HEES RBSER - - 596,188 - - - 596,188
7,959,286 1,659,391 713,900 1,958,559 - - 12,291,136
Inter-segment sales PHEEE 196,922 81,502 2,011,307 432,471 - (2,722,202 -
Sales of merchandises HeEEa 8,156,208 1,740,893 2,725,207 2,391,030 - (272220 12,291,136
Royalty and senvice income Mg RRBERA - - - - 502,332 - 502,332
Consultancy fee income EREWA - - - - 13,809 - 13,809
Total izt 8,156,208 1,740,893 2,725,207 2,391,030 516041 (2722202) 12807217
Results of reportable segments  AI2HSMER 512,408 177,613 135,229 303,662 290,384 - 1,419,296
A reconciiation of resuts of S ﬁ% E3L
reportable segments 1o profit FRBFEENT:

for the year is as follows:

Results of reportable segments 2R HMRHE 1,419,296
Unallocated income L ON 69,002
Unallocated expenses KPERL (198,981)
Operating profit HEaH 1,289,317
Finance income B 23,982
Finance costs R (9,011)
Share of results of associates EEBENRER (54,273)
Profit before income tax FE@RaRT 1,250,015
Income tax expenses FEHRY (223,047)
Profit for the year ERRT 1,026,968
Non-controling interests FARER (10,130)

Profit attributable to equity FARREHEA
holders of the Company EigiaH 1,016,838
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6

Year ended 31 March 2017

SEEH (])

BE017FIANMALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter-  Reportable
Macauand  Mainland Wholesaling-  Mainland segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total
SE-F#. BE- HE- TER
RFIR &5 hEmE  HR-FE hEMH RHRE SDRHEE  2DEH PR @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TET THT THET THT TET THT
Depreciation of property, nE BERRENE
plant and equipment (54054  (17,102) (4261)  (11,245) 1112) = (93,774 (28481) (122,255
Amortisation of land use rights 3% 7 FR 12 - - - (423) (7,562) - (7,985) (310) (8,205)
Depreciation of investment ~ REMENE
properties - - - - - - - (942) (942)
Additions of non-current assets JEREEERE 43,617 26,562 369 6,568 2,89 - 80,012 88,221 168,233
As at 31 March 2017
#2017%3A318
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter-  Reportable
Macauand ~ Mainland Wholesaling-  Mainland segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total
BE-FR. PE- #E- TER
AR hERE  HB-FE REMH REEE SBEHE SRR RPE #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TET TET TER TR TET TET
Segment assets including P HEE
intercompany balances BERBER 6361957 1673504 682,328 2,151,384 430868  (1,825863) 9,474,178 9,474,178
Inter-segment elimination AEHEHE (1,740,093) (85,770) - - - 1825863 - -
Segment assets PHEE 4,621,864 1,587,734 682,328 2,151,384 430,868 - 9474178 9,474,178
Interests in associates PR ARz R 85,012 85,012
Land and buildings T REF 325,306 325,306
Investment properties REME 35,020 35,020
Deferred income tax assets  EEFEHERE 45,954 45,954
Income tax recoverable R EFEH 2,956 2,956
Other unallocated assets ErnkEE 710,824 710,824
Total assets HEE 10,679,250
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/\\/T\
6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEPEHE ()
As at 31 March 2017
#2017%3A31R
Retailing -

Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable

Macauand ~ Mainland Wholesaling-  Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total

SE-F#. PE- HE- DES
RFIR &5 hEmE  HR-FE hE A RHERE SDHHE  2DEH PR @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT TET TET THET THT TET THT

Segment liabilties including 7 #& &
intercompany balances AERSER (47615)  (37,506) (1,899,067)  (264,834) (295745  1,825863  (919,804) (919,804)
Inter-segment elimination AHEHE - - 1,740,093 85,770 - (1,825,863) - -
Segment liabiities HBaE (47615)  (37,506)  (159,874)  (179,064)  (295,745) - (919,804) (919,804)
Deferred income tax liabilties EEFTEH & (81,670) (81,670)
Current income tax liabiites S EIFTEH A E (150,076)  (150,076)
Gold loans EolE (437,151)  (437,151)
Other unallocated liabiities ~ EfiR A A E (110,609)  (110,609)
Total liabilities Hafk
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEEE(E)
Year ended 31 March 2016
HR01653A31ALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter- Reportable
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total
TE-FH TE- B3 PES:
RPN TERE  BE-FE REIA meEl  HPEEE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEx T FHL Fi#n TR Fi#n Fitn
Revenue KA
Sales to external customers HINEPHE 9,628,905 1,311,807 32,992 2,072,051 - - 13,045,755
Sales of scrap gold and platinum ~ HEES RBSER - - 457,654 - - - 457,654
9,628,905 1,311,807 490,646 2,072,051 - - 13,508,409
Inter-segment sales AHEHE 240,243 8,238 2,085,531 274,428 - (2,608,440) -
Sales of merchandises HERM 9,869,148 1,320,045 2,576,177 2,346,479 - (2,608440) 13,503,409
Royalty and service income g RRBERA - - - - 511,177 - 511,177
Consultancy fee income BERBYHA - - - - 16,716 - 16,716
Total @t 9,869,148 1,320,045 2,576,177 2,346,479 527,893 (2,608,440 14,031,302
Results of reportable segments 2R HRHE 642,129 79,516 86,567 195,070 297,797 - 1,301,079
A reconciiation of resuts of R HEEEFR
reportable segments 1o profit AEENT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments 2R EEE 1,301,079
Unallocated income RABBA 67,192
Unallocated expenses RABEZ (156,119)
Operating profit HEaH 1,212,152
Finance income B 1725
Finance costs BER (13,689)
Share of results of associates EEBENAER (79,109)
Profit before income tax RARRERT 1,161,085
Income tax expenses MR (199,631)
Profit for the year Emighl 961,454
Non-controling interests RS (2,762)
Profit attributable to equity FARREHEA

holders of the Company EigiaH 958,692
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEPEHE ()
Year ended 31 March 2016
HR016F3A31ALEE
Retailing -
HongKong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter-  Reportable
Macau and Mainland - Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing  elimination Total  Unallocated Total
TE-BE TE- HE- HER

RAREN  PEAR HR-BE PERN REXE SUEHE 288 AR 5t
HKS000  HKS000  HK§000  HKS00D  HKS00  HK$O000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§'000
THT TR TR T TR TR TR T TR

Depreciation of property, nE HERRENE

plant and equipment (59,524) (16,022) (4522) (11,727) (7,283) - (99,078) (28464 (127,542)
Amortisation of land use rights £ 3¢ F & % 34 - - - (445) (6,931) - (7.376) (326) (7,702)
Depreciation of investment R EMEHE

properties - - - - - - - (744) (744)
Additions of non-current assets  FERBAERE 46,969 26,797 416 8,785 14,152 - 97,119 15,661 112,780

As at 31 March 2016

2016434318
Retailing -
HongKong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter- ~ Reportable
Macau and Mainland - Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China Licensing  elimination Total  Unallocated Total
2E-FR- TE- HE- HER

RRLEN  REAR HR-EE fERN REXE SUREHE 2B AR 5t
HK$000 ~ HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TR T TET TR TR T THT TR

Segment assets including PBEEDE

intercompany balances AEHER 5,842,188 1,489,006 742,357 1,923,297 503,058  (1,611,496) 8,888,405 8,888,405
Inter-segment elimination AHBHH (1474222)  (137,274) - - - 1,611,496 - -
Segment assets PHEE 437,966 1,351,782 742357 1,923,207 503,063 - 8888405 8,888,405
Interests in associates RE SRR ZER 154,531 154,531
Land and buildings THRET 282,957 282,957
Investment properties BENE 24,617 24,617
Deferred income tax assets ~ EEFEHEE 36,770 36,770
Income tax recoverable RERER 20,155 20,155
Other unallocated assets ko REE 1,200,084 1,222,064

Total assets HEE 10,629,499

Segment liabilties including A HEBEEE

intercompany balances REER (198,364) (56,873  (1,584007)  (286,390) (293342 161149  (807,480) (807,480)
Inter-segment elimination PEEEHE - - 1474202 137,274 - (1,611,499) - -
Segment liabilties ARaE (198,364) (56,873) (109,785  (149,116)  (293342) - (807,480) (807,480)
Deferred income tax liabilties ~ EREFTEH B & (79,89) (79.892)
Current income tax liabiities ~ EVERFFER B E (151,384 (151,384)
Bank borrowing RITEE (400,000 (400,000)
Gold loans ESEE (310692 (310,692
Other unallocated liabilities EhrnkBE (11,139 (111,182
Total liabilities Hafk (1,860,580)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEPEHE ()
The Group’s revenues are mainly derived from Hong Kong KEBZBRATERBEEECER RE
customers, Mainland China visitors to Hong Kong and 7 NORPY Z R B R R K R B i 2
Macau and Mainland China customers. An analysis of the KPR ST HEE D 2 AL B
Group’s revenue by location in which the transaction took ADHTEIAT

place is as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue WA
Hong Kong B'BA 6,940,960 8,218,304
Mainland China R A B 4,134,091 3,911,751
Macau and overseas R P K8 N 1,732,226 1,901,247
12,807,277 14,031,302
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than REEMTEWE S 2 REEIEREEE
deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale financial (TREELEMEHEE JHESSR
assets, derivative financial instrument, rental deposits and BE -TEemIT A Heke LMIEMNE
prepayment and loan to an associate) by location of assets HEERT—KEERE)OMIAT:
is as follows:
2017 2016
Hong ~ Mainland Macau and Hong Mainland  Macau and
Kong China overseas Total Kong China overseas Total
F& HhEAM RMREN #it &5 PERM  BMREH EH)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET T#T TER TEL TET TER

Property, plant and equipment 0E BERRE 337835 199,791 26644 564270 371080 214168 18630 603878
Land use fights iR - st - s - 215265 - 215045
Investment properties RamE 16,399 18,621 - 35,020 16,835 7,782 - 24617
Interests in associates REENE 2 ER 85,012 - - 85,012 154,531 - - 154,531
Trading licence RHHR 1,080 - - 1,080 1,080 - - 1,080

440,326 466,193 26,644 933,163 543,526 437,195 18,630 999,351
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OTHER INCOME Hlg A
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Government subsidies 8T 478 B
— Value-added tax refund (Note i) —BERERK (M) 105,157 68,884
— other subsidies (Note ii) —HE A (MI5Ei) 35,370 43,879
Rental income e WA 4,762 6,850
Others HA 30,305 19,680
175,594 139,293
Notes: B -

(i)

This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland China;
the amount of refund is based on 13% of the cost of the imported
diamonds. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a member of
the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are imported
through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

This represents subsidies from a municipal government in Mainland
China.

() IR E P B TSR R RS
BRENEAKAR13%:H - N AEER
BEORGHZKE MERTERLEHE
AR GHED AR E B RERR -

(i) L 75 P B P 30 7 IR 8 2w B
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8 OPERATING PROFIT 8 HEEAEN
The operating profit is stated after charging the following: BT HBR AT S EEH I 0T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Cost of sales (Note (i) & (ii) SHEE PR N (BT & ) B (i) )
— cost of inventories sold —BEFENR 9,322,365 10,554,456
— cost of licensing business — MR ETE AR 207,851 202 735
9,530,216 10,777,191
Staff costs (including the directors’ BTRA (BIEERHE)
emoluments) (Note (i) (Bt &% (i) ) 737,794 716,258
Operating lease KEHE
— minimum lease payments —&ERENK 645,875 647,484
— contingent rents —HAMES 148,980 134,865
Commission expenses TMERFRARZ
to credit card companies A3 95,300 111,797
Depreciation of property, Y B M T E
plant and equipment (Note 16) (KzE16) 122,255 127,542
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE
(Note 18) (MI5E18) 942 744
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 17) 4 fE A 6E (BT RE17) 8,295 7,702
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment Bl = 1,966 994
Auditor’s remuneration 22 G
— Audit services —EAZ RS 5,353 5,145
— Non-audit services —EBZRE 926 854
Notes Bt
(i): Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) of HK$284,915,000 () BTRA(BEESHME) 284,915,000% 7T
(2016: HK$276,263,000) are included in cost of sales. (20164 : 276,263,000/ 70 ) 5+ A S5 & BUAR ©
(i) Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows: (i) - B TAABBEDITAT -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance ERES HE EaA K2 955,930 927,340
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKNE KA — R RE 8
(Note 14) (MF5E14) 65,543 62,039
Long service payment (Note 31) REIRB S (M5E31) 1,236 3,142
1,022,709 992,521
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AR e B R M AR

9 OTHER LOSSES, NET 9 HfuiiR B8
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Net realised losses on derivative MEeMIAZEER
financial instruments BB 5 (2,044) 6,716)
Fair value losses on derivative MESBTIAZARE
financial instruments E518 - (5,225)
Fair value gains/(losses) on A]mRES 2 ARE
convertible bond (Note 21) Wz (E518)
(HMt5E21) 2,844 (20,600)
Net realised losses on gold loans BHEEBEZEER
BB (14,815) (3,577)
Net unrealised losses on gold loans ECBEZARER
(Note 33) E 18 % & (M95E33) (9,716) (4,029)
Net realised losses on foreign exchange INEREIA K 2 B #IR
forward contracts EBFE - (12,650)
Realised gain on gold forward contract ESRPEHZEEN
Wz 2,943 -
Net exchange gains PE 3 W e 5 RE 7,013 2,126
(13,775) (50,671)
10 FINANCE INCOME, NET 10 MBI B#E
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Finance income: Y N
- Bank interest income —RITHBWA 17,951 35,862
— Effective interest income on the loan —ERT—REELQF
to an associate ZEBEFBUA 3,919 3,751
— Interest income on the convertible bond ~ — AJ AR &% 2
MR A 1,712 1,712
— Interest income on the loan to —ERT—REERQT
an associate ZFBUA 400 400
23,982 41,725
Finance costs: BT RRA
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —RTERZFBERAL (803) (12,257)
— Interest expenses on gold loans —EHEEEZNERX (8,208) (1,432)
(9,011) (13,689)
Finance income, net B A - BE 14,971 28,036
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AR e B R M AR

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated

R

ERNEHNIERAFE G ERTG
ML T R16.5% (20164F : 16.5% ) 5118
B BINEF 2 RIE TR AF E (5T E

on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates A EMIE RN EEEEAERRE R
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group g =
operates.
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current taxation: BVEAR I8 :
— Hong Kong profits tax —EBMEWR 80,047 91,355
— Overseas taxation —BINR IR 149,710 122,797
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years —BAEFERE
TR/ (BE) 696 (247)
Deferred income tax (Note 30) BIEPTISH (M47E30) (7,406) (14,274)
223,047 199,631

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax
weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the

consolidated entities as follows:

N E2 [ B 1S B Al i R 2 R T B R
BRAMERZFNMINETFHHEERTE
Z@ miIEERIAT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 50 A& A 1,250,015 1,161,085
Add: Share of results of associates 0 RS AR EE 54,273 79,103
1,304,288 1,240,188
Tax calculated at domestic tax REANS e AR EF
rates applicable to profits RE R R E 2 IR
in the respective jurisdictions 210,136 200,014
Income not subject to taxation BARE 2 WA (10,698) (10,837)
Expenses not deductible for I s s
taxation purposes 3,684 10,311
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFEBETR,/
(BE) 696 (247)
Tax losses of which no deferred tax asset ~ RIERELRIBEEE 2
is recognised MIAEE 6,592 7,514
Utilisation of previously A AR ERIBEE
unrecognised tax losses (248) 8)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of R P B B A A
those subsidiaries in Mainland China Ko TRmF 2 B 12,885 (7,116)
223,047 199,631
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AT

12

13

178

BB RAM T

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,016,838,000 (2016: HK$958,692,000)
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2016:
588,636,276) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

12 BERER

BRERBFTIRBERRBEREE AR
1l 7K £2 [B)3% %11,016,838,0007% 7T (2016
F 1 958,692,000/8 7T) M F N B B1TE
I 2 hnAE 39 81587,107,8500% (2016
F 1 588,636,276/% ) 51 & o

R R B 31T BB EH S SED
IR WA R 20174 201653 A31H
HFEZERBERFEGRARNET
EIER

DIVIDENDS 13 KRR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
2016/17 interim dividend, paid, B2016/17F EF HR S
of HK$0.29 (2015/16 interim dividend: R BR0.29E T
HK$0.315) per ordinary share (2015/165F EH HilR &
0.315%7T) 170,261 185,569
2016/17 special dividend, paid, B 20161 7F E 5%
of HK$0.26 (2015/16 special dividend: BRI EAR0.267 T
HK$0.235) per ordinary share (2015/116F E RIS,
0.235/%8 7T ) 152,648 138,440
322,909 324,009
2016/17 final dividend, proposed, ¥R2016/179F f£ R HARR
of HK$0.40 (2015/16 final dividend: B e RE@AR0.40% T
HK$0.34) per ordinary share (Note) (2015/16F E R B
0.34%87L) (&) 234,843 199,617
2016/17 special dividend, #EIK2016/174F £ 5 Bl A%
proposed, of HK$0.15 BEREAER0.158 T
(2015/16 special dividend: HK$0.21) (2015/16F EHRIIR B,
per ordinary share (Note) 0.217%7t) (MIFE) 88,066 123,292
322,909 322,909

Note:

At a meeting held on 29 June 2017, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.40 per ordinary share and a special
dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share, totaling HK$0.55 per ordinary share.
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company on 23 August 2017. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as dividends payable in these financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31
March 2018.

R2017F6A29R RIT 2 G £ EFEF RN KH
% B 1% L mAR0.4078 T R RIIAR B AR i@ AR0.15
B A EEREBERSSET AR EAFRE
TEARRABR2017F8 A28 RITZ R BEF K #t
E o W SRR AR B0 8 7 I 5 TS R R PR RE T R
B R AEHZ2018FE3A3IH L FEZRER
F 5 e
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e B mRRM

14 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

14 RHEBEFAIBRE

Net contributions to pension plans charged R4RA B R B 2

to the consolidated income statement

BKSEEIS

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAT

AR 65,543 62,039

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

BHERAXINEERaR A TIER

o7 -
e -

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Cost of sales fHE A 23,896 22,989
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 38,340 36,029
Administrative expenses THREM 3,307 3,021
65,543 62,039

The Group’s net contributions to pension plans are mainly
for employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Summary
of the pension plans are as follows:

(i) The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme for its
employees in Hong Kong, under which the Group and
each employee each makes monthly contribution to
the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2016:
HK$1,500) per month.

(i)  The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contributes to retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries in
compliance with the requirements of the respective
municipal governments in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group in Mainland China.

AEBZEREFERFIFRIERE
BRPBEALES MR - RS EBE
LINNE

() AEEAEFBEEXRIBHIMERD
Berts B AERESERY
BIREBZAEBABS%IEST AR
oS BEEREE LR A1,5008 T
(20164 : 1,500/ 7T ) °

i) AEERTENZHBARITA
BT ARRA T B A T IR Z AR E R
HRPEAmEEFLAEFS
—E B2 BRRFFEI R K
T REEEMBIRE LR RAKHE
R BEAMES 2 RIKEMEE-
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l\‘/T\ 7J— & ?% IZTTJ E\E

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EFREREEARRIIRES
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EFRTHEZME
emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the FAENARARESE RITRAHE 2
directors and chief executive of the Company during e @EEImT

the year were as follows:

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FAET

Fees we 2,170 2,105

Salaries e 61,905 60,717
Performance and discretionary BRIBWIBE Rz TEA

bonuses 23,446 21,917

Contributions to pension plan RIKRSFTEIMHR 477 416

Total director emoluments, payable fEfME SIS K2R

and expensed in the financial WS mAR I 258

statements 87,998 85,155
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AR e B R M AR

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EFREREEARRIIRES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#8)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EERITHEZME (18)
emoluments (Continued)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a FAAPAATEETARFZAENER
person’s services as a director, whether of the AESENIERME :

Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B E20175F3A31HILLFE

Performance Estimated Employer's

and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments

Name of director and EERTHEH BERARE EftRFle BERBHETN
chief executive :24 ne g B EEREE  HHE%EE AEfR Heds
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TET TET TET TET
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ &2 % (i) 55 54,609 11,289 - - 172 66,125
TSE Moon Chuen Bl kS 55 1,367 2,084 - - 59 3,565
WONG Hau Yeung N5 55 903 4,168 - - 39 5,165
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy EHE 59 648 3473 - - 28 4,204
CHUNG Vai Ping E2K 55 651 695 - - 28 1,429
CHAN So Kuen BzER 55 3,487 1,737 - - 151 5,430
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BibE 110 60 - - - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110 60 - - - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung TR 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TER 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina B 250 - - - - - 250
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander ~ EIEIR. 300 - - - - - 300
P Shu Kwan, Stephen 30 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Aivin Bk 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Wai STHE 250 - - - - - 250
2,170 61,905 23,446 - - 477 87,998
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EFREREEARRFIRES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#8)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EERITHEZEME (1)
emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE2016F3A31HLEE

Performance Estimated Employer's

and mongy  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments

Name of director and EERREH RERE HERflz EERRAER
chief executive 4 we ¢ Bz TREY  RHERER HE TS kRt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL TER FERL T T FhL TEL

WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ &(EF (Fiii) 55 54,718 10,398 - - 176 65,347

TSE Moon Chuen Bk 55 1330 1920 - - 57 3,362

WONG Hau Yeung Eaul 55 884 3,840 - - 38 4817

WONG Lan Sze, Nancy B 55 635 3,199 - - 2 3917

CHUNG Vai Ping EEY 55 634 960 - - 27 1,676

CHAN So Kuen (Note i BREIE (Hisi) 34 2,276 1,600 - - 0 4,000

WONG Ho Lung, Danny BiEE 110 60 - - - - 170

YEUNG Po Ling, Pauiine HER 10 60 - - - - 170

HUI Chiu Chung SFEh 110 60 - - - - 170

LI Hon Hung TER 110 60 - - - - 170

WONG Yu Pok, Marina B 250 - - - - - 250

TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander * ~ E{EIR * 300 - - - - - 300

IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * s 300 - - - - - 300

MAK Wing Sum, Alvin * BARY 289 - - - - - 289

HUI King Wai * (Note i) SFaL e (M) 153 - - - - - 153

FOK Kwong Man (Noteii) &3 * (Hiki) 64 - - - - - 64

2,105 60,717 21917 - - 416 85,155

# Independent non-executive directors # WAUIEHITES

Notes: B sE

[0} Mr. Wong Wai Sheung is also the chief executive of the i) HREREMARNARZITRER
Company.

(i) Dr. CHAN So Kuen and Mr. HUI King Wai were appointed as (ii) PR 2= 48 18 4 F 57 % Bl 5T AE 201548
executive director and independent non-executive director, A2AB AR EZEANTES REY
respectively, on 21 August 2015. JFBITEE

(il Mr. FOK Kwong Man deceased on 18 June 2015. (iil EE X ER201556 518 H gttt o

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of A =20164 N2017438318 |FF

the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017. EoWEEEREANS -

No director received or will receive remuneration in MEEEREMNESEED N

respect of accepting office as a director. No director IWEREN S - I i Bt 8 Bt

received or will receive other emoluments in respect BARAANTHENB AT ELREBEE

of director’s other services in connection with the 1 AR 7% B Ui 5k 45 W BR E b B 4 o

management of the affairs of the Company, or its
subsidiary undertaking.

182 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<ig£E (B2 HRAT]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T A

B BHRRWE

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

15 EEREREEARBIRER

Aggregate emoluments

paid to or receivable by

directors in respect of

their services as

directors, whether of

the Company or

(#8)
(a)

EERTTHERMS (1)

Aggregate emoluments

paid to or receivable by

directors in respect of

their of

ther services in

connection with the

man

agement of the

affairs of the Company

its subsidiary or its Subsidiary
undertakings undertakings Total
HEAFLFE WERTEFLFNEEH
EHEARESZ ERBAREEZ
RESHEEH EFRMBBECHR
EEELHeHE il &RE -1
For the year ended HE2017F
31 March 2017 SAALFE 2,170 85,828 87,998
For the year ended HZE20165F
31 March 2016 SAALFE 2,105 83,050 85,155
Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EFEZEBREIEF

Except the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2016: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31 March
2017 (2016: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2016: same).

(c)

(d)

An

Br Eill @R iR 2 B TRIKEF
&I RO B E2017F3 31 H
IHEE YEAARRDZEEHRA
RNEI R EH B AR ZIRIE S EHA
RRER] (201645 : $HE]) ©

EREZHERER
REE2017F3A31B IEFE  #
EEELC I EWEE A BERAE
A (20164 : 48RA) °

HREEERBERE=/F%F
K=

REE2017F3A31B IEFE K
AR ERERE=ZFREERA
ARAEHEERB I FEMNRE
(20164 : F8[) °
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T A

B BHRRWE

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

184

(e)

(f

(9)

(h)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity
of such directors at any time during the year (2016:
same).

15 EEREREEARBIRER

(#%)

(e)

FREX FUERRLESE.
EEEFCRREEERRER
ERSRXSACHEMEREZEH

N == e e B LS VNN =
BRRAYETAADNRES %
EEFIAESBEERE AT
HAZEF HLUERLEMEE
ZHE (20164 - #8[]) °

Directors’ material interests in transactions, N EERXZ RENSHZEX
arrangements or contracts Ea
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes MRS mR W EM I T
to these financial statements, no other significant BRI ARE W EFRAEE
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation ERFINARNFIESRERBEEKX
to the Group’s business to which the Company BESEEESEREE201743
was a party and in which a director of the Company A318 IEF & REF o F N
has a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, MEBZHEMEARS THEE
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year %9 (20164F : /[RA) °
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: same).
Five highest paid individuals (9 EEEEHFMAL
Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2016: all) hEERFMATES 25
of them are directors of the Company and the details (2016F 28 ) B R ESE §
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding EoEHBER ERIERE-
paragraph.
Senior management’s emoluments (h) ESREEAR#HS
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZMEN T THIAER

2017 2016
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,0017% £ 2=1,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,000/% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ JT £2,000,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000  2,500,0017% T 3,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £ 3,500,000/ 7T -

2 4

Senior management represents senior management AREREEERAIEE I AMNEE

staff who are non-directors.
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BV T

=
/\‘/T\

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 B -BERRMH

Furniture and
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold computer Plant and Motor
buildings improvements  equipment machinery vehicles Total
HENR BHRER
THREF 1 ERERF RBERER RE #u
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEL TEL TER TR
At 1 April 2015 #2015%4A 18
Cost PR 466,511 448,229 156,924 55,969 23,793 1,151,426
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE (58,732) (302,580) (116,017) (38,727) (17,358) (533,414)
Net book value REFE 407,779 145,649 40,907 17,242 6,435 618,012
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE2016F3A31ALER
QOpening net book value ENRRTE 407,779 145,649 40,907 17,242 6,435 618,012
Exchange differences ERES (6,728) (1,509) (316) (647) (152) (9,352)
Additions hE 1,158 64,559 31,563 5,436 1,606 104,312
Transfer from investment properties 3% & & (ff13H18)

(Note 18) 20,038 - - - - 20,038
Disposals HE (163) (1,193 (234) (1,590)
Depreciation charge FEZW (11,406) (84,086 (22,615) (5.901) (3534) (127,542)
Closing net book value EREMFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,896 4,355 608,878
At 31 March 2016 1R2016%3A31H
Cost KA 479,914 474,820 178,959 55,072 24,689 1,214,354
Accumulated depreciation ZiTE (69,073) (350,370) (130,623) (40,076) (20,334) (610,476)
Net book value REFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,896 4,355 608,878
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE2017F3ANALEE
QOpening net book value FNEEFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,396 4,355 603,878
Exchange differences ERES (6,868) (1,416) (1,095) (628) (158) (10,165)
Additions NE - 60,142 29,813 4823 - 94,778
Disposals HE - (1,248) (646) (72) - (1,966)
Depreciation charge FEZW (11,206) (78,896) (24,361) (6,178) (1,614) (122,255)
Closing net book value EREAFE 302,767 103,032 52,047 13,841 2,583 564,270
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H
Cost A 474,596 498,825 189,784 48,217 23,867 1,235,289
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (81,829) (395,793) (137,737) (34,376) (21,284) (671,019)
Net book value REFE 392,767 103,032 52,047 13,841 2,583 564,270
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17 LAND USE RIGHTS 17 THERE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Year ended 31 March HEIASIHILFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 215,245 224,883
Addition N=T 51,704 8,468
Amortisation charge BHE A (8,295) (7,702)
Exchange differences &+ =R (10,873) (10,404)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 247,781 215,245
At 31 March M3HA31H
Cost (DN 287,873 248,925
Accumulated amortisation g §i (40,092) (33,680)
247,781 215,245
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 BBEWYXE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Year ended 31 March HZESASIHILFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 24,617 45,792
Addition //J\\ E 11 ,735 -
Transfer to property, plant and BEBEYE RE M
equipment (Note 16) = (KMi5E16) - (20,038)
Depreciation e (942) (744)
Exchange difference P&+ =% (390) (393)
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 35,020 24,617
At 31 March M3H31H
Cost (DN 40,446 29,189
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHiE (5,426) (4,572)
35,020 24,617
At valuation (Note) & (Kizh) 99,028 87,119

Note:

The valuation of the investment properties was determined by an
independent valuer BMI Appraisals Limited at open market values (2016: BMI

Appraisals Limited).

CEE

Al e

186 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<#&5E (B ) BR A ]

BREWMEZEEABYLEEMPNBETHER
NENEAFTEEE (20164 : A M BEFHEARAD
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wr e M B R M et

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 KEWME (#8)
Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- R IR AT 2 48 & 70 & T 70 2R R R
cancellable operating leases are as follows: JEERASBFEMNT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Not later than one year —FR 7,344 3,433
Later than one year and not later than —FHRETBBAF
five years 9,412 3,444
16,756 6,877
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REBELFZHES
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
As at 1 April H4H1H 154,531 245,934
Share of results of associates for the year 4 X JE {5 B & A A 4 (54,273) (79,103)
Share of reserve movement of FAFEGHEE RARES
associates for the year (15,246) (12,300)
As at 31 March MR3HA31H 85,012 154,531
Amount due from an associate (Note )  FEUL — R EE& A FIBRIA
(Bt &Ei) 33,340 56,374
Amount due to an associate (Note i) FEA — KBt A FIERIR
(B &Ei) (1,995) (2,235)
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Partic
2017

ulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March
are as follows:

Particulars of

19 HERE

AFZER (1)

REEBLATIN2017E3A31B 25515

-

Place of issued % of attributable interests
Name incorporation share capital held indirectly Principal activities
£ o 1 R 3L 3 B ERTEFHE HESTREEEREIL IEEEH
2017 2016

Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50%  Manufacturing and

Company Limited* BB 6,120,000/ T wholesale of diamond
NEBAER AR products

B0 E m s R B

China Gold Silver Group The British Virgin -~ USD3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and franchising

Company Limited Islands (“BVI") 3,334 T operations of gold and

(‘CGS’)* REHRRES jewellery products in
HEESREEBRAA Hong Kong, Macau

(ThEEHR]) " and Mainland China

Notes:

(i

Pursuant to the shareholder’s agreement, this associate is controlled
by a third party, who holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

The financial statements of this company are audited by firm other
than PricewaterhouseCoopers. The financial year of this associate is
not conterminous with that of the Group and the financial statements
used for equity accounting are for the 12 months period ended 31
December 2016. This associate uses 30 June as its financial year to
conform with its holding company’s reporting date. Pursuant to the
shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled by its holding
company, which holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

Amount due from an associate of HK$33,340,000 (2016:
HK$56,374,000) are trade in nature. Amount due from/(to) an
associate is denominated in HK$ and is unsecured, interest-free and
receivable/(repayable) on demand.

The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

B AL

(i

EEE RMRTERL
REELRAEEH
EmZTEREHE
EES

BRERR M ZBHELTHNEFSZ
AIRRERZE =T 1M

ZARZHEREBRE KBS HAER
BT 2 SN ELAh RS AT A% o 52 & 1 R) 2 B IR
FEARNEETR EMBERRDFAESS
s MEH E2016F 124310 (L1218 A £
Mo A RIRA6AS0BEAEMREE
FEBA NEREERARNREEH R
BRI - %A R R IR A RIES - 2ZiE
BRARNERTEEZTIRATEE-

U — KB 42 A B BRIE 33,340,000/ 7T (2016
4 1 56,374,0007T) BE H1HHE - el (fiE
1) — KA QR RBLETTEHE - \IKHH -
% B RARERKE (EE) -

78 5 [E Ay B A A R R201 74 12201643 A 31
B A KA AR
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20 LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE 20 BERF—XXBELT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#T FHIT
Non-current portion #ﬁib Be
Loan to an associate (Note ) ERT - FHMERA (M) 90,830 86,911
Current portion mENER S
Loan to an associate (Note i) SERT - FHERA (M) 20000 20,000 _
110,830 106,911

(i

In connection with the acquisition of CGS on 6 June 2014, the Group
and Hong Kong Resources Holdings Limited (‘HKRH”) each agreed
to provide funding of HK$100,000,000 to CGS by way of shareholder
loan for general working capital and business expansion purpose.

The shareholder loan is unsecured, interest-free and not to be repaid
within one year after the end of the reporting period.

The difference between the nominal value of the loan and its fair
value of HK$80,207,000 at the time of acquisition amounting to
HK$19,793,000 is regarded as part of the cost of the investment in
CGS.

The Group and HKRH each agreed to provide a short term
shareholder loan of HK$20,000,000 to CGS. The short term
shareholder loan is interest bearing at 2% per annum and
with maturity date on 4 May 2017. This shareholder loan was
subsequently extended to 4 May 2018.

(i

Annual Report 2016/17 E#f

BM2014F6 A6 BT HE G IR ANEE R
ERERERAERRA ([EHERER])
HREEB—ERRER AP BESRIEHE
100,000,0008 L& & EA—MEEES R

BRERTEER 28 BHRARRE S
RE—FANEE-

Bz mEEE Q72 {E80,207,000/ T2 %=
HE A U BE B 3£19,798,000/8 ST AR A R Bl &
RILERARZ — D

AEERLRBEBERERSERERAFEEIR
2 —%20,000,00078 ST HY 2 HAIG SR B 3R - 2

HBARR R B BIR2% 2 F F 5B - W20174F
5A4B R - ZERRERE BT ZE2018
F5H4H
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21 f14E&mTH
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current portion JEREE S
Convertible bond (Note) AR () 48979 46,135 _
Current portion mENER S
CGS Share Option _ _______________ TEeRERE - 9_
48,988 46,144
Note: B 5

On 6 June 2014, the Company subscribed a convertible bond of HKRH of
HK$57,080,000 with 3% interest rate per annum and 5 years of maturity
from the date of issuance. The conversion period commences on the 2nd
anniversary of the issue date and expiries on the date which is three days
before its maturity.

The convertible bond comprises a loan receivable component and option
component which together have been designated as derivative financial
instrument by the Company. The convertible bond was initially recognised at
HK$57,080,000 and subsequently revalued using a Trinomial Tree model with
the following key assumptions:

201456 A6 AR FIRBEBERIER AR E
#:57,080,0007 7T * G | 3% + B ¥ 17 H B ET5F
REHER - AR EARN BT B A A F R E B I A A
KN

ARREFDIEERERRERE BARARIEEAR
1/T$imﬂlﬁ°—ﬁﬁ‘ﬂxfzﬁhz57080OOO?PfTE%Eﬁ?ﬂ
HHER - HB A= XA KA TR RES®TE
fiy:

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

2017538310 7201643 H31H

Share price of HKRH BRE R B HK$0.107# jt HK$0.1147% 7T
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$0.18#& 5T HK$0.18/8 7T
Dividend vyield & BA = 0% 0%
Effective interest rate BHRFIE 15.31% 19.22%
Volatility A 41.14% 40.32%
Risk free rate o [ b 3 0.91% 0.90%

The fair value gain of HK$2,844,000 (2016: fair value loss of HK$20,600,000)
was included under “Other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

A B K 752,844,000 7T (201656 : A A EE B
20,600,000/ 7T ) iF A B £2017F3A318 L FE 2
mAEBmEZ [HMEE JF5E] -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22 nJi#tHHE&mEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
At 1 April ®4B1H 8,767 8,820
Additions NE - 3,924

Net loss transfer to equity (Note 29) BERSERZFEE

(FF5E29) (1,077) (3,977)
At 31 March #3A31H 7,690 8,767

Available-for-sale financial assets represent common shares
issued by a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The available-for-sale financial assets
are denominated in HK$ and stated at fair value, which is
also the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting.

AHHESHEER FXNBBHAR
ZRARAR EHZ ARIEITZEB -
AHEESREENETAERRAR
BE2Y ZFeREET RS HEE
&= EERR-

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 #BE& AMRERAEMEKRE
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
Non-current JEENHA
Rental deposits Hekse 108,510 119,004
_Prepayment ] BNER 12604 2,824 _
121,204 121,828
Current BIEA
Rental deposits Hekse 70,221 49,496
Value-added tax recoverable AT R E 154,184 108,162
Prepayments TEfTARIE 50,495 32,870
Interest receivables UL FI) B, 2,613 1,457
Other receivables E b fE UL BR 18 19,419 21,534
Other deposits Emime 26,391 28,233
323,323 241,752
444,527 363,580
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 & AMEERAEMEKRE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (#8)
The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and e TENEREREMERIREZ REE
other receivables approximate their fair values and are HEAABERE LATIEERE
denominated in the following currencies: i :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
HK$ BT 168,543 164,098
RMB AR 213,429 147,493
MOP BT 52,263 47,675
Other currencies Hih g 10,292 4,314
444,527 363,580
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has e RhHEMEKREB EELEENER
been assessed by reference to historical information about DEFBHF AL R Z BT ER#
the counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties Tt R AHF T EE LB RO
have not defaulted in the past. At 31 March 2017, no 201743 A31 8 « W iz & & H Ath FE U
deposits and other receivables were considered impaired BRIBH R B ERE (20165 - f]) ©
(2016: Ni).
INVENTORIES 24 FR
The inventories net of provision are as follow: HBREE o FEOT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Finished goods SUPK o 6,916,477 6,269,269
Raw materials R4t % 56,293 75,459
6,972,770 6,344,728

At 31 March 2017, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$47,290,000 (2016:
HK$44,621,000).

MR2017F3H31H » ] &I FE R
217 E #) /47,290,000 7T (20164 :

44,621,0005 7T,) °
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to
90 days.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

25

R AEBIRIR
AEENEERFHETERERE Y
EREAREE BEESHEHER
PR P W E 2 EEH— 8 FOEO
H e

B HRWRIE 2 RN T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0%230H 143,542 148,719
31 - 60 days 31%260H 44,481 52,730
61 — 90 days 61%290H 20,371 12,121
91 - 120 days 91%£120H 2,944 36
Over 120 days HBim120H 5,920 928
217,258 214,534

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their B RWIRBEAREHEL QA EEME

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Eo

BHRWEREZREENATIEERE

f

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

HK$ BT 19,425 15,242
RMB AR 186,078 193,259
MOP SEPIIT 9,638 5,314
Other currencies Hih g 2,117 719
217,258 214,534

The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed by
reference to historical default rate of the counterparty. The
existing counterparties have not defaulted in the past.

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$8,864,000
(2016: HK$964,000) were past due but not considered
impaired all of which were aged over 90 days.

BHRVEEBEEEENEB2EHT
TREBR L RETHE - REYTF B
I #EHE R AOER ©

R2017F3A31E ' (R BB BOOE M &
5 FE Ui BE 788,864,000 7T (20164 :
964,000/ 7T ) A& B 8 HiE 7 B 47 4% AR
@0
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES 26 BE&RMITHEHER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Short-term bank deposits, with FHRLR=(E A8
maturities less than 3 months RERRITIE X 195,300 186,905
Cash at bank and on hand WO AFERE 1,333,906 2,174,690
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEY 1,529,206 2,361,595
Short-term bank deposits, with R HBE=EAN
maturities over 3 months RHEISRITER 332,568 70,590
Total cash and bank balances Re MIRITEMRBRE 1,861,774 2,432,185

As at 31 March 2017, the cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$1,070,366,000 (2016: HK$1,121,773,000) are held by
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

R2017HF3A31H UAREFENR S
K R 17 45 4 #91,070,366,0007% 7T (2016
% :1,121,773,00078 70) JTh B AR E B R
B A2 B A RIERE - BZEUNARE
EHEREHRE BINE BB ST B BT
T 8405 2 HINE & 1) 45 Bl 2 R 471

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27 ¥ SEFIRIE - HthEFIRARE
ACCRUALS g 2]
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade payables B S EMNRIE 381,575 246,076
Deposits from customers and licensees HRERZF REFHE S 318,647 297,397
Salaries and welfare payables e & R ABF 160,004 154,873
Other payables H b pE AR 1E 111,736 142,359
Accrued expenses JEETE A 32,702 51,754
1,004,664 892,459
The ageing of trade payables is as follows: B IRENERB ZRERNT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 247,907 150,510
31 - 60 days 31£260H 120,730 81,445
61 — 90 days 61%290H 11,224 9,512
91 - 120 days 91£120H 1,417 4,583
Over 120 days HBiB120H 297 26
381,575 246,076

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables
and accruals approximate their fair values.

BB REMNRIE - B ARIE N 5T IR
ZEREERFEEZ AERE -
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

28 BRFERERMGRR

(@) Share capital (@) B&=®
2017 2016
No. of shares HK$’000  No. of shares HK$’'000
BiREE THET e E FET
Issued and fully paid: BETRME:
Ordinary shares BREECET
of HK$0.1 each LB 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
(b) Share premium (b) BERBRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
At 31 March H3HA31H 2,494,040 2,494,040
(¢) A summary of movements in the Company’s (c) FTLAFERITRE BRNBRER
issued share capital, share premium and B8 2 BR O] G filf o2 8 BN 481 22 5 8
capital redemption reserve is as follows: mF:
Number of Capital
shares in Share Share  redemption
issue capital premium reserve
BT B & HEE
BREE B+ BRRE 4]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2015 72015%F4 A1H 589,107,850 58,910 2,522,983 -
Repurchases of shares & B 3% {7 (Fif5E)
(Note) (2,000,000) (200) (28,943) 200
At 31 March 2016, 201643 A31H
1 April 2016 and 2016F4A1B &
31 March 2017 2017%E3A31H 587,107,850 58,710 2,494,040 200
Note: B aE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company purchased
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium
paid on repurchase was charged against the share premium of the
Company. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from retained earnings to the capital
redemption reserve.

HZE2016F3A31HIEFE  AAAIERES
B8 22 FI7 B [212,000,0000% AN A &) f& 19 42 (&
29,143,000/ 7T © FTE B BB Bl 2 AR (9 B 588
RAQNRCBHITRACTRZERD 2 EEE
BB E SN2 BEDFARRRZKGD
HER-ERREFHEHROEEZREEH
REBBRFEBEEZEAELHE-
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RESERVES 29 &l
Available-
for-sale
Capital financial
Capital  redemption assets  Exchange Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total
HERE  THiHE
BXfE fif SMEERE ERRE EERE | REERN ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Tisr T T
(Note ) (Note 28(c)) (Note ii)
(MsE)  (MzE2s(e) (FisEi)
Representing: iR
Reserves 1
(excluded proposed dividend) ~ (RRIEBERS) 135713 - 720 109870 260 5291538 5630461
Proposed dividend BRARS - - - - - 324,009 324,009
At 31 March 2015 2015535731 A 135,713 - 720 109,870 92620 5615547 5954470
For the year ended #E2016%3A31A
31 March 2016 LEE
At 1 April 2015 #2015%4A1A 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,615,547 5,954,470
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Proft attributable to RARERFEA
equity holders of the JEE &R
Company - - - - - 958,692 958,692
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2EKA
Currency translation differences ~ EXZH - - - (152,887) - - (152,887)
Remeasurement of EERTIEMRN
employee benefit EffiE
obligations (Note 31(d) (BHEE31() - - - - - 12,766 12,766
Revaluation of available- MHELESREAE
for-sale financial assets MEEBZD
(Note 22) (H7E22) - - (3977) - - - (3977)
Total other comprehensive Eti2EEHA
income - - (B977)  (152,887) - 12766 (144098)
Transactions with owners HEAAZRS
2014/15 final dividend paid BR2014/155 8
KERE - - - - - (324000 (324,009)
2015/16 interim dividend paid BR2015/165E
RS - - - - - (185,569)  (185,569)
2015/16 special dividend paid B 2015165
BRIRE - - - - - (138,440)  (138,440)
Transfer to capital ERZEREREE
redemption reserve (FH3E28(0))
(Note 28(c) - 200 - - - 200) -
; 200 - } S E828  (648019)
At 31 March 2016 12016534310 135,713 200 (3,257) (43,017) 92,620 5,938,787 6,121,046
Representing: &
Reserves 1
(excluded proposed dividend) ~ (FRIEBERS) 135713 200 B257)  @3017) 92620 5615878 5798137
Proposed dividend BERE - - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2016 12016434310 135,713 200 (3,257) (43,017) 92,620 5,938,787 6,121,046
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29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 GEfl (48)
Available-
for-sale
Capital financial
Capital  redemption assets  Exchange Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
HERE  WHHE
N fif SMEERE ERRE EERE | REERN 1)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT FRT FRT TR FRT FHRT TR

(Notei)  (Note 28(t) (Note i)
(M&i)  (BE2s(p)) (W)
Representing: R
Reserves 1
(excluded proposed dividend) (FRERERS) 135,713 200 (3,257) 43,017) 92,620 5615878 5,798,137
Proposed dividend BERE - - - - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2016 12016%3A31H 135,713 200 (3,257) (43,017) 92,620 5,938,787 6,121,046
For the year ended BE017E
31 March 2017 3AMALEE
At 1 April 2016 #2016F4A1A 135,713 200 (3,257) (43,017) 92,620 5,938,787 6,121,046
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit attributable to equity FARERREA
holders of the Company JEE &R - - - - - 1016838 1,016,838
Other comprehensive Et2ERA
income
Currency tranlation differences ~ EXZ - - - (171,738) - - (171,738)
Remeasurement of EERFEMRN
employee benefit EifiE
obligations (Note 31(d) (FH3E31() - - - - - 1,349 1349
Revaluation of available- MHELESREAE
for-sale financial assets MEES
(Note 22) (Fi7E22) - - (1077) - - - (1,077)
Total other comprehensive Eti2EEHA
income - - 007 (171,739 - 1018187 845372
Transactions with owners HEAAZRS
2015/16 final dividend paid ER2015/16%5 &
KERE - - - - - (1) (199617)
2015/16 special dividend paid BR2015/165 &
BRIRE - - - - - (123299 (123,292
2016/17 interim dividend paid ER201617EE
FERE - - - - - (170.261)  (170,261)
2016/17 special dividend paid BR2016/175E
BARSE - - - - - (52648 (152649)
- - - - N
At 31 March 2017 M201743A31H 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,755) 92,620 6,311,156 6,320,600
Representing: i’
Reserves f#fE
(excluded proposed dividend) (TEERERE) 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,755) 92,620 5,988,247 5,997,691
Proposed dividend BRRE - - - - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2017 12017434318 135,713 200 (4,334) (214,758) 92,620 6,311,156 6,320,600
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RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

[0] The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

(i) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant
Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in respect
of:

29 fi#ifm (#8)

BAE

0} REE 7 EAREFHERNETNM97F EM I
P U R P B 1 B 2 B ) T (B SR sh AR B 7T AR
RERM ZEERERZZE -

(ii) EEREDT A DR EEABRIETHAE
PR B AR EEGREP EANHAE
AR RBEOIRTE -

RIEFRISIR
REBEEFASH T T 51 & B B
:

Undistributed profit of
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on those subsidiaries in
allowances and tax losses  closing inventories Mainland China Total
FAEPEAH
RERERGRRAEGR NXERHIKERETN HELAREH #a
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAR TET FAR TERT FAER TERT FET
At 1 April W4R18 127 (746) 30,270 23,985 (73,519) (80,639) (43,122 (57,39)
Credited/(charged) to the A BHER
consolidated income ~ f A/ (#1%)
statement (Note 11) (PizE11) 1,596 873 8,968 6,285 (3,158) 7,116 7,406 14,274
At 31 March R3A31A 1,723 127 39,238 30,270 (76,677) (73,519) (35,716) (43,122)
Representing: 15
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THBTT
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTSMEE 45,954 36,770
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTHAE (81,670) (79,892)
At 31 March MA3A31H (35,716) (43,122)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$14,703,000 (2016: HK$8,359,000) in respect of
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income. Cumulative tax losses of HK$40,396,000 (2016:
HK$34,210,000) can be carried forward indefinitely;
cumulative tax losses of HK$35,522,000 (2016:
HK$26,553,000) will expire (if not utilised) within the next five
years.

EEMSHREENREE 2 RIEEIE
R MEEABAEEBARBRERTET
1 #8818 I &5 3R - 7A2017 43 A 31
H ASBEEBEABREEHRBEE
14,703,000/ Jt (20164 : 8,359,000
BIL) D EBE THEENIEEBRE
ABMMAZHRIEBE - R HIEEIE
40,396,000/% 7T (20164 : 34,210,000
B ERBPEE RFHERRB
35,522,000/ 7T (20164F : 26,553,000/
To)WABI A - AR R R B A fE R
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2017 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Towers
Watson Hong Kong Limited, using projected unit credit
method.

(@ The amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is as follows:

31

EREHRE- RUBRGS

ﬁETF%E“ BEED AEEEEEINET

ERT EAEHE%%Z!KEIF "REZET
BERLRERFAES N —RMEFIE - &
NREDRTERREZ & ?é & KR

BEBIME - W EAREEAKAEAET
RAKE 2B EE 2 REHELS - NEE
W EEEREEEREMBTREEZ
B NEZXMNEBNAR §EAK
BzFEREBAINEHRRE S -

GERBEMBEETENBEBER AT
FEHEMEEEZTNEAAEEEEM
B 2201693831 H k201743 A31H
=B E

@ REFEEABRERZINAMN
T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET FAET
Present value of defined benefit AERAEEZRE
obligations 23,754 23,918

(b)  Movements in the net liability recognised in the

b REAEERBRERZAEFE

consolidated balance sheet are as follows: HEIT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 April J\5A4ﬂ1 H 23,918 34,008
Expenses recognised in the REEEIERRER LA
consolidated income statement 1,236 3,142
Remeasurements recognised REMEEERA
in other comprehensive income WRZEHME (1,349) (12,766)
Benefits paid directly by employer 1B > B Xt 2 &7 (51) (466)
At 31 March F3A31H 23,754 23,918
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 31 EERFIRE- RUREE

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued)

(©

200

Expenses recognised in the consolidated income (@)
statement is as follows:

(1)

REFRBRRERZAWT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THT FET
Current service cost BIEARR & & 750 2,507
Interest cost FILE AR 486 635
1,236 3,142
Income recognised in the consolidated statement of ) Rie2ERARKER 2 WAL
comprehensive income is as follows: N
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Remeasurements of employees EERMEENENTE
benefit obligations (1,349) (12,766)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 (e)
March 2017 and 2016 (expressed as weighted
average) are as follows:

R20174 K20165F3A31BFEA 2
FERBERE (AT E])
T

2017 2016
Discount rate AH38 & 2% 2.1%
Future salary increment RIRE IR 3% 3%
Return of MPF balances RIE S AR R 3% 3%

Impact on employee benefit obligations

HERBRIEENTE

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R &8 R AR8n B
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 3.6% Increase by 3.7%
BRER = 0.25% H3.6% 1 103.7%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 7.0% Decrease by 7.8%
FelrXx 0.25% 2 h07.0% HA7.8%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

A EBRESTIRBERES
MABEMERESTE2ER-F
B IR AR A RE S - —LEfR
R BB AT BEARRE -
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33

BANK BORROWINGS 32 HWITER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured %8 Bi$R 17 & 2k - £ 4K - 400,000

As at 31 March 2016, the bank borrowings were due
for repayment within one month. Bank borrowings of
HK$400,000,000 bore interest at 1% above Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate per annum. The bank borrowings
were denominated in HK$.

The fair value of the bank borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting was not
significant due to their short-term maturities.

GOLD LOANS

Gold loans are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and the change in fair value is recognised in
“Other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2017, gold loans of HK$437,151,000
represent borrowings of gold from banks which involved
physical settlement.

As at 31 March 2016, gold loans of HK$76,043,000
represent borrowings from banks of which the repayment
amount are pledged with gold prices and HK$234,649,000
represent borrowings of gold which involved physical
settlement.

As at 31 March 2017, the gold loans are interest bearing at
2.5% per annum (2016: 1.2% — 2.5%), with original maturity
of 1 — 6 months (As at 31 March 2016: 1 — 3 months) from
date of inception.

The net unrealised losses on gold loans arising from change
in fair value of HK$9,716,000 (2016: net unrealised loss of
HK$4,029,000) has been recognised in “Other losses, net”
in the consolidated income statement.

R2016F3A31H » SR1TE X AMN1E A
M {83 - A& #400,000,000/8 TR R1TE
FIRBBRITRET B I %ETE < 8R1T
ERABTEHE

RRITERNHPREE - BRTETK
At SITERZ AR EEEALREER
EE

ReER
BE2BEDNERERELEERRAR
BFFERANEZS NGRS BaR [HM
B8 FER] R

R2017F3H31H » &£ EE437,151,000
BILIEBSREYRINIRITESEE -

R20165E3A31H » & ¢ & 76,043,000
BILARTER BERSBUESERIE
- §2234,649,000 7T B3 M B ¥ < F

MESEE-

MR2017%43A31H E&EEK2.5%
(2016%F : 1.2%E2.5% ) 2 F R KT 8
REMBARLIT1261E8 (R201643A
31H 1&E31E A7) EIH -

ECEBEANEBEEPMEE L RER
718 /% 58 59,716,000/ 7T (20164F : &
IR 5518 /5 584,029,000/ 7 ) IR &R A
ok [HAESE F8E] PER-
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34 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 34 FEBARER
FLOWS
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %54 BT 4 ) 1,250,015 1,161,085
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 17) 3 {F FIEEE 85 (PIEE17) 8,295 7,702
Depreciation of property, plant W WEREETE
and equipment (Note 16) (MfsE16) 122,255 127,542
Depreciation of investment properties WEMEFE (MIsE18)
(Note 18) 042 744
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BEMEEZBE
and equipment (Note 8) (Ff7E8) 1,966 994
Provision for long service payment REBRG B E (H5E31())
(Note 31(b) 1,236 3,142
Net realised losses on gold loans =52 BECEERBEFE
(Note 9) (Bt .&9) 14,815 3,577
Net unrealised losses on ESBECARERBEFE
gold loans (Note 9) (FI7E9) 9,716 4,029
Interest income (Note 10) FEHA (FFzE10) (23,982) (41,725)
Interest expenses (Note 10) B (MFE10) 9,011 13,689
Fair value (gains)/losses on AMRES s AEE
convertible bond (Note 9) (Wz) B8 (KiEE9) (2,844) 20,600
Fair value losses on derivative ESBITACARER
financial instruments (Note 9) &8 (MI5E9) - 5,225
Share of results of associates (Note 19)  FE{G A & N R F4E (MFE19) 54,273 79,103
Operating profit before working EEECEHILCE R
capital changes 1,445,698 1,385,707
(Increase)/decrease in rental deposits Aeme (38m) B (10,231) 5,316
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M, R (575,338) 947,853
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, Z ZEWIRF 124 8K
prepayments and other receivables FRIA N H At & YR IE 1L AN (82,237) (61,226)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due FEJ%Z/ ANES=WNCIE /S
from/to associates w, ($EAn) 23,194 (25,337)
Increase in trade payables, other payables & %Jﬁaﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ < H A B F0E
and accruals N FEEHFRIEE I 133,891 5,865
Decrease in employee benefit EERMEERL
obligations (Note 31(b)) (FEE31()) (51) (466)
Net cash generated from operations BBELEZREFE 934,926 2,257,712

Note: significant non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
entered into gold loan contracts with physical settlement
amounting to HK$437,151,000 (2016: HK$234,649,000).

The repayment and borrowing of gold loans with REE
physical settlement are included in the inventories in RERE

e EXFRERH

the consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash

transactions.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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NEYMRENESEES 7437151 ooo
7 7T (2016%F : 234,649,000/ 7T) ©
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HEmeERPEEEIFEERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are SRR M R

35 COMMITMENTS 35 A&KiE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BHEKIE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAET
Contracted but not provided for: ERIAERER B

— property, plant and equipment — ME -HWENIEE 6,692 5,376

— investment in an available- —RE-HEAHEE
for-sale financial asset TREE 6,250 6,588

Total capital commitments ERIAEREHEE 2
contracted but not provided for BARAE BT 12,942 11,964

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not
contracted for.

Commitments under operating leases

At 31 March 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings as
follows:

M201743A31H K&201643 A31
B WEEZTERITHZE R

= o

BERERE

M2017F3A31H » A"E B 5t £+ b
LEFRETIRE  QEHEEM
RARRIZN 2 &IEBEENRAETEN
T

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FET

Not later than one year —F R 582,736 689,403
Later than one year and not —FERETBBAF

later than five years 596,527 768,733

Later than five years R A F 321 321

1,179,584 1,458,457

The actual payments in respect of certain operating
leases are calculated at the higher of the minimum
commitments as noted above and the amounts
determined based on a percentage of the sales of the
related outlets.

HTREHEERNRIR L
AR AYE AR B ARRE S M IHE R
XANLMEESR IR EF

s
= o
Eas
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37

204

EhkiE ek

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had an outstanding
financial guarantee amounting to HK$764,044,000 (2016:
HK$672,845,000) issued to several banks in respect of
bank facilities granted to an associate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company
incorporated in the BVI, which directly owns 39.89% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining shares of the Company
are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are
discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong'’s Family Trust (the
“Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which is the beneficial owner of 36.72%
of issued shares of Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares
of Luk Fook Control are held by various shareholders.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

(@) The Group has entered into supplementary licensing
and maintenance agreement with GS Tech Company
Limited (92% owned by the Wong’s Family Trust)
for acquiring a license to use certain computer
programmes and to receive maintenance services
fees. For the year ended 31 March 2017, license
fees of HK$2,832,000 (2016: HK$3,453,000) were
capitalised in the consolidated balance sheet and
maintenance services fees of HK$4,025,000 (2016:
HK$3,400,000) were charged in the consolidated
income statement, respectively.

37

BRRAR

MR20179F3A31H » REBGE F— B
ERNRMIBITRIERSE THRITHTHAR
BB B IS 1E R A764,044,0007% 7T (2016
£ 1 672,845,000/ 7T ) °

REALTZES

ARBIzEERRA B (BER)AR
AEl([RNEER]D) - AREBHB R
HEIMEZ 2 R BEEEBARQT
39.89% 17 o AR A RIEA A 7 BREFA o

FRENMEZRE (BREEREER
TF%%J 1) RERRKE ([E:E])
ZERRBA ERRAELHKRERTA

"
%ﬂb‘

RAREHEBITRAZEREE A &
RHERBRTERARERER @

[%36.72%E 1T 19 o N TR IE AR 5 T %

MAZERREE -

mEBLLE BEERERERF/NEY

AREGDESELEABRBERA
B (Eon s E R R KT
BN B REEE TR A
EEETEKRER RWEREE R
BB £2017F 3831
HIEFE - B2 F2,832,000%8
JC (2016%4F : 3,453,000 T ) R 47
AEERBREMEREERGE
4,025,0005% 7T (20164F : 3,400,000
BIL) BN BER A -

(a)
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

37 RMEBEALZXRS (&)

(b) The Group has entered into a lease agreement of (b) AL E HNew Merit Corporation
a premise with tenancy period of 36 months with Limited (HZE B LER BINRA
New Merit Corporation Limited, an entity jointly B E=ZFHRAESNER)GI L
controlled by Mr Wong Wai Sheung and other two —EYENEE W - 718 B A361(E
independent third parties. For the year ended 31 BB ZEZ2017F3A31B L FE -
March 2017, rental deposits of HK$2,550,000 (2016: DHERGEEERBERLEA
HK$2,550,000) and rental expenses of HK$8,953,000 1B & & R E 1% £2,550,000%8
(2016: HK$8,831,000) were recognised in the JC (20164 : 2,550,000/ 7T ) &
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income & [ 38,953,0007% JT (20164 :
statement respectively. This transaction was carried 8,831,000 7T) * 5% X 5 Jh i {8
out at terms mutually agreed between the respective RTA1 77 B AR E WO R R ETT
parties.

Transactions with associates (c) ERBLAFRZIRS
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHET FHET
Sales of goods HE S m () 42,535 75,711
Subcontracting fee paid ENSBRER () 15,920 20,310
Rental income HEBA (i 1,442 1,329
Management fee income BERBERA 0] 751 724
Purchase of goods BE 0] 4,040 1,181
Licensing fee paid ENmEEBER i) 341 600
Interest income on the loan B 7K ¥ — KBt & A 7]
to an associate 2 FBHA 20 400 400
Notes: B EE -

(i) Sales of goods, subcontracting fee paid, rental income,
purchases of goods, licensing fee paid and management fee
income were charged at terms based on mutual agreements.

(ii) As mentioned in Note 36, the Group had financial guarantee
amounting to HK$764,044,000 (2016: HK$672,845,000)
issued to several banks in respect of bank facilities granted to
an associate.

[0} R 95 A8 B 15 5 B 2 IR AR 2 88
EEm ENSEER HaBA B
B ENREEBERREEELA -

(i) BINMIFESE  NEEBE T —REE
REIRERITRVE ME TIRITEITHE
T HEIR B764,044,000/8 TT (20164 :
672,845,000/ 7T ) °
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37 RREALTZX S (#&)

(d) Year-end balances (d) FHREER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Loan to an associate BERTF—REE QT
— non-current (Note 20) —JEBNER (Fft5E20) 90,830 86,911
Loan to an associate ERT—XKEEQA
— current (Note 20) —BHA (Ff5E20) 20,000 20,000
Amount due from an FEU— R & AR BRIE
associate (Note 19() (BEE19G)) 33,340 56,374
Amount due to an FEA — KB A RIERIA
associate (Note 19(j) (FMFEE19(3)) (1,995) (2,235)
(e) Key management compensation e) TEEHEME
Key management includes directors (executive FTEEBERRBES (ITRIEH
and non-executive) and senior management of the TER)RAEESRERAB B
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key EERBZIREBMENIENETE
management for employee services is shown below: EEEZMeWT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowances and e ZRREYA G
benefits-in-kinds 63,643 64,013
Performance and discretionary BREBWIBER ZIEA
bonuses 26,572 24,797
Contributions to pension plan BRIRSET B 553 565
90,768 89,375
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38 SUBSIDIARIES

EhkE ek

At 31 March 2017, the Company had the following principal

B2 E

R2017F3A31H  ARAIZEEH B R

subsidiaries: AT
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FHRER
301 BRTRE/ FiisgER
1 BB TERH BEREFEE  FORRGLERLAH id7]
Directly Indirectly
HiE M
Luk Fook Investment The BVI Investment holding HK$2 100 - -
(B.V.L) Limited KBARRHE REER 2B
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong Authentication of gemstones HK$2 - 100 -
PEREEETLOERAA 0 EREE 28T
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$12,100 - 100 -
RREREBRAT Bk EEERUES 12,100 7T
Ice Collection (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Retalling of gold and jewellery HK$100 - 100 -
K& (BER)BERAF e products 100/ 7T
HELHERTERH
Jewellworld.com Limited The BVI Investment holding, and HK$8,000,000 - 51 49
KEHRBVLERAF RESXBREE  provision of software 8,000,000/ 7
development and services
relating to internet
REMR REDRIHERLF
il
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and HK$100 - 51 49
GEHR () BR B provision of software 10070
development and services
relating to internet
xﬁ% I REGHEERES
P RRRS
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 MEATE(#)
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRTERE/ FrisiER
&8 BB TERE BEREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
HiE &
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong Gold bullion trading HK$14,000,000 - 100 -
NEERABRAF BB HEEMSK 14,000,000 7T
Luk Fook Ho\dings Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Provision of management HKS$2 - 100 -
NEEEBRA B services to group companies 28T

and wholesale distribution of
gold and jewellery products
REEERETERLARIE

PHEESRHEER
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Australia Retailing of gold and jewellery AU$100,000 - 100 -
(Australia) Pty Limited BN products in Australia 100,000 7T
REM SRS RABERTE
5%
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK)  Hong Kong Retalling of gold and jewellery HK$100 - 100 -
Company Limited B products 1008 7T
NEREETT (BB)ERD HERKEERTEER
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau Retailing of gold and jewellery MOP 1,000,000 - 100 -
(Macao) Company Limited B products in Macau 1,000,000 7
NEGRE ST (RM)BRAR RRFREEL RAEERTE
%
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada Retailing of gold and jewellery CA$100 - 100 -
(Canada) Limited nex products in Canada 100MEAT
RMEAUEES RGEERT
CE%
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 MEBATE ()
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRTERE/ FrisiER
&8 BB TERE BEREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
HiE &
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Singapore Retailing of gold and jewellery $$1,000,000 - 100 -
(Singapore) Pte. Limited g products in Singapore 1,000,000%7 N3 7T
RIS EE S RGEERT
5%
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith USA Retailing of gold and jewellery USD100 - 100 -
(USA) Company Limited xH products in USA 100% 7T
REERSE RAEENTE
%%
Luk Fook 3D Management The BVI Investment holding HK$1 - 100 -
Company Limited HBABRRES REER 18T
SNBDEEBB AT
Max Forum Development Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$100 - 100 -
HEERERAR BE EEERUES 1007 7T
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Manufacturing and wholesale HK$3,000,000 - 93.3 6.7
EFECEERA B distribution of jewellery 3,000,000 7
products
HERBES HHREER
EMAREHBRAR Mainland China  Manufacturing, wholesale, HK$60,000,000 - 93.3 6.7

HE A retailing of gold and jewellery 60,000,000/ 7T
products and provision of
quality examination services in
Mainland China
REEABRERE 38 T
EESRABEMUAREL
EEETRSE
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 MEAT(#)
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRITRE/ FrisHER
E4] BB TERE BEREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
B &
BRHEEN) EHBRAF Mainland China ~ Manufacturing of jewellery HK$8,000,000 - 93.3 6.7
RE R products in Mainland China 8,000,000% 7T
ReBEREEREER
EMFIREHERAR Mainland China  Property holding in HK$35,000,000 - 100 -
HE R Mainland China 35,000,000/ 70
NRREREENE
NEER(L8)B Mainland China  Wholesale of polished diamond USD200,000 - 100 -
HER in Mainland China 200,000% 7T

RPERSREETEZER

NERE (LR)BR AT+ Mainland China  Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$29,750,000 - 100 -
RE R products in Bejing, Mainland 29,750,000/ 7T
China
R BRI R EES RKE
ERTEEH

BN EEHKEER Mainland China  Trademark licensing, brand HK$2,000,000 - 100 -
HE N, building and promotion in 2,000,000/ 7
Mainland China
RAEE N EEERE 82
REERE
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 MEATE (#)
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRITRE/ FrisHER
E4] BB TERE BEREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
B &
NEHBEHERE (R BB AF+ Manland China  Trademark licensing, brand HK$8,000,000 - 100 -
HRE N, buiding and promotion in 8,000,000 7
Mainland China
RAEMN I EEREE 8l
R ERE
NESmRE (EB) BB AR Mainland China ~ Manufacturing, wholesale of HK$50,000,000 - 100 -
RE R gold and jewellery productsin 50,000,000/ 7T
Mainland China
RepBER R ERER S EES
RAREEM
NEREEN (EE)ERAAL Mainland China  Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$50,000,000 - 100 -
RE R products in Mainland China 50,000,000 7T
R BRI EEE RABER
TEEH
NEEHRE (EB)BRAA+ Mainland China  Trademark licensing, brand HK$3,000,000 - 100 -
RE A building, promotion 3,000,000 7

and provision of quality
examination services in
Mainland China

RPERBREEHRRE 82
RiERRENRRHERE
ER%
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 MEATE(#)
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRITRE/ FrisiER
&8 BB TERE BEREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
HiE &
EFABURKEMIERLT+  Mainland China Manufacturing of gold products ~ RMB5,000,000 - 100 -
HER in Mainland China AR #5,000,0007T
RABERNHESESER
EEHERGEEHERAR Mainland China ~ Wholesale of polished diamond ~ RMB10,000,000 - 100 -
HE R and jewellery products in -~ AE#10,000,0007C
Mainland China
R BN BT B A R
EEM
NEHRE (BM)BRAR+ Mainland China  Manufacturing, wholesale of RMB10,500,000 - 100 -
HE R gold and jewellery products ~ AR #10,500,0007C
in Mainland China
REER R ERE R EES
RABER
EMABERAEERAF Mainland China  Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000 - 51 49
RER in Mainland China AR 5,000,007
RAERSEEESER
EEREREEMARAR Mainland China Retailing of gold and jewellery RMB50,000,000 - 51 49
HREIR, products in Mainland China A R #50,000,0007C
RPERREES RAEEM
TEEK
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38 MBLF (&)

Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BMEI/ BRTERE/ FrisiER
&8 BB TERE BEREFEE  FORRBEERLH i4:]
Directly Indirectly
HiE &
Luk Fook Prestige (Malaysia) Malaysia Retalling of gold and jewellery MYR2,000,000 - 100 -
SDN. BHD. BRAD products in Malaysia 2,000,000
RERETHEESR BRELLE
GKEERTEENR
Luk Fook Optical Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Retailing of optical products in HK$15,000,000 - 78.3 21.7
NEREBRAR B Hong Kong 15,000,0007% 70
RERNERGEERTELE
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises + ZEMB AR ABRFBRERMANY 2 2INE D
in Mainland China. o

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

S SARESN . EIRFTE L AHEER
LT ESR

EER R ERAIARRIMBAREE
ﬂ$¢f%iﬂﬁﬁwaiﬁﬁﬁiléﬁ
EFEZETEHNND EFRR REHEM
Mﬂ‘%’&ﬁ?Zﬁ%@%éﬁﬂi@ﬁéﬂEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are SRR M R

39 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 39 FLFIZEERER
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREEE
_ Interests in subsidiaries M@ ARZ#Em 1 3,138,225 ¢ 8,138,225
Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries UG BT /B N R BR T8 2,228,711 1,528,711
Cash and bank balances R MiR1TH 133,372 596,660
_________________________________________________________ 2,362,083 2125371
Total assets BEE 5,500,308 5,263,596
EQUITY L §=

Capital and reserve attributable E2XTERIFEA
to the equity holders of the BEEER R

Company
Share capital A& A 58,710 58,710
Share premium f& 15 % (B 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves 1 a 998,971 947,956
3,551,721 3,500,706
LIABILITIES &R
Current liabilities mB&E
Accruals JEETFIE 1,434 1,264
Amount due to subsidiaries JEASHFT /B A B RN IR 1,947,153 1,285,583
Bank borrowings RITER - 400,000
Gold loans EoEE = 76,043
_________________________________________________________ 1,948,587 = 1,762,890
Total equity and liabilities Em R BEERE 5,500,308 5,263,596

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ZARRIEEBEBERIAEZESELHN2017F6529
Board of Directors on 29 June 2017 and was signed onits HBHH#ETKH T EERREE
behalf.

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER %18
Director Director

EF EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are SRR M R

39 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 39 FAFIZEEAMRE (&)
(Continued)
Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company Misk(@ N AR REEES
Capital
Contributed  redemption Retained
surplus reserve earnings Total
BEREER EFXWMERE REEF HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#T THET THET FTHET
For the year ended B E20175F
31 March 2017 SAS1ALEE
At 1 April 2016 7201654 H1H 298,687 200 649,069 947,956
Profit for the year FR& - - 696,833 696,833
2015/16 final dividend paid 2 2015/165 /&
REARR B - - (199,617) (199,617)
2015/16 special dividend paid B F2015/164F &
R Rl AR S - - (123,292) (123,292)
2016/17 interim dividend paid 242016/174E &
HEARR S - - (170,261) (170,261)
2016/17 special dividend paid 2 2016/174 &
Rl & - - (152,648) (152,648)
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 298,687 200 700,084 998,971
Representing: %
Reserves (excluded fE (P EERK
proposed dividend) RE) 298,687 200 377,175 676,062
Proposed dividend BRI E - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 298,687 200 700,084 998,971
For the year ended E E20165F
31 March 2016 SAS1ALEE
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4A1H 298,687 - 801,060 1,099,747
Profit for the year ERE A - - 496,227 496,227
2014/15 final dividend paid B f$2014/15% &
REARE - - (324,009) (324,009)
2015/16 interim dividend paid = {42015/164F &
HER R B - - (185,569) (185,569)
2015/16 special dividend paid 2 2015/165 &
R RIS, - - (138,440) (138,440)
Transfer to capital redemption & # = & A & B %
reserve (Note 28(c)) (KI3E28(c)) - 200 (200) -
At 31 March 2016 20165 3A31H 298,687 200 649,069 947,956
Representing: %
Reserves (excluded fE (TR ERIR
proposed dividend) BE) 298,687 200 326,160 625,047
Proposed dividend BRI S - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2016 #R2016%3A31H 298,687 200 649,069 947,956
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by
the Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders,
provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value
of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and
its share premium. At the Group level, the contributed
surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

39 ERFZRERRE (HA)

P 5E (a) A8 2 ) fr R

RRAT 2 EBREBIEARRRHRIRLUK
Fook Investment (B.V..) Limited’i\ﬁBE?
TR MBETRGO CEEBEBHEARD
1997@213%.%@%%3%4@%@E%Fﬁ%
NRAIZBEFEMECEE REAFRE
QOB1F R abE) (KIEFT) - BE#MAK
fﬁﬁf‘%ﬁx% HARRNF B EHBBIR
8% BREN GBS MNER %
$ Rz BENERERLIEORE
B HEBHTRARERND BEE £
MepAEBEEERMmE - ﬁt,\f%ﬂ%ﬁémi
FoERsSBEHRMBAR ZEESD -
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